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WATERFRONT
PHILIPPINES

August 29. 2018

Dear Stockholder:

AND

I f?'-•'>'_

^irKET - ^IMJ
r!".ic.

Please be advised that the annual meeting of the stockholders of WATERFRONT
PHILIPPINES, INC. (the "Corporation"), will be held on Saturday, October 13. 2018 at
10:00 a.m. at the Waterfront Cebu City Hotel, Lahug, Cebu City for the purpose of
transacting the following business:

1. Call to Order

2. Report on Attendance and Quorum
3. Approval of Minutes of Previous Stockholders' Meeting
4. Report to Stockholders for the Year 2017
5. Ratification of Resolutions and Acts of the Board and Management for 2017
6. Election of Board of Directors for the Ensuing Term 2018-2019
7. Appointment of External Auditor
8. Appointment of External Counsel
9. Other Business

10. Adjournment

The record date for the purpose of determining the stockholders who are entitled to vote
in said stockholders' meeting is September 20, 2018. The stock and transfer book will
be closed from September 21, 2018 to October 13, 2018.

If you are not attending, you may submit a proxy instrument to the office of the
Corporate Secretary of this Corporation at the address below. Corporate stockholders
are requested to attach to the proxy instrument, their respective board resolutions in
support of their proxies.

On the day of the meeting, you or your proxy are hereby requested to bring this notice
and any form of identification with picture and signature (e.g. driver's license, SSS ID,
company ID, etc.) to facilitate registration.

ART^R R. PONSARAN
Corporate Secretary
Waterfront Cebu City Hotel
Lahug, Cebu City



WATERFRONT
PHILIPPINES

September 12,2018

Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio, Jr.
Director

Markets and Securities Regularization Department
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills, Mandaluyong Cuty

Dear Mr. Felizmenio,

Stated herewith are the following revisions:

Paragraph Page No. Amendments / Revisions
1 Information Statement and Management Report shall be uploaded to Issuer's VVebsite. Already noted by the Issuer-BDO Unibank

2 ITEM4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders
- E)isclose equity ownership of foreigners on the total outstanding shares, if any. 3 It is already stated.

3 ITEM 5. Directors and Executive Officers

- Disclose the date of amendment of the company'sby-Lawsincorporating the Not applicable
provisions of SRC Rule 38, as amended.

4 ITEM 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers
- Please provide the figures for 2018 10 It is already stated.

Sincerely,

icilla O. Tcnnao

qrporate Finance Director

Wiiteifront Philippines, Inc.
7th Floor, Manila Pavilion Hotel
United Nation.s Avenue corner Ma. Orosa St.
Manila Philippines
Tel.: (02) .'i59-08b8* Fax: (02) 559-0129
Email: corporateoffice@waterlronthotels.net
Website; www.waterfronthotels.com.ph
Central Reservations: 1-800-10-9376688



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-IS
^ O J V #

CQiVi/VIISSION
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION-20.0;^

OF THE SECURITIES REGUUTION CODE 1 l! ! " '

I in SEP 13 2018
J [W I Mi

1. Check the appropriate box: j '/MJ
i^AKKi^regulation

[ ] Preliminary Information Statement V % . /o

[ /] Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED

3. PHILIPPINES

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

4. SEC Identification Number AS-0994-8678

5. SIR Tax Identification Code D80-003-978-254-NV

6. No.1 Waterfront Drive. Off Salinas Drive. Lahug. Cebu City 6000
Address of principal office Postal Code

7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code
(02) 559-0130

8. October 13, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel. Inc. Lahug. Cebu City
Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: September 24. 2018

10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the
Statement/Solicitor:

Address and Telephone
No.:

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate
registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock

Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common Shares - PI .00 par value 2.498.991.753

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

Yes X No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange - Common shares
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PARTI.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders
a.) The annual meeting of the stockholders of Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated is

scheduled to be held on October 13, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at the Waterfront Cebu City Casino
Hotel, Inc. Lahug, Cebu City. The complete mailing address of the principal office of the
registrant is No.l Waterfront Drive, Off Salinas Drive Lahug, Cebu City.

b.) Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: September 24,2018.

Item 2. Dissenter's Right of Appraisal

The shareholders shall have appraisal right or the right to dissent and demand payment of the
fair value of their shares in the manner provided under Section81 of the Corporation Code, under
any of the following circumstances:

• In case any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of chemging or
restricting the rights of any stockholders or class of shares, or of authorizing
preferences in any respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of
extending or shortening the term of corporate existence;

• In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge, or other disposition, of all
or substantially all of the corporate property and assets as provided in the
Corporation Code; and

• In case of merger or consolidation.

Under Section 81 and 82 of the Corporation Code, stockholders who dissent to certain
corporate actions are given the right appraisal as provided in the Corporation Code. Among
others, appraisal rights are available to dissenters in case the corporation invests its funds in
another corporation or business for any purpose other than its primary purpose. The
appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder who shall have voted against the
corporate action, by making a written demand on the corporation within (30) days after the
date on which the vote was taken for the payment of the fair value of his shares.

"Indicationwhether there is any matter to be taken up which will give rise to the exercise of
the dissenter's right of appraisal-there is none.

Item 3. Interest of CertainPersonsin or Opposition to Matter to be Acted Upon

1. Other thanelection tooffice, no director or officer hasanysubstantial interest in anymatter to
be acted upon during the Annual Meeting ofstockholders on October 13,2018.

2. Nodirector intendstoopposeany action to be taken at thesaid meeting.

Item3.Interestof CertainPersons in or Opposition to Matterto be Acted Upon

Other than election to office, no director or officer has any substantial interest in any matter to beacted
upon during the ArmualMeetingofstockholderson October13,2018.

No director intends tooppose any action tobetaken at thesaid meeting.

WaterfrontPhilippines, Inc.
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B. CONTROL AND OTHER INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

Thenumber of shares outstandingand entitled to vote in the stockholders' meetingis 2,498,991,753 shares
as of July 31, 2018. The record date for purposes of determining stockholders entitled to vote is
September 20, 2018. Stockholders are entitled to cumulative voting in the election of directors, as
provided by the Corporation Code.

Under Section 24of the CorporationCode,cumulative voting is allowed in the electionof Directors. Thus,
a stockholder may vote such number ofshares for as many personsas there are directors to be elected, or
he may cumulatehis shares and giveone candidateas many votesas the number of directors to be elected
multiplied by the number of shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as
many candidates as he shall see fit, provided, that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed
the number of shares owned by him as shown in the books of the corporation multiplied by the whole
number of directors to be elected.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management. There is no change in
control of the registrant since the beginning of the last calendar year.

Item 4. Security Ownership of Certain Record and beneficial Owners:
(As of July 31,2018)

The following persons are known to the Company to be directly or indirectly the record or beneficial
owner of more than 5% of any class of the Company's voting securities:

Title of

Class

Common

Common

Common

Name & Address of

Record Owner &

Relationship wifli
Issuer

The Wellex Group, Inc.
35^ Fir One Corporate
Center, Dona Julia
Vargas Ave. cor.
Meralco Ave., Ortigas
TWGI is the holding
company and major
stockholder ofWPI.

PCD Nominee

Corporation (Fil.)
37/F Tower 1,
The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Ave.,
Paseo de Roxas,
Makati City
(PCD Nominee is not
related to WPI)
Silver Green

Waterfront Philippines, Inc.

Name of Beneficial

Owner & Relationship

with Record Owner

The Wellex Group, Inc.
35*^ Fir One Corporate
Center, Dona Julia
Vargas Ave. cor.
Meralco Ave., Ortigas
Center, Pasig City

• Represented by Miss
Elvira A. Ting, who is a
nominee ofsaid company.
Directors & Officers are
William T. Gatchalian,
Dee Hua T. Gatchalian,
Kenneth T. Gatchalian,
Arthur R. Ponsaran &

Yolanda T. de La Cruz

Various Clients

As of the date of this

Citizenship

Filipino

Filipino

Non

No. of

Shares Held

1,128,466,800

594,260,373

180,230,000

%of

Class

45.157%

23.780%

7.212%
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Investments LTD.

Commence Overseas

LTD.

Commence Chambers

P.O Box 2200, Road
Town Tortola, BVI

definitive report the
authorized person to
vote is not yet known.

Filipino

Common Chesa Holding, Inc
Unit 401 Joy bldg., No.6
Joy St, Grace Village
Brgy. Balingasa

As of the date of this

definitive report the
authorized person to
vote is not yet known.

Filipino 175,924,000 7.040%

Common Tybalt Investment LTD
Scotia Ctr4/F P.O 2804
George Town Grand
Cayman Island British
West Indies

As of the date of this

definitive report the
authorized person to
vote is not yet known.

Filipino 135,010,000 5.403%

Naturalpersons authorized to vote the shares ofSilver Green Investments LTD., Chesa Holding, Inc. and
Tybalt Investment LTD cannot be identified until the proxy shall have been appointed in writing by the
stockholderhimselfor by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact.

Noneon the listed above do foreigners own directly or indirectly of more than 5%of any classof the
Company's votingsecurities. PCD Nominee (Non-Filipino) constitutes onlya 1.326%.

Security Ownership of Management
(As of July 31,2018)

Title Of Name of beneficial Owner Amount and nature of Citizenship % of Class
Class Beneficial Ownership
Common Renato B. Magadia 200 direct Filipino 0.000

Common Kenneth T. Gatchalian 30,000,100 direct Filipino 1.200

Common Weslie T. Gatchalian 30,000,000 direct Filipino 1.200

Common Arthur M. Lopez 1 direct Filipino 0.000
Common Elvira A. Ting 10,000,009 direct Filipino 0.400
Common Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr. 100 direct Filipino 0.000
Common Arthur R. Ponsaran 110 direct Filipino 0.000

Common Dee Hua T. Gatchalian 350,000 direct Filipino 0.014

Common Reno I. Magadia 10,000 direct Filipino 0.000
Common Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis Jr. 110 direct Filipino 0.000
Common Ruben D. Torres 1,000 direct Filipino 0.000

Total Beneficial Ownership 70,361,630 2.814

There is no voting trust holder of 5% or more.
There are no persons holding a certain class ofstocks under a voting trust orsimilar agreement. There are
also noarrangements thatmay result in a change incontrol of theregistrant.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors:

Name Position Age Citizenship

Renato B. Magadia Chairman of the Board 80 Filipino
Elvira A. Ting Treasurer/Director 58 Filipino
Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr. Director 54 Filipino
> Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis, Jr. Independent Director 75 Filipino
> Ruben D. Torres Independent Director 77 Filipino

WaterfrontPhilippines, Inc.



SEC 20IS 2018 Definitive

Reno I. Magadia Director 48 Filipino
> Arthur M. Lopez Independent Director 72 Filipino
Kenneth T. GatchaUan President/Director 42 Filipino
Dee Hua T. Gatchalian Director 70 Filipino
Arthur R. Ponsaran Corporate Secretary 75 Filipino

They are in the final list of nominees as pre-screened by NOMELEC They are being nominated
by Ms. Elvira Ting, all of whom are not related with her.

Independent Directors should possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as
such as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code and its implementing Rules and
Regulations.

Nominations Committee

Chairman - Arthur M. Lopez -Independent Director
Member - Ruben D. Torres -Independent Director
Member - Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr.

The Company has complied with the Guidelines on the Nomination and Election of the Independent
Directors as outlined in SRC Rule 38.

Directors and Executive Officers:

a) Thereare 9 seats in the Board of Directors. The term of office ofeach memberis one year.
b) The current members of the Board of Directors are now as follows:

Office Name Age Citizenship Position in Other Listed Companies
Chairman

of the

Board

Renato B. Magadia 80 Filipino Director-Phil. Estate Corporation, Chairman of
the Board of Metro Alliance Holdings and
Equities Corporation, Mercator Holdings and
Equities Corporation, 2007-2008 Rotary
Governor for district 3930; Vice-Chairman of
Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp.; Director of Misons
Industrial and Development Corp., All Oceans
Maritime Agency, Inc., Howden Insurance and
Reinsurance Brokers (Phils.), Inc., Cunningham
Toplis Philippines, Inc., Metro Combined
Logistics Solutions, Inc. and President of The
Zuellig Corporation. An active member of
Rotary Club of Makati North.

Director Kenneth T.

Gatchalian

42 Filipino Director-Wellex Industries Inc.; President &
CEO of Acesite (Phils.) Hotel 2007-present;
President and Chief Excutive Officer of

Philippine Estates Corporation 2010-2011;
Director-Forum Pacific Inc.

Director > Arthur

M.Lopez
72 Filipino Owner and Principal Consultant of AML Hotel

Consultancy, Management and Technical
Services Consultant of Federal Land and

owner of Grand Hyatt Projects and Marco Polo
Cebu; Director-Philippine Estates Corp.,
Chairman- Acesite Phils. Hotel Corp, Hotel
Management Consultant of the B Hotel Manila,
Bellevue Bohol Resort in Panglao, B Hotel
Quezon City, Bellevue Baguio (opening in

Waterfront Philippines, Inc.



SEC 20IS 2018 Definitive

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

and

Treasurer

Dee Hua T.

Gatchalian

Reno 1.Magadia

Lamberto B.

Mercado, Jr.

> Sergio R.
Ortiz-Luis,

Jr.

> Ruben D.

Torres

Elvira A, Ting

Waterfront Philippines, Inc.

70 Filipino

48 Filipino

54 Filipino

75 Filipino

77 Filipino

58 Filipino

2018) and Bloomberry Casino Hotels &
Resorts; Regional Director of Asia Pacific Top
Management International Resources Corp.;
Hotel Management Consultant of Double
Dragon properties Corporation. President of
Legoli Holdings Inc and Arleff Holdings Inc.
and President of Phil. Hotel Federation Inc.

Director- Philippine Estates Corporation,
Acesite (Philippines) Hotel Corporation; EVP-
Finance and Admin The Wellex Group, Inc., &
Plastic City Corporation. Chairperson of Jesus
Chir Life Ministries, Inc.

Managing Director- Misons Industrial &
Development Corp., Metro Combined
Logistics Solutions, Inc.; Director - Metro
Alliance Holdings and Equities Corp. Vice-
President and Director of Mercator Filter

Manufacturing Corporation.
Director-The Wellex Group, Inc., Metro
AUiance Holdings & Equities Corp., Forum
Pacific, Inc. Director- Acesite (Phils.) Hotel
2004-present, Air Philippines Corporation,
Philippine International Airways, Inc,
Consumer Products Distribution Services Inc.,
Mabuhay Vinyl Corp. and Pacific Wide Realty
&DevelopmentCorp.
Independent Director-Waterfront Philippines,
Inc., President & CEO - Philippine Exporters
Confederation, Inc. (PHILEXPORT); Honorary
Chairman - Philippine Chamber of Commerce
& Industry, Employers Confederation of the
Philippines, Integrated Concepts and
Solutions, Inc., Vice-Chairman of Alliance
Global, Inc.; Director - International Chamber

of Commerce of the Philippines, Manila
Exposition Complex, Inc., Lasaltech Academy,
BA Securities, Rural Bank of Baguio, GSl.;
Gov't Affiliations: Vice-Chairman - Export
Development Council; Civic Organizations:
Chairman - Rotary Club of Green Meadows,
Director - PILAK Foundation, Universal
Access Center for Trade Others: Honorary
Consul General - Consulate of Romania in the

Philippines,
Independent Director Waterfront Philippines,
Inc., President -BPO Workers Association of

the Phils..; Senior Partner - Torres Caparas
Torres Law Offices; Secretary General-
Katipunan ng Manggagawa at Magsasaka ng
Pilipinas; Chairman/CEO - Service Exporters
Risk Management & Consultancy Co., Towers
Corporation and Optimus Medical Care and
TradingCorporation.
President & CEO - Philippine Estates
Corporation; Director-Wellex Industries, Inc.,
Forum Pacific, Inc., Orient Pacific Corporation,
Crisanta Realty and Development Corporation,
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Recovery Development Corporation, The
Wellex Group, Inc., Plastic City Industrial
Corporation.

Corporate
Secretary

Ardiur R. Ponsaran 75 Filipino Director-Philippine Estate Corporation, Wellex
Industries, Inc., Forum Pacific, Inc. Acesite
(Phils.) Hotel, Managing Partner-Corporate
Counsels, Phils., Chairman of Value
Management and Options Corp and Corp
Secretary of Producers Rural Banking Corp.,
The Wellex Group, Inc., MRL Gold Phils., Inc.,
Village Foundation, Shuylkill Assets
Strategists (SPV-AMC), Inc., Petrolift Corp.

Key Officers

Name Office Age Citizenship

Kenneth T. Gatchalian President 42 Filipino

Precilla O. Toriano Corporate Finance Director 49 Filipino

Maria Socorro R. Cotelo Corporate Planning Director 42 Filipino

Lanelle Cristina M. Barba Corporate Peers Resources and
Development Director

39 Filipino

On the year 2016^ Ms. Ma. Theresa S. Fernandez resigned without any disagreements on any proposed
action of the Board.

A brief description of the directors' and executive officers' business experience and other directorship
held in other reporting companies for the last five years are provided as follows:

Renato B. Magadia Chairman of the Board

A graduate of the University of the Philippines Diliman with a degree in Business Administration major
in Accounting and a Certified Public Accountant. He is concurrently, the Chairman of the Board of Metro
Alliance Holdings and Equities Corporation, Waterfront Philippines, Inc. and Mercator Securities
Corporation. He is a Director of various companies like Howden Insurance and Reinsurance Brokers
(Phils.), Inc., All Ocean Maritime Agency, Inc., Cunningham Toplis Philippines, Inc., The Zuellig Group,
Misons Industrial & Dev't Corp., Phil. Accident Managers, Inc. and Philippine. Estates Corp. He is also a
trustee in The Zuellig Foundation, Inc. He has been a director of Waterfront since April 1999- present
from 2006-2008 he is the Rotary Governor for district 3930.

Kenneth T. Gatchalian President

Mr. Kenneth T. Gatchalian is a President of the Company. He is a member of the Board of Forum Pacific,
Inc. and Wellex Industries, Inc., and The Wellex Group, Inc. Holds a Degree in Bachelor of Science in
Architecture from University of Texas in San Antonio, Texas, USA. He's been the Director of Waterfront
since February 2001.

Arthur M. Lopez Director

Hotel management consultant specializing in general hotel managementconsultancyservices, marketing,
hotel design development/technical services, gaming, hotel feasibility study, pre and post hotel opening
management services, asset management/owner's representative, food and beverage concept and service,
mergers and acquisitions, travel and tours, theme parks and third party management and branding. The
Owner and Principal Consultant of AML Hotel Consultants. Hotel Management and Development
Consultant - Double Dragon Properties Corporation (PSE listed) - Hotel of Asia Inc. - JinJiang Ortigas,
JinJiang Inn Makati, Injap Tower Iloilo, Hotel101 Manila (500 rooms). Hotel101 Fortproject (600 rooms,
under construction); Hotel 101 Bohol (250 rooms, under construction); Hotel Management and
Development Consultant - Bellevue Bohol Resort, The Bellevue Hotel Manila, The B Hotel Manila, B
Hotel Quezon City; Bellevue Baguio (under construction) opening in 2018; Bellevue Bohol Resort
extension (140 rooms) opening 2019. Hotel Management and Development Consultant - Wydham Garden

Waterfront Philippines, Inc.
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(Wellworth Properties and Development Corporation) Quezon City (200 rooms) opening in 2020 and in a
resort hotel in Mactan, Cebu City (300 rooms) opening in 2021. The Chairman - Philippine Estates
Corporation (PSE listed) and Acesite Philippines Hotel Corporation, owner of Manila Pavilion Hotel (PSE
listed). Director - Waterfront Hotels and Casinos (PSE listed) - Waterfront Cebu City Hotel & Casino,
Manila Pavilion Hotel & Casino, Waterfront Airport Hotel & Casino and Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao.
President - Philippine Hotel Owners Association, Inc. (PHOAI) - the largest group of hotel owners and
developers in the Philippines. Holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce, major in Management,
and a Master's Degree in Business Administration (MBA),both from the University of Santo Tomas in the
Philippines. He completed a Tourism Management course at the East-West Center, University of Hawaii,
Honolulu, Hawaii and Cornell University, Ithaca, New York, USA.

Dee Hua T. Gatchalian Director

Mrs. Gatchalian was elected director of the Company since 24 June 2004-present. She is the Executive
Vice-President of The Wellex Group, Inc., and also the Executive Vice-President of Plastic City
Corporation. She is a board of director of Philippine Estates Corporation, and Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp.
She graduated with a degree in Medical Technology from the Far Eastern University in 1970. In addition
to her numerous positions in business firms, she is the Chairperson of Jesus Our Life Ministries, Inc., a
non-profit, non-stock organization duly registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Reno 1. Magadia Director
A Master's degree holder in Business Administration from Pepperdine University in Los Angeles,
California, Mr. Magadia is currently the Managing Director of holding firm, Misons Industrial and
DevelopmentCorp. He is also the ManagingDirector of Metro Combined Logistics Solutions, Inc. He is
on the Boardof Directors of MetroAlliance Holdings and Equities Corporation. He held the posts of Vice
President and Director of Mercator Filter Manufacturing Corporation. He also worked as Head Portfolio
Manager of stock brokerage firm. Papa Securities Corporation. He was also the President and Founder of
the Youtfi Leaders for Change, a non-profit and multi-sectoral organization for youth leaders in Quezon
City. He waselected as Director ofWaterfront Philippines, Inc., since September 17,2005-present.

LambertoB. Mercado, Jr. Director
A lawyer and a CPA by profession, Atty. Mercado is a member of the Board of Directors of several
publicly-listed companies namely: Waterfront Philippines, Inc., Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities
Corp., Forum Pacific, Inc., Acesite (Philippines) Hotel Corporation and Wellex Industries, Inc. He is
currently the Vice-President for Legal Affairs of the Wellex Group, Inc. In the past as Deputy
Administrator for Administration, he had supervised the largest group in the Subic Bay Metropolitan
Authority (SBMA). Hehad also, helped in the drafting ofAdministrative Orders toeffectively implement
R.A. 7227 (the lawcreating theSubic Bay Freeport Zone) and its implementing rules and regulations. He
was the President of Freeport Service Corporation, a subsidiary ofSBMA and helped in thecreation and
organization of thisservice corporation. He wasalso a Director ofAcesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation since
Jime 24, 2004-present. Associate Lawyer of Gascon, Garcia and Associates. He studied BSC Major in
Accountancy at the University of Santo Tomas and Bachelor of Laws (LLB) at the Ateneo de Manila
University School of Law, graduated in 1985 and 1990, respectively. He has been a director of Waterfront
PhilippinesInc., sinceJuly 2003-present.

Sergio R.Ortiz-Luis,Jr. Director
He has degrees of Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from De La Salle
University; PhD Humanities from Central Luzon State University, and PhD Business Technology from
Eulogio "Amang" Rodriguez Institute of Science and Technology. He is the President and CEO of
Philippine Exporters Confederation, Inc. An Honorary Chairman ofPhilippine Chamber ofCommerce &
Industry, Employers Confederation ofthePhilippines as well as Integrated Concepts &Solutions, Inc. He
is the Vice Chairman of Alliance Global, Inc., Export Development Council. He is a Director of Manila
Exposition Complex, Inc., Lasaltech Academy, Philippine Estate Corporation, BA Securities, Rural Bank
of Baguio, PILAK Foundation, and Universal Access Center for Trade and Philippine International
Traming Corporation. He is a Council Adviser Member of Philippine Foundation, Inc., a Founding
Director of International Chamber of Commerce of the Philippines and GSl. He is also a member of the
Board of Advisers ofSouthville International School and Colleges. He is a commissioner of Patrol 117, a
Financing Champion ofNational Competitiveness Council anda Private Sector Representative ofBamboo

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. n
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Council. He is also a Chairman of Rotary Club of Green Meadows Foundation and also a Chairman of
Council of Advisers Eastern Police District. He is the Past President of Rotary Club of Green Meadows
Quezon City RI District 3780; a Board of Advisers Member of Council of Advisers Philippine National
Police, a senator of Philippine Jaycee Senate, Captain of Philippine Coastguard Auxiliary and a member
of the League of Corporate Foundation. He is the Honorary Consul General of Consulate of Romania in
the Philippines, a Treasurer of Consular Corps of the Philippines and an Honorary Adviser of
International Association of Education for World Peace. Some awards that he received were International

Peace Award for Economic Development in 2005, Most Outstanding Citizen of Nueva Ecija in the Field of
Business in 2005 also. Most Outstanding Pasigueno in 2006, Ulirang Ama also in 2006 and Presidential
Merit Award Medal in 2007. He became an Independent Director of Waterfront Philippines, Inc. since
August 2006-present. In 2014, he attended Exporter's Partner in Gearing the Country for the AEC Markets
of the World 2, Technology Innovation and Entrepreneurship as Competitive Strategies PHILAAS 63"^^
Annual Convention and lastly. Bringing the Buy Pinoy Campaign to the Next Level.

Ruben D. Torres Director

Mr. Ruben Torres graduated in the University of the Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Arts
(Political Science) after which, he finished the degree of Bachelor of Laws at the same university. Presently
he is also the President of BPO Workers Association of the Philippines and Senior Partner of Torres
Caparas Torres Law Office. He is also the Secretary General of Katipunan ng Manggagawa at Magsasaka
ng Pilipinas. He is associated with the Integrated Bar of the Philippines and Philippine Academy of
Professional Arbitrators. His former positions include being a Member of the House of Representatives of
the 2nd Districtof Zambales, Executive Secretary of the Office of the President in Malacahang, Secretary
of the Department of Labor and Employment. Mr. Torres became an Independent Director of Waterfront
Philippines, Inc. since August 2006-present.

ElviraA.Ting Directorand Treasurer
Ms. Elvira A. Tingearned her Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration major in Management from
the Philippine School of Business Administration. Has been the Director of Waterfront Philippines, Inc.,
since October 2000-present. She is also the President/Director of Philippine Estates Corp., a director
Wellex Industries, Inc., The Wellex Group, Inc., and Forum Pacific, Inc. She is also a Director/CFO of
AcesitePhils. Inc.since 2004-present.

Executive

Kenneth T. Gatchalian President

(see above description)

Precilla O. Toriano Corporate Finance Director
V « XXI i..r^^x^xxiL/^i XV/ X.WX X XllCUl\.lCxl V^V/llUL/IId KJl rVCtlCTlllOilL

City Casino Hotel. After five (5) months, she became the Financial Controller before shewas promoted as
Corporate Finance Director for the group. Before joining Waterfront, she has already been working with
the group; she worked as Internal Auditor at Air Philippines Corp. and eventually transferred to The
Wellex Group, Inc. tojoin the Corporate Internal Audit team, which paved the way for her coming in the
Waterfront Hotels and Casinos. She is a CPA by profession; shegraduated at the University of theEast
witfi a degree ofBachelor ofScience in Business Administration Major in Accoimting. She took up MBA
units in the Polytechnic University ofthePhilippines. After graduation, she worked asan accounting staff
at Liberty Corrugated Boxes Manufacturing, Inc. Then, she moved to Control Management Inc. as an
Internal Auditor. After which, she worked for Philippine Remnants Corp. asanAccounting Manager. She
had several framings in the following fields: Managerial Leadership and Decision Making Skills, the
Basics of Management Audit, Supervisory Effectiveness, Accoimting and BIR Regulations, Accounting
and Bookkeeping Audit, Operations Audit, Living and Working in Balance, Management Development
Program, Accounting & Administrative Control, and Lean Six Sigma. In 2005, she acquired a
Certification inFinancial Management for Hotels atCornell University School ofHotel Administration, in
New York USA focusing on High Performance Financial Management For Hotels Operations, Hospitality
Financial Management &Operations Decision Making, and Fraud Controls for Managers. She attended
the CFO Congress 2007 at Malaysia. In 2010, she was sent to Singapore to attend the Strategic &
Sustainable Cost Control Training. She attended the Financial Modeling ^minarinSingapore in2011. In
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the year 2012 in June-July, she was sent by the company to New York to attend the Management
Development Program at Cornell University thus granting her the "Certification in Strategic
Management". On June 2015, she took the 3-day MBA for ChiefFinance Officers held in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia. Attended Corporate Governance on August 15,2018.

Maria Socorro R. Cotelo I Corporate Planning Director
Ms. Cotelo is the Corporate Planning Directorfor WaterfrontHotels & Casinos. She joined Waterfront in
2003 as Sales Accoimts Manager before she moved to help establish Revenue Management in the
company from there she continued to work in the Corporate Plarming Division undertaking
Standardization, Business Development, Reservation & Distribution and Corporate Information
Technology. She earned her Bachelor's Degree in Economics at the University of San Carlos and took up
masteral units for the same course before pursuing her Bachelor of Laws from Southwestern University,
Cebu City. After completing her Bachelor of Laws, she worked for the Davide, Calderon, and Tolentino
Law office in 2002 and as part-time instructor for the University of San Carlos, Economics Department.
She had significant training in Hotel Management and Distribution Systems and attended Revenue
Management seminars specifically on Pricing, Travel distribution and technology. Project Management,
Branding, and Selling Skills workshops. Her speaking engagement to two of these international seminars
& forums under the Travel Distribution Summit Asia in 2008 and 2009 include topics on Revenue
Management in Tough times and Integrating Sales and Marketing in Revenue Management. She
completed her Certification in Revenue Management at Cornell University, New York in 2011 with focus
on hotel and restaurant revenue management, strategic pricing, demand management, strategic
marketing and financial management. As part of SEC Compliance, she completed the seminar on
Corporate Governance on August 15,2018.

Lanelle Cristina M. Barba Corporate Peers' Resources and Development
Director

Ms.Barba,joined Waterfronton June 2006-April2008 as Employee/Labor RelationsOfficerin Waterfront
Pavilion Hotel and Casino, and was appointed as Peers Resources' and Development Director of the same
property on April 30,2008. Currently, she is the Corporate Peers' Resources and Development Director of
Waterfront Hotels and Casinos. She earned her Bachelor's Degree in Elementary Education at the
University of Santo Tomas. Prior joining with Waterfront, she is the HR Officer of Asia Select Inc. and
Research Analyst under Employee Relations and Benefits Division of Metrobank. She was sent to various
trainings and seminars and in 2009, she was sent to Nanyang University, Singapore to attend the PDP
2009 Building the Human Capital Base: Essential HR Practices for Managers. In 2011 to Bangkok,
Thailand for HR Audit training. On August 15, 2018, she completed the seminar on Corporate
Governance.

Significant Employees

There areno employees of theCompany who isnot an Executive Officer but expected to make significant
contribution to the businessof the Company.

Family Relationship

Mr. Kenneth T. GatchaUan is the son of Ms. Dee Hua T. Gatchalian. Ms. Elvira A. Ting is a sisterof Ms.
Dee Hua T. Gatchalian and an aunt of Kenneth T. Gatchalian.

Mr.RenoMagadia is also a son of Mr.RenatoB. Magadia.

There are no other relationships among the officers listed.

Involvement in Certain LegalProceedings

As of July 31, 2018, none of the directors and officers/nominees was involved in any bankruptcy
proceedings. Neither have they been convicted by final judgment in any criminal proceedings, or been
subjected to any order, judgment or decree of competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvement in any typeofbusiness, securities
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or commodities or bankingactivities, nor found in an actionby any court or administrative bodies to have
violated a securities and commodities law.

Certain Relationship and Related Transactions

Relationship
to the Issuer

Nature of Advances Amount of Advances

The Wellex Group, Inc.
(TWGI)

Ultimate Parent Unsecured; interest-bearing;
subject to re-pricing; due in
one year subject to renewal

2017- P 882,189,000

2016 ~P 861,550,000

Pacific Rehouse Corporation
(PRC)

Stockholder Unsecured; interest-bearing;
subject to re-pricing; due in
one year subject to renewal

2017-P 541,781,000

2016-P 531,158,000

Philippine Estate (PHES) Stockholder Unsecured; non-interest

bearing; due on demand
2017-P 104,554,000

2016-P 92,054,000

Crisanta Realty Stockholder Unsecured; interest-bearing;
subject to re-pricing; due in 5
years

2017-P 347,928,000

2016-P 340,197,000

See notes 8 on Consolidated FS 2017

Term of Office

The Directors of WPI are elected at the annual stockholders' meeting to hold office until the next
succeedingannual meeting and until they're respective successors have been elected and qualified.
Officers are appointed or elected annually by the Board of Directors at its first meeting following the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, each to hold office until the corresponding meeting of the Board of
Directors in the next year or until a successor shall have been elected, appointed or shall have been
qualified.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

None of the Directorsreceivecompensationfor serving as Directorsof the Company.

The aggregate paid to the Five

Aggregate Compensation paid
to the 5 highly compensated
executive officers

Principal Position Year Salary (P) Bonus

(P)

Other annual

compensation

Precilla O. Toriano Corporate Finance 2018 8,013,410.00 None None

Director 2017 11,249,070.00 None None
Maria Socorro R. Cotelo Corporate Planning

Director

2016

2015

10,713,400.00

10,912,500.00
None

None

None

None
Ms. Lanelle M. Barba Corporate Peers'

Resources and

Anders Goran Helge Hallden
Rex Benhur M. Caballes

Development Director
General Manager
Hotel Manager

The President has no remuneration benefit.

Compensation Plan of Directors

Themembers of the Board of Director areelected fora term ofoneyear. Director per diemareat a
rate of Php8,000.00 (netof 20% ewt)per board meeting.Except for the Chairmanand the CEO,
Directors,are not entitled to compensation package.Except as herein mentioned, no director received
bonuses or profit sharing plans for the years ended 31December2017 and December2016.

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. 10
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Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

The external auditor of Waterfront Philippines, Inc. (WPI) for the most recently completed calendar year
ending December 2017 is KPMG R.G. Manabatand Co., previously KPMG ManabatSanagustinand Co.,
under Mr. Tireso Randy F. Lapidez, Partner in-charge, and they are being recommended by the board of
directors for the approval of stockholders for this coming year. The firm also audited the Companj^s
previous calendar year.

The company is in compliancewith SRC Rule68,Paragraph 3(b)(iv).

There were no changes in and disagreements with the accountants nor with the current accounting firm
relating on accounting and financial disclosure.

Representatives of said firm are expected to be present at the stockholders' meeting, and they will have
the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available to respond to
appropriate questions.

Audit Committee

The Board is authorized to create an Audit Committee, composed of at least three (3) directors, at least
one (1) of whom shall be an independent director. Each member of the Audit Committee shall have
adequate understanding, at least, or competence at most, of the company's financial management systems
and environment. The Audit Committee shaU have the functions, powers and authorities as may be
prescribed by the Board, or as provided in the Corporation's Manned of Corporate Governance, and as
may be prescribed by applicable law and regulations.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

Review all financial reports against compliance with both the internal financial management policy and
pertinent accounting standards, including regulatory requirements. Review management policy on
financial management, specifically in the areas of managing credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal
and other risks of the Corporation, crisis management. Review audit plans, scope and frequency of the
externalaudit to the extent advisable, interface with the internal and externalauditors. Develop a plan to
elevate to international standards the accounting and auditing processes, practices and methodologies,
including: a realistic timetable within which the accounting system of the Corporation will be 100%
International Accounting Standards (IAS) compliant; an accountability statement that will specifically
identifyofficers and / or personneldirectly responsible for the accomplishment of such task;

Develop a transparent financial management system that will ensure the integrity of internal control
activities throughout the Companythrough a step-by-step proceduresand policies handbook that will be
used by the entire organization.

The Board constituted the following committees:

Audit Committee

Chairman

Member

Member

Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis, Jr
Arthur M. Lopez
Dee Hua T. Gatchalian

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

Independent Director
•Independent Director

FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR Eh

2017

JOED DECEMBER 31,

2016

Aggregate Fees Billed for the
external audit of the Company's
financial statements

3,770,000.00 3,755,000.00

SRCRule No.68,Paragraph 3(b)(iv)
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Item 8. Compensation Plans

To date WPIhas not issued any options or implemented any option scheme to its directors and officers.

The Company has no immediate plan with regard to any bonus, profit sharing, pension/ retirement plan
granting of extension of any option, warrant or right to purchase any securities.

C ISSUANCE AMD EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

As of July 31,2018, Waterfront Philippines, Inc. has no plans yet to increase its authorized capital stock.

Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. has no plans to modify any of each authorized and issued securities or to
exchange them to another class.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AS TO CERTAIN ISSUES AND ISSUER

As of December 31, 2017 the company has a net worth of P6.02 billion and is not planning to issue
unsecured bond for 2017.

Properties
The Company, being a holding company,has no real properties under its name. Properties under WPIare
under the ownership or leaseholdings of the respective subsidiaries. WPI is rentingan office in the City
of Manila.

Information and terms of the rent/lease are as follows:

Location 7^ Fir Manila Pavilion Hotel

U.N. Avenue comer Maria Y Orosa St.

Ermita Manila

Size 538.7 square meters with parking spaces
Terms of Rent From October 1,2011 to December 31, 2021

(10 years); renewable within 90 days before the lease period expires
permissible by the laws of the Philippines.

Rental On the office spaces: Php 250,000 per month with an escalation of 5%
per year.

WCCCHI and WMCHI have separate contracts of lease for the use of parcels of land in the province of
Cebu.

WCCCH/Land Lease:

Location Former airport site at Lahug in Cebu City

Size Approximately 4.6 hectares

Lessor Mactan Cebu International Airport Authority

Terms of Lease 50yearswith an optionfor renewal for another25years, permissible by
the laws of the Philippines

Lease Agreement Fixed rental per month of Php 11.00 per square meter or a total amount
per annum of Php 6,072,000.00 + Percentage rental of 2% of the annual
Gross Revenue as defined under the Land Lease Agreement

WaterfrontPhilippines, Inc. 12
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WMCHI Land Lease:

Location In front of Mactan-Cebu International Airport, Lapu-Lapu City

Size Approximately 3.2 hectares

Lessor Mactan Cebu International Airport Authority

Terms of Lease 50years with an option for renewal for another 25years, permissibleby
the laws of the Philippines

Lease Agreement Fixed rental per month of Php 18.75 per square meter or a total amount
per annum of Php 7,875,000.00 + Percentage rental of 2% of the Annual
Gross Revenues as defined under the Land Lease Agreement.

D/HC/WhoUyOwned:

Location Lanang, Davao City

Size Approximately 12.29 hectares

but with foreshore area of 4.3 hectares

Title Area (In Sq. Meters)

TCT 0-255* 2,997

0-256* 404

0-256* 304

0-257* 113

0-258* 50

0-259* 404

T-10250* 44,511

T-10250* 47,320

T-10251* 2,091

T-102510* 2,043

T-10252* 1,133

T-10252* 300

T-10252* 300

T-10252* 1,580

T-10252* 643

T-10254* 500

T-10254* 400

T-10303-A* 304

T-10303* 108

T-30874* 223

T-10264* 18,959

T-10379* 140

T-0303-A 4,319

ACESITE Land Lease

Location Comer of United Nations Avenue & Maria Y. Orosa Street in Ermita,
Manila

Size Total land area of 6,500square meters
Lessor Cima Realty Philippines Inc.
Terms of Lease Leaseis valid until January 2031, renewablefor another 20years.
Lease Agreement Php 250,000 per month; escalationof 5% per year

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. 13
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Event After the Reporting Period
On March 18,2018, a fire broke out in Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation's hotel property that
damaged the lower floors of the main building as weU as the Podium building occupied by the casino
area and restaurants in the APHC's hotel property that resulted to the suspension of its hotel operations.

CIMA Realty

Location Comer of United Nations Ave. & Maria Y. Orosa St., Ermita,

Manila

Size Approximately 6,500 square meters

Tide TCT 184100

The building is mortgaged in favor of the Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company-Trust Department, as
the trustee for the Singapore Branchof the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC), a banking
corporation organized under the laws of the People's Republic of China (PROC), to secure a loan in the
original principal amoimt of FifteenMillionUS Dollars (US$15,000,000.00). ICBC loan was also fully paid
March 31,2016.

Legal Proceedings

SSS vs. WPI. Et al civil case no. Q-04-52629 at regional trial court, Quezon City. On October 28,1999, the
ParentCompany obtained a five-year termloanfromSSS amounting to P375.00 million originally
due on October 29, 2004. The SSS loanbears interest at the prevailing market rate plus 3% or 14.5% per
annum, whichever is higher. Interest is repriced annually and is payable semi-annuaUy. Initial interest
payments are due 180 days from thedateof the release of the proceeds of the loan. The repayment of the
principal shallbebased oneight(8) semi-annual payments, after a one-year grace period.

The SSS loan was availed tofinance the completion of the facilities ofWCCCHI. It was secured by a first
mortgage over parcels of land owned by Wn and by the assignment of 200 millioncommon shares of the
Parent Company owned byTWGI. The common shares assigned were placed inescrow in thepossession
ofan independent custodian mutually agreed upon by bothparties.

On August 7, 2003, when the total loan obligation to SSS, including penalties and interest, amounted to
P605.00 million, the Parent Company was considered indefault with the payments ofthe loan obligations,
thus, onthe same date, SSS executed a foreclosure proceeding onthe mortgaged parcels ofland. The SSS's
winning bid on the foreclosure sale amounting to P198.00 million was applied to penalties and interest
amounting to P74.00 million andP124.00 million, respectively. In addition, theParent Company accrued
penalties charged by SSS amounting toP30.50 million covering the month ofAugust until December 2003,
and unpaid interest expense of P32.00 million.

The Parent Company, WII and TWGI were given the right to redeem the foreclosed property within one
(1) year from October 17, 2003, the date of registration of the certificate of sale. The Parent Company
recognized the proceeds of the foreclosure sale as its liability to WII and TWGI. The Parent Company,
however, agreed with TWGI to offset this directly against its receivable from the latter. In August 2004,
the redemption period for theParent Company, WII andTWGI expired.

The remaining balance of the SSS loan is secured by the shares of stock of the Parent Company owned by
TWGI and shares ofstock ofWII numbering 235 million and 80 million shares, respectively.

The Parent Company, atvarious instances, initiated negotiations with the SSS for restructuring of the loan
butwas notable toconclude a formal restructuring agreement.

On January 13, 2015, the RTC ofQuezon City issued a decision declaring null and void the contract of
loan and the related mortgages entered into by the Parent Company with SSS on the groimd that the
officers and the SSS are not authorized to enter the subject loan agreement. In the decision, the RTC of
Quezon City directed the Company to return to SSS the principal amount of loan amounting to P375.00
million and directed the SSS toreturn tothe Company and to its related parties titles and documents held
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by SSSas collaterals.

On January 22,2016, SSSappealed with the CA assailing the RTC of Quezon City decision in favor of the
Parent Company, et al. SSSfiled its Appellant's Brief and the Parent Company filed a Motion for
Extension of Time to file Appellee's Brief until May 16,2016.

On May 16,2016, the Parent Company filed its Appellee's Brief with the CA, furnishing the RTC of
Quezon City and the Office of the Solicitor General with copies. SSSwas given a period to reply but it did
not file any.

On September 6,2016, a resolution for possible settlement was received by the Parent Company from the
CA. However, on February 7,2017 a Notice to Appear dated December 7,2016 was received by the Parent
Company from the Philippine Mediation Center Unit - Court of Appeals (PMCU-CA) directing the Parent
Company and SSSto appear in person and without counsel at the PMCU-CAon January 23,2017 to
choose their mediator and the date of initial mediation conferenceand to consider the possibility of
settlement. Since the Notice to Appear was belatedly received, the parties were not able to appear before
the PMCU-CA.

On February 27,2017, a SecondNotice to Appear issued by the PMCU-CA directing all parties to appear
on February27,2017at a specified time was receivedby the Parent Company only on February 27,2017
after the specified timeof the meeting. The Parent Company failed to appear.

On June 30,2017, a resolutionissued by the CA,resolved to submit the appeal for decision.

As at the report date, there had been no updates on the matter.

BIR Assessment

OnNovember 10,2008, theParentCompany received a preliminary assessment notice from the BIR for
deficiency taxes for thetaxable year 2006. OnFebruary 9,2009, theParent Company senta protest letter to
BIR contesting thesaid assessment. On February 18,2009, theRegional Office ofthe BIR sent
a letter to the ParentCompany informing the latter that the docket was returned to Revenue District
Office for reinvestigationand further verification.

OnDecember 8,2009, theParent Company received BIR's Final Decision onDisputed Assessment for
deficiency taxes for the 2006 taxable year. The final decision ofthe BIR seeks to collect deficiency
assessments totaling to P3.30 million. However, onJanuary 15, 2010, theParent Company appealed the
final decision of the BIR with the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA) on the grounds of lack oflegal and factual
bases in the issuance of the assessments.

Inits decision promulgated on November 13,2012, the CTA upheld the expanded withholding tax (EWT)
assessment andcancelled the VAT andcompromise penalty assessments. The Parent Company decided
nottocontest theEWT assessment. The BIR filed itsmotion for reconsideration (MR) onDecember 4,2012
and onApril 24,2013, the Court issued its amended decision reinstating the VAT assessment. The Parent
Company filed its MR on the amended decision that was denied by the CTA inits resolution promulgated
on September 13,2013.

The Parent Company appealed thecase to theCTA sitting EnBanc onOctober 21,2013. TheCTA EnBanc
decision promulgated on December 4,2014 affirmed the VATand EWTassessments. The EWT
assessment was paid on March 3,2013.

The CTA En Banc decision was appealed to the SC onFebruary 5,2015 covering the VAT assessment
only.

As at December 31,2017, theParent Company isstill awaiting theSC's decision.
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On May 02,2018, the legal counsel servedcopies of the reply in thecasependingbefore theCourt ofTax
Appeals.

Management and its legalcounsels believe that the positionof the ParentCompanyis sustainable, and
accordingly, believethat the Parent Company does not have a present obligation(legalor constructive)
with respect to the assessment.

Item. 11. Financial and Other Information

The consolidated financial statements are filed as part of this FORM SEC 20IS, attached hereto and
marked as "Annex A."

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

As of July 31, 2018 Waterfront Philippines, Inc. has no plans to merge, and consolidate with other
company, to acquire other companj^s securities, to acquire any other going business or of the assets
thereof, to sell or transfer any substantial part of its assets and to liquidate or dissolve the Company.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

/^^ The Company acquired 100% interest ofCIMAR, a former subsidiary ofAcesite Limited (BVI) or ALB, in
October 2011. In July 2011, the Company and CIMAR executed a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA),
which effectively settle all pending cases and controversies between the two parties. In fulfillment of all
the terms and conditions of the MOA, CIMAR's stockholders including all their nominees, agreed to
assign, sell, transfer and convey all existing shares of stocks of CIMARto the Company.

Item 14. Restatements of Accounts

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Waterfront Philippines, Inc. has been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). In particular there have no restatements of
Accounts.

D. Other Matters

Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

Annual report for the year ending December 31, 2017 will be presented to the stockholders for
approval.

2. Minutes of the 2016 Annual Stockholders' Meeting will also be presented to the security holder for
approval.

3.Interim Report as ofJune 30,2018 will bepresented to thesecurity holder for information regarding the
actual situation of the business.

Item. 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted-NONE

Item 17. Amendments of Charter, By-Laws& Other Documents

a. Except for theamendments that theCorporation has made to its by-laws. Article HI, Board ofDirectors,
Sections 3-7, asper Board ofDirectors meeting held onSeptember 1,2004 and Stockholders' meeting held
on September 4,2004, And it was filed and approved withSEC lastSeptember 6,2005. Since then thereis
no other amendments made by the corporation.

b. On May 25, 2012, the application for the increase in Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp.'s authorized capital
stock, one ofWaterfront Philippines Inc.'s subsidiaries, from P310 million to P1.21 billion was approved
by SEC. Accordingly, the Company distributed the 250% stock dividends or246,248,212 shares on July
19,2012 for stockholders of record as of June 25,2012.

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. ^^



r^

SEC 20IS 2018 Definitive

The Board of Directors and the stockholders of Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation approved on June 11,
2009 and July 2, 2009, respectively, the increase of the authorized capital from PI, 210,000,000.00 to P2,
010,000,000.00 via stock rights offering at an entitlement ratio of 0.58:1.

In a special meeting held last July 14, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the amendment of the
entitlement ratio from 0.58:1 to 1:1.

The proceeds will be used for the renovations of rooms, facilities, repair and replacement of equipment
and working capital.

c. In a special meeting also held last July 14, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the proposal to
increase the authorized capital stock of Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Inc, one of Waterfront
Philippines Inc.'s subsidiaries, from P13,800,000.00 to P500,000,000.00, which increase will be paid-up via
declaration of stock dividends in the amount of P262,200,000.00.

d. Waterfront Philippines Inc.'s principal office address is located at No.l Waterfront Drive, Off Salinas
Drive, Lahug, Cebu City as amended in the Articles of Incorporation on December 19,2001.

Item 18. Other Proposed Action

For the coming Stockholders meeting on October 13, 2018 at Waterfront Cebu City Hotel, these are the
following proposed action to be taken:

a. Approval of Minutes of the previous stockholders meeting.

b. Presentation of the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the calendar year 2017
and during the meeting a copy of the 2"<^ quarterly report for 2018 wUI be furnished to the
stockholders.

c. Electionof the board of directors for the ensuing term:
- Mr. Renato B. Magadia
- Mr. Kenneth T. Gatchalian

- Ms. Elvira A. Ting
- Ms. Dee Hua T. Gatchalian

- Mr. Arthur R. Ponsaran

- Mr. Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr.
- Mr. Reno I. Magadia
- Mr. Arthur M. Lopez
- Mr. Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis, Jr.
- Mr. Ruben D. Torres

d. Appointment of External Auditors
The board will recommend KPMG R.G. Manabat &Co., previously KPMG Manabat Sanagustin
and Co., as the Corporate ExternalAuditor for the year 2018.

e. Appointment of External Counsel
For the year 2018, the Board will recommend Corporate Counsels, Philippines as the Legal
Counsel of the Company.

f. Ratification of the acts of theBoard ofDirectors and Management

Acts ofManagement and resolutions of the Board including:

• To appoint and constitute BOD Trustand Investment Group as our Stock Transfer Agent
to issue shares of the company in scrip less or uncertificated form in accordance with
Section 43 of the Securities Regulation Code and to link our database to the
EDR(Electronic DirectRegistration) system of Pastra Net. Inc.
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• Renewal of licenses with government agencies/offices and other contracts and
designation of the authorized signatories.

• All other administrative matters concerning Waterfront Philippines, Inc.

Other than the above mentioned proposed actions there are no other matters that the Board of Directors
intends to present or have the reason to believe others will present at the meeting.

Item 19. Voting Procedures

The vote of stockholders representing at least majority of the issued and outstanding capital stock entitled
to vote is required.

At every meeting of the stockholders of the corporation, each share of stock entitles its owner to one vote,
provided, however, that in the case of election of directors, every stockholder entitled to vote shall be
entitled to cumulate his shares and give one nominee as many votes as the number of directors to be
elected multiplied by the number of his shares, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as
many nominees as he shall see fit, provided that the entire number of votes cast by him shall not exceed
the number of shares owned by him multiplied by the entire number of directors to be elected.

Every stockholder entitled to vote at any meeting of the stockholders may so vote in person or by proxy,
provided that the proxy shall have been appointed in writing by the stockholder himself or by his duly
authorized attorney-in-fact. Unless otherwise provided in the proxy, it shall be valid only for the meeting
at which it has been presented to the Secretary. The instrument authorizing a proxy to act must be in the
hands of the Secretarynot later than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for the meeting axe (Article II,
Sec. 7 of the By-Laws). Voting shallbe by raisinghands and need not be by ballot, the Corporate Secretary
shall duly count any action authorized upon the vote of the majority of the votes cast, except in the
election ofdirectors, whichshallbe on the basisofcumulativevotinghitch.

It is beingnoted that all itemsin the agendashall be voted majority of the stockholders.

THE COMPANY'S ANNUAL REPORT ON SEC FORM 17 A WILL BE PROVIDED WITHOUT
CHARGE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDERS OF RECORD ENTITLE TO
NOTICE OF AND VOTE OF AT THE MEETING, AT THE DISCRETION OF THE MANAGEMENT,
A CHARGE MAY BE MADE FOR EXIBITS, PROVIDED SUCH CHARGE IS LIMITED TO
REASONABLE EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE REGISTRANT IN FURNISHING SUCH EXHIBITS.
Such written request may be directed to our Corporate Secretary, Atty. Arthur R. Ponsaran, with Office
Address at unit 3104 31®' floor Antel Global Corporate Center # 03 Dona Julia Vargas, Ortigas Center
Center Pasig City.

PART II

"WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE NOT
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND A PROXY."
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PART III

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, 1 certify that the information set
forth in this report is true, completeand correct. This report is signed in the City of Cebu on
September 12, 2018.

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. 19

By:
(Simature)

Precilla O. Toriano/Corporate Finance Director
(Printed Name / Tide)



SEC 20132018 Definitive

Financial and Other Information

Management Discussion and Analysis (See Annex I)
Financial Statements (See Annex II)
Changes In and Disagreements with Accounts on Accounting and Financial Disclosure-
NONE.
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ANNEX 1

Theyear 2017 deliveredmixedresultsfor WPI. Yourcompanyhas accomplished majormilestones this
year—foremost of which is our flagship property. Waterfront CebuCityHoteland Casino, breaching the
PHP1 billionmark in gross revenuefor the first time in its history, a breakthrough we can all be very
proud of. For most aspects of operations, 2017 continued the upward trajectoryseen in the past year.
Concurrently, however, challenges have presented themselves, slowing the growth potential in some
areas of our operations. We are confident that these challenges can be resolved by employing the right
strategies towards setting the entire group back in sync and on track.

Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Casino (WCCHC),our largest hotel, remains an excellent performer
overall, with double-digit increases in significant aspects of operations. Occupancy has grown 12%,from
61% in 2016 to 73% iliis year. Revpar is up an impressive 20%, from PHP 1,537 the previous year to PHP
1,852 this year. Rooms generated PHP 359.42 million in 2017 well above PHP 300.67 million in 2016,
another remarkable leap of 20%.F&Bcontributed PHP 348.54 million this year, compared to PHP 308.33
million the past year—yet another double-digit gain of 13%. ARR has increased by 1%, from PHP 2,508 in
2016 to PHP 2,530 in 2017. Rent and related income generated PHP 334.19 million in 2017 compared to
PHP 328.21 million in 2016, up by 2%. Other operating departments produced PHP 11.36 million.

As previously mentioned, gross revenue crossed the PHP 1 billion mark for the first time: from PHP
951.44 million in 2016, it has surged to PHP 1.05billion in 2017—a pivotal achievement and signifying a
leap of PHP 102.07 millionin annual revenue. We are optimistic that the uptrend beyond the one billion
point will continue as the company moves forward and builds on its momentum. GOP is up 7%, from
PHP 393.27million in 2016to PHP 422.16 million this year, which makes for PHP 28.88million of added
revenue. NOP has grown by double digits, from PHP 157.62 million in the past year to PHP 184.29 million
this year—a rise of 17% or PHP 26.66 million in revenue.

These impressive numbers arereinforced byeffective cost control measures. Despite thehigh growth,
WCCHC as a propertymanaged to limitcosts to relatively lowfigures. In 2017, costand expenses for the
property only increased by 13%, at PHP 631.35 million in 2017 compared to PHP 558.17 million in 2016.
Payrolland energy costwere alsokept in check, despite the growth in demand and operations.

Waterfront Airport Hotel and Casino (WAH) demonstrates outstanding production foranother year.
High demand for the property has resulted inone ofourbest-ever annual records for occupancy. From
the previous year's 91%, the occupancy rate for this property skyrocketed to97%, a growth of6%. Revpar
is up by23%, from PHP 2,298 in 2016 to PHP2,838 in 2017. The double-digit growth trendcontinues for
other categories. ARRreflectsa 15% increase from PHP 2,534 in 2016 to PHP 2,927 in 2017. Rooms
revenue is up 21%, from PHP 129.42 million in 2016 to PHP 156.53 million in 2017. F&B revenue

increased from PHP 76.89 million in 2016 to PHP 77.52 million in 2017, a rise of 1%. Rent and related
income isup by10% at PHP 160.62 million versus PHP 145.49 million the pastyear. Other operating
departments collectively grew revenue by 17%, from PHP 11.38 millionin 2016 to PHP13.36 million in
2017. Gross revenue for theproperty grew by12%, from PHP 363.17 million in theprevious year toPHP
408.03 million this year. GOP isup a staggering 24%, from PHP 165.92 million thepastyear toPHP
205.03 million in 2017. NOP increased bydouble digits aswell, growing by19% at PHP103.86 million,
from PHP 87.52 million in 2016.

Cost andexpenses at the property were kept at a minimum, increasing by merely 3% despite the
heightened operations resulting from building demand. Payroll cost increased bya modest 13% and
energy cost increased by only 2%.

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. 22



SEC 2013 2018 Definitive

Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao (WIHD) shows conservative yet still positive overall growth this year.
The property has performed well despite competition from newer properties in the Davao area. ARRis at
PHP 2,212 in 2017, up 5 %from last year's PHP 2,104.Revpar increased by 4% from PHP 1,468 in 2016 to
PHP 1,530 in 2017. Rooms revenue is up by 5% as well, from PHP 80.43 million in 2016 to PHP 84.62
million this year. F&B revenue increased by 1%, from PHP 105.64million in 2016versus PHP 106.98
million in 2017. Occupancy this year is at 69%. Gross revenue is at PHP 196.63 million, up 3% from PHP
191.54 million in 2016.GOP is at PHP 28.83 million. NOP decreased by 2%, from PHP 12.40 million in the
past year to PHP12.09 million this year.

Cost control measures have contributed to sustaining overall profitability. Payroll cost was effectively
dropped by 30%, from PHP 42.95 million the past year to PHP 29.89 million currently. Energy cost was
kept almost level at PHP 27.34 million versus PHP 27.03 million in 2016, a 1% increment.

Manila Pavilion (MPH) has faced considerable stresses this year, resulting in lower performance in
comparison to our provincial properties, which posted double-digit strides, yet the property still
managed to deliver positive figures in some aspects of operations. Occupancy rate is at 50%.Revpar is at
PHP 1,189.ARR increased by 5% from PHP 2,274 in 2016 to PHP 2,378 in 2017. Rooms revenue also
increased by 0.3% from PHP 151.60 million in 2016 to PHP 152.12 million in 2017. Rent and related income
is at PHP 182.34 million. F&B revenue is at PHP 93.85million. Other operating departments generated a
210% increase in income, from PHP 2.66 million in 2016 to PHP 8.25 million in 2017. Gross revenue for the

property is at PHP 436.56 million. GOP is at PHP 65.29 million and NOP is at PHP -43.96 million.

Costcontrol measures havesuccessfully reducedexpenses for the company, with payrollcostand energy
costdecreasing by 3% and 5% respectively. Overallcostand expenses was reduced by 1%.

Thedifficulties faced by MPH in 2017 werein part due to infrastructure challenges in Metro Manila and
the tourism climate, which were not favorable to our Manila property. MPH also experienced a decline in
revenue due to theexpiry of its long-term contract withPAGCOR. We resolved thisbyimmediately
acting upon a newcontract to supplantlost revenue streams.This gap between corporate agreements
reflected on 2017's figures, but the property'sproductivity wouldhave turned around in 2018 had the
contracts materialized.

In thespiritof transparency and timely disclosure, we mustbringup the incident of thefireat the
Pavilion onMarch of2018. While beyond theusualscope of this report, it isa topic thatneeds tobe
addressed. The fire resulted insignificant damage toour Manila property, resulting inits temporary
closure. Rest assured, however, that wehave been working tirelessly towards resuming ourManila
operations andareonthepathtonotmerely rebuilding but transforming it into aneven better property.

Inprevious years, limitations ofthe product—the Pavilion, upon acquisition, having already been an
olderproperty—also limitedthe infrastructure development of the hotel. Now that there is a chance to
start from a completely new blueprint, we are taking the opportunity to rebuild ina revolutionary way.
We plan tomodernize andtruly maximize the hotel's strategic advantages. The Pavilion's unique location
advantage, having the potential to tapmarkets among Manila's neighboring districts for recreation,
historical tourism andbusiness, isabout tobeharnessed toitsfullest potential.

A newand transformed hotelwillbe the mainattraction in thiscapturedmarket ThePavilion is set fora
full upgrade and redesign of facilities to create an optimal experience with an impressively wide range of
options for guests. Full modernization will make it state-of-the-art in its class. The new additions and
upgrades will ensure the buildup ofnew market interest and solidify its competitive edge.

fVateifront Philippines, inc. 23



SEC 20IS 2018 Definitive

Among its new luxurious facilities are a brand-new, fully modernized swimming pool area and recreation
floor, exciting new dining outlets within a fully redesigned casino area, al fresco rooftop dining and a cafe
with an exhilarating view. Rooms will be outfitted with aU-new equipment and amenities, and designed
to fit modem cosmopolitan tastes. The hotel area will undergo a design transformation that will delight
and surprise the market. The new Pavilion will be 360-degree leisure, entertainment, relaxation, business
and hospitality experience as never before. The property being situated in historic Old Manila, one of the
most dynamic business and leisure centers in the Philippines, will once more shine as its crown jewel.

Waterfront's consolidated revenues for the year reflect this mixed outcome among the properties.
Occupancy for the group increased by 3%, from 69% in 2016 to 72% in 2017. Gross revenue is at PHP 2.10
biUion. GOP is at PHP 684.15 million. Net income is at PHP 198.73 million. Rental revenue is at PHP

675.83million. Rooms revenue was boosted by double digits, from PHP 662.12million in 2016 to PHP
752.69 million m 2017,an increase of 14%. F&B revenue is also strong overall, increasing from PHP 595.04
million in 2016 to PHP 629.40million in 2017, a growth of 6 %.Other income is at PHP 47.02 million.
Revpar increased by 13%,from PHP 1,643in 2016to PHP 1,852in 2017. ARRrose by 7%,from PHP 2,355
last year to PHP 2,512 in the current year.

Operating expenses are at PHP 1.42billion. Energy cost was effectively controlled for the group overall,
increasing only by 3%,from PHP 330.68 million in the past year to PHP 339.74 million this year. Payroll
cost dropped by 3%, a decreasefrom PHP 336.52 millionin 2016 to PHP 326.88 million this year.

Despite the challenges, the Waterfront brand remainsas robust as ever.Our new tagline, "We're at the
center of it all." and our new revitalized brandsignify our leadership in the industry, our strength and
ability todraw themarket. What does this mean for ourcompany? It demonstrates an alignment of
objectives, a powerful, unified message anda confident voice. Waterfront continues toleverage its
strengths, both ofitsinfrastructure anditsnetwork, tomaintain a competitive edge in thehospitality
industry.

Being at thecenter ofit allrequires innovation. We continue to beinnovative in reaching ourmarket. Our
online production this year remains consistent with the growing global trend with an23% growth rate on
revenue at PHP329.15 million from lastyear'sPHP268.29 million contributing 43% of the totalRooms
gross revenue. Wearehighly confident in thisareaofgrowth forourcompany as wecontinue toshiftour
focus to tech-sawy markets, which are proving to be ideal markets, and leverage the power ofnew
technology to open doors for our brand.

Maintaming a positive trajectory requires effective andstrategic decision-making. Ourgroup continues to
forge ahead as a market leader by strategically optimizing our assets, locations, organization, operations
and brand todeliver asuperior product and emerge at the top ofour game. We have already carved out
our vision for the company. Waterfront Properties isonaclear trajectory todriving further growth by
moving onourpathwith decisiveness—the ability torespond immediately andeffectively towhatever
challenge lies ahead, and the confidence to rebrand and rebuild better than ever.

Management'sDiscussionand Analysis or Plan of Operation

Figures for Waterfront Properties, however, continue toshow overall strength. The performance ofour
provincial properties provided a much-needed counterbalance, signifying the distribution of growth in
the hospitality market, which is no longer confined to the capital and is moving towards tourism hotspots
in the South. The political climate has also fueled this growth and confidence in the Philippine provinces
as the new gateways for tourism.
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Consolidated figures among the properties reflect this mixed profile. Gross revenue is PHP 2.10 billion.
GOP is PHP 684.15 million. Net income is PHP 198.73 million. Occupancy for the group grew by 3%, from
69% in 2016 to 72% in 2017. Rooms revenue surged from PHP 662.12 million in 2016 to PHP 752.69 million
in 2017, an increase of 14%. Rental revenue is at PHP 675.83 million. F&B revenue increased from PHP

595.04million in 2016 to PHP 629.40million in 2017, a 6% positive growth. Revpar grew by 13%, from
PHP 1,643 in 2016 to PHP 1,852 ttiis year. Other income is at PHP 47.02 million. ARR increased by 7%,
from PHP 2,355 in 2016 to PHP 2,512 in 2017.

Below are the results of operations of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, for the years ending
December 31,2017 and 2016 together with its financial conditions as of the same period.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Amounts in P)

2017 2016

Revenues
2,104,932,423 2,135,345,241

Less: Costs and Expenses 1,420,782,863 1,362,379,137

Gross Income 684,149,560 772,%6,104

Other Expenses (Income) 384,967,631 301,577,757

Net Income (Loss) Before Income Tax
299,181,929 471,388,347

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 100,448,728 152,503361

NET INCOME (LOSS) 198,733,201 318,884,986

Earnings (Loss) Per Share
0.087 0.115

ANCIAL CONDITION (Amounts in P)

2017 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets 2,502,900,348 2,096,232,446

Non Current Assets 6,849,909,245 7,011,111,868

Total Assets 9,352,809,593 9,107,344,314

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 1,929,206,522 1,828,565,697

Non-current Liabilities 1,406,088,464 1,444,411,625

Total Liabilities 3,335,294,986 3,272,977,322

Total Stockholders' Equity 5,150,133,268 4,940,346,932

Minority Interest
867,381,339 894,020,060

Total Liabilities & S/H Equity 9,352,809,593 9,107344314
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Calendar Year -ended December 31.2017 as compared with Calendar Year ended December 31,2016

RESULTS OF OPERATION

Revenues and Earnings per share
Total revenues for year ended Dec. 31, 2017, was lower than the previous year. In actual
performance, revenues from hotel & other subsidiaries for the year 2017 is at P2.10B compared to
2016's P2.14B, decreased by 1.42%

Earnings per share for 2017, P0.087 and P0.115 for 2016. There are no potentially dilutive shares as
of December 31,2017,2016,2015.

Cost and expenses
Cost and expenses of 2017 is at 1.42Bwith 4.29% increased from last year.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Cash and cash equivalents - This account increased by P141.63M which is higher from last year
by 69.33%.

Receivables - Decreased by 3.01%from P235.45M in 2016 to P228.36Min 2017.

Notes Receivable - The Group extended loans to Acesite Leisure and Entertainment Corporation
(ALEC)amounting to P195.01 million payable on December 31, 2018, and bear interest at 4% per
annum (see Note 21).The loan is guaranteed by another entity in behalf of ALEC.

Inventories - Inventories increased by 20.33% from last year.

Duefrom related parties-current portion - The account increased to P64.22M an amount equivalent
to 4.18%. This represents interest bearing advances to TWGI,PRC and Crisanta Realty. It also
includes from PHESwhich is non-interest bearing. This year of 2017, these advances are due in
one year, subject to yearly renewal and re-pricing.

Prepaid expenses andother currentassets - An increasedof P7.16M from last year's P90.40M.
Prepaid expensesare defined as payment for servicesand/or benefitsyet to be performed or
received; it also includes prepaid taxes and insurance.

Property plant&equipment - Thisyear at 2.95% decreased fromlast year's P6.59B. In compliance
with PAS 27, propertyand equipment (except operatingand transportationequipments) were
carried at revalued amounts effective 2009.

Other non current assets - There is an increased ofP2.56M on thisaccount, an amountequivalent to
9.14% compared from last year.

Current Liabilities - Theaccount consisted of trade payable, income tax payable, accruals and loans
payable.The account increased by 5.50% from last year; P1.83B in 2016 to P1.93B in 2017.

Loans Payable - Remained static at P375M.This consisted ofSSS Loan only. PBB loanwasfuUy
paid on April 29,2016 while ICBC loan was also fuUy paid March31,2016.

Other current liabilities - The account resulted a decreased of 40.03%. This refers to
concessionaire, other deposits and deferred income.
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Calendar Year ended December 31.2016 as compared with Calendar Year ended December 31.2015

RESULTS OF OPERATION

Revenues and Earnings per share
Total revenues for year ended Dec. 31, 2016, was higher than the previous year. In actual
performance, revenues from hotel & other subsidiaries for the year 2016 is at P2.14B compared to
2015's P2.10B. Increase of 34.44M or 1.90%

Earnings per share for 2016, P0.115 compared to 2015 at P0.051. There are no potentially dilutive
shares as of December 31,2016,2015,2014.

Cost and expenses
Cost and expensesof 2016 is at 1.36B with 42M decreasefromlast year or 2.99%.

HNANCIAL CONDITION

Cash and cashequivalents - This account increased by P31.13M which is higherfrom lastyearby
17.97%.

Receivables - Increased by 10.33% from P213.71M in 2015 to P235.45M in 2016.

Inventories - Inventoriesdecreased by 3.79% from last years P29.30M.

Duefrom related parties-current portion - The account decreased to P72.31M an amount equivalent
to4.49%. This represents interest bearing advances toTWGI, PRC andCrisanta Realty. It also
includes fromPHES whichis non-interest bearing. Thisyearof2016, these advances are due in
one year, subject to yearly renewal and re-pricing.

Prepaid expenses and other current assets - Anincreased ofP13.42M from lastyear's
P76.98M.Prepaid expenses aredefined aspayment for services and/or benefits yettobe
performed or received; it alsoincludes prepaid taxes and insurance.

Property plant &equipment - This year at11.13% increased from last year P5.93B. Incompliance
with PAS 27, property and equipment (except operating andtransportation equipments) were
carried at revalued amoimts effective 2009.

Availableforsale investments - InJuly andAugust 2005, the BOD approved theconversion of
APHC's net receivables from related parties amounting to P43.30 million into86.71 million shares
of stock ofWn which are listed inthe PSE. The conversion resulted toa loss on exchange ofassets
ofP31.10 million for APHC. The fair market value ofthe shares based onclosing market price as
atDecember 31,2016 and 2015 amounted to P16.82 million and P18.21 million, respectively.
Valuation loss recognized in OCI in 2016 and 2015 amounted to P1.39 million and P4.77 million,
respectively, while a valuation gain amounting toP6.07 million was recognized in2014.

Other non current assets - There is a decreased of P12.71M on this account, an amount equivalent
to 31.24% comparedfromlastyear.

Current Liabilities - The account consists of trade payable, income tax payable, accruals and
loans payable. The account decreased by 25.16% from last year; P2.44B in2015 toP1.83B in2016.

Loans Payable - Decreased by 24.40% orP121.03M. This consists ofSSS Loan only. PBB loan was
fully paid onApril 29,2016 while ICBC loan was also fully paid March 31,2016.

Other current liabilities - The account resulted a decreased of 95.27%. Decreased of P516.91M
was attributable toConcessionaires' andother deposits andCurrent portion ofadvance rental.
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TOP 5 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

As of December 31,2016,2015 and 2014

December 2017 December 2016 December 2015

Occupancy percentage 72% 69% 66%

Average Room Rates 2,512 2,355 2,270

Average Food Covers 321,947 304,378 324,326

Average Food Checks 402.26 368.34 368.28

Average Food Costs 36% 36% 42%

Occupancy Percentage
The Company's occupancy percentage for 2017 was 72%, higher by 3% as compared to last year's 69%.
This is computed by dividing the total number of rooms sold over the total number of rooms available for
sale.

Average Room Rate
Average room rate increased by 7% compared to last year's balance of 2,355. It is computed by dividing
the total rooms revenue over total number of rooms sold.

Average Food Covers
Foodcoversincreasedby 6%. Thispertains to increasingnumber of guests that availed our outlets.

Average Food Checks
The average food checks or theaverage consumption perguestincreased by9%. Asalways, theCompany
has doubled its efforts in satisfying the eclectic tastes of the guests and marketing them by various
promotions.

Average Food Costs
Food costs for 2017 at 36%. The Company is continually contemplating ways to avoid higher food costs
without jeopardizing thequality ofitsproducts. Total cost offood sold divided byfood revenue.

Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors:

(i) Any known Trends, Events or Uncertainties-(material impact onliquidity)-NONE

(ii) There areno events thatwill trigger direct orcontingent financial obligation thatis
material to thecompany, including anydefault or acceleration ofan obligation.

(iii) There arenomaterial off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including, contingent obligations), andotherrelationships ofdiecompany with
unconsolidated entities or otherpersons created during the reporting period.

(iv)There arenomaterial commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of
suchcommitments, expected sources offunds forsuchexpenditures.

(v) From continuing operations, the Company isnotexposed toany significant elements of
income or lossexcept for those alreadyaffecting profitor loss.

(vi) Causes ofmaterial changes inthe items inthe financial statements from the year ending 31
December 2017 - NONE
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Interim Periods and Comparable Discussions to Assess Material Changes:

Discussion and analysison the operating results for the 1st quarter of 2018 is briefly
discussed on the attached SEC Form 17Q while for the 2nd quarter ended June 30,2018
will be attached on or before the scheduled date of 2017 Annual Stockholders Meeting which is
duly receivedby SEC beforeits deadline on September04,2018. Attached herewith in this report
is a Letterof Undertaking whichstates the distributionofSEC Form17-Q 2nd quarter of 2018
during the Annual Stockholders Meeting.

OPERATIONAL AND HNANCIAL INFORMATION

Market for Registranfs Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
1. The stocks of WPI shares which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange for the last two calendar
years are as set out hereunder:

Peso High Low

2018

January - March 2018
April-Jime 2018

1.350

1.030

0.790

0.720

Peso High Low

2017

January - March 2017
April- June 2017
July- September 2017
October- December 2017

0.650

1.080

1.520

1.230

0.335

0.375

0.810

0.870

Peso High Low

2016

January - March 2016
April- June 2016
July- September 2016
October- December 2016

0.360

0.410

0.380

0.365

0.305

0.320

0.320

0.320

The number of stockholders of record as of December 31, 2017 on the Register of Shareholders was 402
but thecompany is not able to identify the actual number ofbeneficial owners who are registered under
thename of themember companies of the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). Common shares outstanding
as of December 31, 2017 were 2,498,991,753. There are no sales for the last three years of unregistered
securities.

2.TheListof top 20stockholders of recordas ofJuly31,2018 is as stated hereunder:

Name of Stockholder of Record No. of Shares %

1 The Wellex Group, Inc. 1,128,466,800 45.157

2 PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 594,260,373 23.780

3 Silver Green Investments LTD 180,230,000 7.212

4. Chesa Holdings, Inc. 175,924,000 7.040

5. Tybalt Investment LTD 135,010,000 5.403

6. Pacific Wide Realty Development Corp. 36,445,000 1.458

7. PCD Nominee Corporation (Non-Filipino) 33,146,501 1.326

8. Kenneth T. Gatchalian 30,000,100 1.200

9. Rexlon T. Gatchalian 30,000,000 1.200

10. Weslie T. Gatchalian 30,000,000 1.200
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11. Forum Holdings Corporation 20,626,000 0.825

12. Primary Structures Corporation 16,212,500 0.649

13. Pacific Rehouse Corporation 15,598,900 0.624

14. Rexlon T. Gatchalian 14,740,000 0.590

15. Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities, Inc. 14,370,000 0.575

16. Mizpah, Holdings Inc. 10,489,200 0.420

17. Elvira A. Ting 10,000,009 0.400

18. Catalina Roxas Melendres 6,246, 000 0.250

19. Manuel H. Osmena 1,400,000 0.056

20. Rolando M. Lim 1,142,500 0.046

3. The common stock of the company is being traded currently in the Philippine Stock Exchange. On June
16, 1999, the Parent Company declared cash dividend of Php 0.02 per share on its Common Shares
outstanding as of May 15,1999. This amounted to Php 19.23million. The Parent Company also declared a
10% stock dividend as of September 15,1999 record date.

Company has not issue dividends since the year 2000. However, it promises to declare dividends once the
deficit is offset and the market for the coming years proper.

There is no restriction made by the company with regards to the declaration of giving a dividend to
stockholders.

4. Issuance and Exchange of Securities

In 2008, the Parent Company sold its investment in APHC totaling 4,900,000 shares at varying selling
price through the PSE. Total proceeds from the sales transactions, net of related expenses and taxes,
amounted to P 48.2 million. Gain on sale of APHC shares amounting to PlO.l million was recognized in
the December 31,2008 consolidated statements of operations. The total proceeds from the sale transaction
amounting to P48.2 million, which was provided to TWGI s cash advances was recorded as receivable
from TWGI and part of the "Due from related parties" account in the consolidated balance sheets (see
Note 9). As of December 31,2008, the Parent Company's equity interest in APHC decreased to 69% FROM
75% IN 2007.

Date of Sale and Title

and

Amount of Securities

Sold

Names of Underwriters

of Identity to whom it
May Sold

Share # of Swap SEC FORM

December 22, 2008 -

Common-4,700,000
Not applicable 500,000 @ P9.40 10.1

June 19, 2008 -
Common-20,000,000

Not applicable 2,000,000 ©PIO.OO 10.1

June 26, 2008 -
Common-7,000,000

Not applicable 700,000 ©PIO.OO 10.1

June 30, 2008 -
Common-7,610,000

Not applicable 761,000 ©PIO.OO 10.1

July 2, 2008
Common - 9,390,000

Not applicable 9,390,000 @ P15.00 10.1
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Corporate Governance

The foUowing are the point-by-pointcomplianceof the Company to the Manual:

TheCompany has a compliance officer in the name of Precilla O.Toriano as required by the Manual for
CorporateGovernance. SaidCompliance Officer reported directly to the Chairmanof the Board and in his
absence, to the executivesof the Company.

The Compliance Officer monitored the compliance regarding the provisions and requirements of the
Corporate for Governance Manual.

The Compliance Officer is issuing this certification to the extent of compliance of the Company to this
Manual.

The Compliance Officer has identified, monitor and controlled the compliance risks involved in the
Company considering the large scope of its operations and the accounting procedures that have to be
done correspondingly.

The Board of Directors has taken care of its responsibility to foster long-term success of the Corporation
through its meeting every other month. Each meeting has been carefully recorded in minutes. The
authority given to each Board member has been within the by-laws of the Company and within the limits
of the law.

The Board of Directors has implemented a process of selection to ensure the combination of its directors
and officers.

TheCorporation through the Board and the Corporate Secretary has complied with all the relevantlaws,
regulations and codes of best business practices.

The Board of Directors has implemented the proper disclosure of information to its stockholders as
exemplified in the General Information Statement sent to each of them.

According to Company's assessment, the directors have conducted fair business transactions with the
Corporation, seen to it that personal interests did not prejudice their Board decisions, have devoted time
and attention needed for the discharge of their duties and responsibilities, acted judiciously, exercised
independent judgment, observed confidentiality, and ensured the continuing soundness, effectiveness
and adequacy of the Corporation's internal control environment.

The Board has created committees, namely: the Nomination Committee, Compensation &Remuneration
Committee, and the Audit Committee.

The Nomination Committee, composed of 3 voting directors (one is independent), is in charge of the
screening ofthecandidates for a seatin theBoard ofDirectors inaccordance to the qualifications setin the
Manual. Said Committee has also considered the disqualifications specifically enumerated.

The Compensation and Remuneration Committee is composed of three members, one of them is
independent as provided for in the guidelines.

The Compensation and Remuneration Committee has made sure that the compensation ofthe key officers
and executives ofthe Company was inline with the culture and policies ofthe Company.

The Compensation and Remuneration Committee has developed a formal and transparent procedure for
developing a policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual
directors and officers. The Committee has also developed a system regarding disclosure of all the
incoming officers as to their business interests which might be in conflict with that of the Company. No
director or officer has been allowed to decide on his own remuneration.
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The Compensation and Remuneration Committee has provided annual reports, information and proxy
statementson the disclosure of the compensation for the executives and officers of the Company.

The Audit Committee has been composed of three members, one of whom is independent. The said
Committee has reviewed all financial reports against compliance with both the internal financial
management policy and pertinent accounting standards. The Committee has also reviewed management
policies on financial management, audit plans, interface with the internal and external auditors. The
Committee has also developed a financial management system that ensured the integrity of internal
control activities throughout the Company.

The Corporate Secretary of Waterfront Philippines, Inc. is Atty. Arthur R. Ponsaran, a Filipino citizen. He
possesses the administrative and interpersonal skills. He is also a Certified Public Accountant. He
gathered all documents with regard to the discharge of his duties and responsibilities, prepared board
meeting notices, submitted through the SEC 17-Cthe annual certification as to attendance of the directors
during Board meetings.

The External Auditor for the year 2017 and 2016 is KPMG R.G. Manabat & Co., and was chosen by the
Board and approved by the stockholders upon recommendations of the Audit Committee.

The Internal Auditor reporting directly to the Audit Committee provided reasonable assurance that the
key organizational and procedural controls were effective, appropriate and complied.
The Manual for Corporate Governance has been made available to discerning stockholders during office
hours of Waterfront Philippines, Inc.

The reports required for the Manual were prepared and submitted to the Commission.
All material information that could potentially affect shares were publicly disclosed in accordance with
the rules of the Philippine Stock Exchange and the Commission. The Annual Reports were properly
disseminated to the stockholders.

The stockholders were given the right to elect, remove and replace directors in accordance with the
Corporation Code. Cumulative was used during the last annual stockholders' meeting. They were also
provided the power of inspection of the corporate books and records including the minutes of the Board
Meetings, without costs and restrictions.

Other Matters

The Compliance Officerwas deemed to have reported grave violations of the Manual but since there was
none, none was reported.

The Compliance Officer was deemed to have appeared before the Securities and Exchange Commission
upon summons but since there was none, said Officer was not compelled to, or Waterfront Philippines,
Inc. being a holding company and limited in terms ofphysical office space withonly a few people holding
key functions, it wasenough thata few copies were available for inspection byaU ofitsfew employees.

The company did not issue anyadditional shares during theyearto make useof thepre-emptive rightfor
the stockholders.

The shareholders had been granted the right to propose the holding ofa meeting, right to propose items
in the agenda, but to date none has been communicated to the management of the Company regarding
such proposals.

None sofarhas expressed toexercise his righttoAppraisal in thelastannual meeting ofthestockholders.

The company has submitted its Revised Manual on Corporate Governance in accordance with SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 6,series of2009 "Revised Code ofCorporate Governance.
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, ARTHUR M. LOPEZ, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of The Ritz Tower
Condominium, 6745 Ayala Avenue, Makati City, after having been duly sworn to
in accordance with lawdo hereby declare that:

1. I am a nominee for independent director of Waterfront Philippines Inc. and
have been its independent director since 2014.

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP PERIOD OF SERVICE
AML Hotel Consultancy Principal/Owner 2010-present
Waterfront Phils. Inc Independent Director 2002 - present
Acesite ( Phils.) Hotel Corporation Chairman/ Independent Director 2004 - present
Phil. Estates Corporation Director 1996 - present
Phil. Hotel Owners Association Inc. President 2006 - present
Hotel Management and Development
Consultant (Double Dragon Properties Corp)

Consultant 2013-present

Hotel of Asia Inc- Hotel 101 Manila, Hotel 101
Fort, Hotel 101 Management Corp.

Hotel Management Consultant 2013 - present

„Bellevue (Bohol, Manila, Quezon City, Baguio) Hotel Management Consultant 2003 - present
'Wydham Garden Quezon City ( Wellworth
Properties and Development Corporation)

Hotel Management and Development
Consultant and Project Consultant

2016-present

LP3 Emerald Hotel & Casino ;Mactan, Cebu
City

Hotel Management and Development
Consultant and Project Consultant

2017 - present

Sweetwater Corporation - Azumar Resort
Hotel and Tahanan Resort, Siargao

Hotel Management, Technical Services
and Project Consultant

Present

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as
an Independent Director of Waterfront Phils. Inc., as provided for in
Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and
Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4. I am related to the following director /officer/substantial shareholder of
(covered comoanv and its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the
relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code,
(where applicable)

NAME OF

DIRECTOR/OFFICER/SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER

COMPANY NATURE OF

RELATIONSHIP

N/A N/A N/A

i

To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal
or administrative investigation or proceeding/I disclose that I am the
subject of the following criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding
(as the case may be):



V.

•./

OFFENSE

CHARGED/INVESTIGATED
TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY

INVOLVED
STATUS

N/A N/A N/A

6. (For those in government service/affiliated with a government agency or
GOCC) I have the required written permission or consent from the (head
of the agency/department) to be an independent director in

pursuant to Office of the President
Memorandum Circular No.17 and Section 12 Rule XVIII of the Revised
Service Rules.

7. Ishall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its
implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and
other SEC issuances.

8. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of of any
changes in the abovementioned information within five days from its
occurrence.

Done, this
AUG 2 8 2018

day of .. at

Affiant

AUG 2.8 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of

at

and exhibited to me his

Doc. No. /jC
Page No. Jn
Book No. y
Series of ^ \t

on

f?OLLNo
4, 40417

NOTARY
PUBLIC

_, affiant personally appeared before me
issued at

0

! a •
1 ;

JOSELITO RAI
NOTARY PUBL^

NOTARIAL COMMISSION

LOWER LEVEL, WATERPRONT CEBU Cll
ONE SALINAS DRIVE, LAHUQ,

ROLL OFATTORNEY'S NO. 40417
FTR NO 1433813/CEBU CrrY/12/28/17

IBPLIFETIME MEMBER NO.05244

Till©



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, SERGIO ORTIZ- LUIS JR, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 151 corner 3^*^ St., and'10"' Ave.,
Riverside Village, Pasig, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare
that:

I am a nominee for independent director of Waterfront Philippines Inc. and have been its

independent director since 2013.

I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP PERIOD OF

SERVICE
Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation Independent Director 2013- present
Alliance Global Vice Chairman 2007- present
Phil.Chamber of Commerce & Industry Honorary Chairman/Treasurer 2008- present
PHILEXPORT President/ CEO 1991- present
ECOP Past President/ Honorary

Chairman
2010- present

Philippine Estates Corporation Director 2015- present
International Chamber of Commerce of
the Philippines

Founding Director present

Manila Exposition Complex inc ( World
Trade Center)

Director present

Consulate of Romania in the Philippines Honorary Consul General 2015- present

The Wellex Group Director present

I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independent
Director of Waterfront Philippines Ino as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities
Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

I am related to the following director /officer/substantial shareholder of (covered comoanv and
its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the

NAME OF

DIRECTOR/OFFICER/SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER

COMPANY NATURE OF

RELATIONSHIP

N/A N/A N/A

.

To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or administrative
investigation or proceeding/I disclose that I am the subject of the following
criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):"

OFFENSE

CHARGED/INVESTIGATED
TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY

INVOLVED
STATUS

N/A N/A N/A



6. (For those in government service/affiliated with a government agency or GOCC) I have the required
written permission or consent from the (head of the aaencv/department) to be an independent director
in , pursuant to Office of the President Memorandum Circular No.17 and
Section 12 Rule XVill of the Revised Service Rules.

7. i shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent director
under the Securities Regulation Code and its implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate
Governance and other SEC issuances.

8.1 shall inform the Corporate Secretary of
abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence.

Done, this. AU6 2 at

of any changes in the

AUG 2 8 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of.

Affiant

at
., affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his / her

issued at on

Doc. No
Page No. V
Book No
Series

15

•^OU.No'̂ X
. ft. / 40417 j
' \ notary /*.

JOSBLtTo R4lltoM I
notariallOWER LEVEL, VVAT£RMoN?rl:D^ ^^13

JS77LIO



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, RUBEN D. TORRES, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of #22 Kalaw Ledesma Circle, Tierra
Verde Homes; Tandang Sora, Quezon City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with
law do hereby declare that:

1. I am a nominee for independent director of Waterfront Philippines Inc. and have been its

independent director since 2014.

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP PERIOD OF

SERVICE

BPO Workers Association of the Phils.
(BWAP)

President Present

Trade Union Congress of the Philippines VP- International Affairs Present
Services Exporters Risk Management &
Consultancy Co (SERMC)

Chairman / CEO Present

Torres Caparas Torres Law Offices Senior Partner 1998- present
Waterfront Philippines Inc. Board of Director 2006- present
Acesite Philippines Hotel Corp Board of Director 2014- present

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of Acesite Phils Hotel Corp, as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC
issuances.

4. I am related to the following director /officer/substantial shareholder of (covered comoanv
and its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3

NAME OF

DIRECTOR/OFFICER/SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER

COMPANY NATURE OF

RELATIONSHIP

N/A N/A N/A

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding/I disclose that Iam the subjectof the following
criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):

OFFENSE

CHARGED/INVESTIGATED
TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY

INVOLVED
STATUS

N/A N/A N/A

6. (For those in government service/affiliated with a government agency or GOCC) I have the
required written permission or consent from the (head of the aaencv/department) to be an



independent director in
Memorandum CircularNo.17and Section 12 Rule XVIII of the Revised Service Rules

,, pursuant to Office of the President

7.1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent
director under the Securities Regulation Code and Its Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code
of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8.1 shall inform the Corporate Secretary of
abovementioned inforniatioQ within five days from its occurrence.:ioned inforniatipQ wit

aug 2^ m
of any changes in the

Done, this day of .. at

AfRailt

AUG 2 8 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN tobefore methis day of. at

affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his / her
Issued at on

Doc. No.
Page No.
Book No.
Series of

f-
m "^OLLNo"'''

. 40417 ,
\ NOTARY / «

PUBLIC /-to
V '

jommoHj

(SSO, 76-OB; UNt\Q{D&€. I
,a WATfiRFROiCrCEBU ^ HOret

fAliNAS DRIVE, LAHUG, CEButnY
ROLL OF ATTORNEY'S NO. 40417

PTRNO 1433813/CEBU CITY/12/28/17
iBP LIFETIME MEMBER NO. 05244



CERTIFICATION

I, ARTHUR R. PONSARAN, of legal age and with office address at Unit 3104 Ante! Global
Corporate Center, #3 Dona Julia Vargas Avenue, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, after being duly sworn to
In accordance with law, do hereby certify:

I am the duly elected Corporate Secretary of WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES INC., a corporation
duly organized and existing under Philippine laws with principal office at 1 Salinas Drive, Lahug city,
Cebu.

All incumbent directors and officers of the Corporation are not connected with any

government agency or instrumentality, except for Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr. Attached herewith is a
copy of his Consent Letter for your reference.

I execute this Certification to comply with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

SEP 12 2018
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this day of September 2018

in the City of Pasig.

ART>fUR R. PONSARAN
Corporate Secretary ' 7 /

Subscribed and sworn to before me this SEP 12 2016 at iBIY BP MJIMH /. affiant

exhibiting to me his TIN with No. 127-640-176.

Doc. No. (dlff
Page No. 12Pf
Book No.

ATTY.
Nota \ I'l-hlit Until Dec.31, 20
Nolaiiui Commission

'BP# 0124.3^ Pi)sic>>7^7 until 2019
Series of 2018. 1-4-2018

^ TIN# 103-098-346
MCLECtmpL No. V-U(K)62()9until4-14.T9



PHILIPPINE NATIONAL

CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

ATTY. LAMBERTO 8. MERCADO JR.
Board of Directors Member
PNCC

06 October 2017

Subject: PERMISSION TO OCCUPY MEMBERSHIP
IN THE BOARD OF DIRCETORS

Dear Atty Mercado:

Anent your request for written permission in occupying membership in the
board of directors of other corporations, authority is granted upon you to engage
as such director, provided that such engagement does not conflict with your official
function as member of the PNCC Board.

^____^Very truly youfs,

MARIO K.

KM. 15 EAST SERVICE ROAD, BICUTAN, PARAI^AQUE CITY. METRO MANILA. PHILIPPINES *ZIP CODE 1700
FAX O.P.846-0591; DIRECT LINE : 846-0209 : TRUNK LINE ; 846-3045



UNDERTAKING

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. hereby undertake to distribute a copy of SEC FORM 17-Q
for the 2"*^ quarter of2018 to WPI Stockholders during the Annual Meeting to be held
on October 13, 2018.

KENNETH T. GATCHALIAN

.President



OUTSTANDING BALANCES FOR A SPECIFIC COMPANY

Company Code - WPIOOOOOOOOO

WATERFRONT PHILS., WARRANT

Business Date: June 29.2018

BPNAME HOLDINGS

UPCC SECURITIES CORP. 670,500

A & A SECURITIES, INC. 347,200

ABACUS SECURITIES CORPORATION 17.959,686

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL INC 46,823,904

A. T. DE CASTRO SECURITIES CORP. 154,000

ALL ASIA SECURITIES MANAGEMENT CORP. 202,500

ALPHA SECURITIES CORP. 1,429,000

BA SECURITIES. INC. 1,585,200

AP SECURITIES INCORPORATED 19,553,000

ANSALDO, GODINEZ & CO.. INC. 2,157,700

AB CAPITAL SECURITIES. INC. 5.008.500

SB EQUITIES.INC. 4,096,100

ASIA PACIFIC CAPITAL EQUITIES & SECURITIES CORP. 832,800

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC. 653,000

ASTRA SECURITIES CORPORATION 5,000

BELSON SECURITIES. INC. 3,987,300

BENJAMIN CO CA & CO., INC. 400,000

B. H. CHUA SECURITIES CORPORATION 2,922,500

JAKA SECURITIES CORP. 8,655,500

BPI SECURITIES CORPORATION 43,695,080

CAMPOS. LANUZA & COMPANY, INC. 1,952,702

SINCERE SECURITIES CORPORATION 1,605,000

BDO NOMURA SECURITIES INC 18,727,798

CITISECURITIES, INC. 1,228,350

TRITON SECURITIES CORP. 3,872,450

IGC SECURITIES INC. 2,048,000

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 110,500

DBP-DAIWA CAPITALMARKETS PHILPPINES, INC. 2,200

DAVID GO SECURITIES CORP. 1,167,000

DIVERSIFIED SECURITIES, INC. 1,443,800

E. CHUA CHIACO SECURITIES. INC. 4,006,100

EQUITABLE SECURIITES (PHILS.) INC. 27,200

EAST WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION 400,000

EASTERN SECURITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 3,644,200

EQUITIWORLD SECURITIES. INC. 2,357,600

EVERGREEN STOCK BROKERAGE & SEC., INC. 4,910,298

FIRST ORIENT SECURITIES. INC. 2,798,100

FIRSTINTEGRATED CAPITAL SECURITIES. INC. 100

F. YAP SECURITIES. INC. 1,222,000

AURORA SECURITIES. INC. 826,700

GLOBALINKSSECURITIES & STOCKS. INC. 1,374,400
JSG SECURITIES. INC. 151,650

GOLDSTAR SECURITIES. INC. 615,300

GUILD SECURITIES. INC. 105,000

HDI SECURITIES. INC. 3,040,500

H. E. BENNETT SECURITIES. INC. 20,000

HK SECURITIES. INC. 9,100

1.ACKERMAN & CO., INC. 30,000

1.B. GIMENEZ SECURITIES.INC. 532,097

INVESTORSSECURITIES. INC. 698,000

IMPERIAL,DE GUZMAN.ABALOS & CO..INC. 573,800



BPNAME HOLDINGS

INTRA-INVEST SECURITIES, INC. 287,400

ASIAN CAPITAL EQUITIES, INC. 56,100

J.M. BARCELON & CO., INC. 927,000

VALUE QUEST SECURITIES CORPORATION 200,000

STRATEGIC EQUITIES CORP. 899,900

LARRGO SECURITIES CO., INC. 122,000

LOPEZ, LOCSIN, LEDESMA & CO., INC. 3,300

LUCKYSECURITIES, INC. 598,500

LUVSSECURITIES COMPANY, INC. 365,500

MANDARIN SECURITIES CORPORATION 1,263,200

COL Financial Group, Inc. 172,549,754

DA MARKET SECURITIES, INC. 222,200

MERCANTILE SECURITIES CORP. 88,800

MERIDIAN SECURITIES, INC. 2,202,700

MDR SECURITIES, INC. 736,000

DEUTSCHE REGIS PARTNERS, INC. 866,300

MOUNT PEAK SECURITIES, INC. 111,000

NEW WORLD SECURITIES CO., INC. 2,922,000

NIEVES SECURITIES, INC. 200,000

OPTIMUM SECURITIES CORPORATION 199,250

RCBC SECURITIES, INC. 4,487,300

PAN ASIA SECURITIES CORP. 335,000

PAPA SECURITIES CORPORATION 4,145,500

MAYBANK ATR KIM ENG SECURITIES, INC. 13,008,400

PLATINUM SECURITIES, INC. 178,000

PNB SECURITIES, INC. 873,260

PREMIUM SECURITIES, INC. 1,923,600

PRYCE SECURITIES, INC. 12,124

SALISBURY BKT SECURITIES CORPORATION 15,300

QUALITY INVESTMENTS & SECURITIES CORPORATION 11,970,300

R & L INVESTMENTS, INC. 342,000

R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC. 3,914,100

REGINA CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 5,589,976

R. NUBLA SECURITIES, INC. 3,683,100

AAA SOUTHEAST EQUITIES, INCORPORATED 2,259,100

R. S. LIM & CO., INC. 748,400

RTG & COMPANY, INC. 276,600

S.J. ROXAS & CO., INC. 803,500

SECURITIES SPECIALISTS, INC. 217,200

FIDELITYSECURITIES, INC. 244,500

SUMMIT SECURITIES, INC. 1,142,300

STANDARD SECURITIES CORPORATION 1,146,200

SUPREME STOCKBROKERS, INC 31,350

TANSENGCO & CO., INC. 847,200

THE FIRST RESOURCES MANAGEMENT & SECURITIES CORP. 353,200

TOWER SECURITIES, INC. 14,912,100

TRANS-ASIA SECURITIES, INC. 725,500

APEX PHILIPPINES EQUITIES CORPORATION 7,000

TRENDLINE SECURITIES CORPORATION 11,200

TRI-STATE SECURITIES, INC. 175,500

UCPB SECURITIES, INC. 2,394,700

UOB KAY HIAN SECURITIES(PHILS.), INC. 300,000

E.SECURITIES, INC. 3,300

VENTURE SECURITIES, INC, 144,900
FIRST METRO SECURITIES BROKERAGE CORP. 33,141,589

WEALTH SECURITIES, INC. 8,496,490

WESTLINK GLOBAL EQUITIES, INC. 51,615,540
BERNAD SECURITIES, INC. 677,100



BPNAME HOLDINGS

WONG SECURITIES CORPORATION 44,000

YAO & ZIALCITA, INC. 2,025,500

YU & COMPANY, INC. 3,939,000

BDO SECURITIES CORPORATION 4,291,000

EAGLE EQUITIES, INC. 1,026,800

GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES & HOLDINGS, INC. 2,654,576

SOLAR SECURITIES, INC. 4,070,600

G.D. TAN & COMPANY, INC. 2,104,300

PHILIPPINE EQUITY PARTNERS, INC. 2,151,950

UNICAPITALSECURITIES INC. 2,375,900

SunSecurltles, Inc. 400,000

ARMSTRONG SECURITIES, INC. 5,300

KING'S POWER SECURITIES, INC. 72,000

TIMSON SECURITIES, INC. 5,591,000

STAR ALLIANCE SECURITIES CORP. 500,000

CITIBANK N.A. 300,000

DEUTSCHE BANKMANILA-CLIENTS A/C 18,301,000

STANDARD CHARTERED BANK 940,000

TOTAL 627,404,674

If no written notice of any error or correction Is received by PDTC within five (5) calendar days from
receipt hereof, you shall be deemed to have accepted the accuracy and completeness of the details

Indicated in this report.



COMPANY NAME : WATERFRONT PHILS., INC.

STOCKHOLDER'S NAME OUTSTANDING &

ISSUED SHARES

(FULLY PAID)

LIST OF ALL STOCKHOLDERS

As Of July 31, 2018

OUTSTANDING fi,

ISSUED SHARES

(PARTIALLY PAID)

TOTAL

HOLDINGS

(SUBSCRIBED)

Page

PERCENTAGE NATIONALIT

TO

TOTAL

THE WELLEX GROUP, INC. 1,128,466,800 0 1,128,466,800 45.157 FILIPINO

PCD NOMINEE CORP. (FILIPINO) 594,260,373 0 594,260,373 23.780 FILIPINO

SILVER GREEN INVESTMENTS LTD. 180,230,000 0 180,230,000 7.212 OTHERS

CHESA HOLDINGS, INC. 175,924,000 0 175,924,000 7.040 FILIPINO

TYBALT INVESTMENT LTD. 135,010,000 0 135,010,000 5.403 BRITISH

PACIFIC WIDE REALTY DEVELOPMENT CORP. 36,445,000 0 36,445,000 1.458 FILIPINO

PCD NOMINEE CORP. (NON-FILIPINO) 33,146,501 0 33,146,501 1.326 OTHERS

KENNETH T. GATCHALIAN 30,000,100 0 30,000,100 1.200 FILIPINO

REXLON T. GATCHALIAN 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 1.200 FILIPINO

WESLIE T. GATCHALIAN 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 1.200 FILIPINO

FORUM HOLDINGS CORPORATION 20,626,000 0 20,626,000 0.825 FILIPINO

PRIMARY STRUCTURES CORPORATION 16,212,500 0 16,212,500 0.649 FILIPINO

PACIFIC REHOUSE CORPORATION 15,598,900 0 15,598,900 0.624 FILIPINO

REXLON GATCHALIAN 14,740,000 0 14,740,000 0.590 FILIPINO

METRO ALLIANCE HOLDINGS S EQUITIES, INC. 14,370,000 0 14,370,000 0.575 FILIPINO

MIZPAH HOLDINGS, INC. 10,489,200 0 10,489,200 0.420 FILIPINO

ELVIRA A. TING 10,000,009 0 10,000,009 0.400 FILIPINO

CATALINA ROXAS MELENDRES 6,246,000 0 6,246,000 0.250 FILIPINO

MANUEL H. OSMENA &/0R MANUEL L. OSMENA II 1,400,000 0 1,400,000 0.056 FILIPINO

ROLANDO M. LIM 1,142,500 0 1,142,500 0.046 FILIPINO

FELIPE A CRUZ JR. 1,100,000 0 1,100,000 0.044 FILIPINO

MARIA CONCEPCION CRUZ 876,000 0 876,000 0.035 FILIPINO

FREYSSINET PHILIPPINES, INC. 770,000 0 770,000 0.031 FILIPINO

BENSON COYUCO 605,000 0 605,000 0.024 FILIPINO

LUCENA B. ENRIQUEZ 552,000 0 552,000 0.022 FILIPINO

EMILY LIM 500,000 0 500,000 0.020 FILIPINO

DEE HUA T. GATCHALIAN 350,000 0 350,000 0.014 FILIPINO

MARVIN J. GIROUARD 330,000 0 330,000 0.013 FILIPINO

ARTHUR H. OSMENA &/0R JANE Y. OSMENA 330,000 0 330,000 0.013 FILIPINO

JOSE YAP &/0R CONCHITA YAP 330,000 0 330,000 0.013 FILIPINO

DAVID LAO OSMENA 314,600 0 314,600 0.013 FILIPINO

ANA L. GO 300,000 0 300,000 0.012 FILIPINO

SEGUNDO SEANGIO 6/OR VIRGINIA SEANGIO 297,000 0 297,000 0.012 FILIPINO

CHARTERED COMMODITIES CORPORATION 294,999 0 294,999 0.012 FILIPINO

DOMINGO C GO 275,000 0 275,000 0.011 FILIPINO

DAVID LAO OSMENA 275,000 0 275,000 0.011 FILIPINO

GARY GO DYCHIAO 200,000 0 200,000 0.008 FILIPINO

MERIDIAN SEC., INC. A/C# 844 200,000 0 200,000 0.008 FILIPINO

CRISTINO NAGUIAT, JR. 181,500 0 181,500 0.007 FILIPINO

WILLIE TIO 159,500 0 159,500 0.006 FILIPINO

BETO Y. LIM 150,000 0 150,000 0.006 FILIPINO
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WATERFRONT
I'HILIPFINES, INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The managemeni of Waterfront Philippines Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation ofthe consolidated financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for
t e years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessaiy to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as agoing concent, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern
and using the going concern b^is of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or tocease operations, orhas no realistic alternative but todoso.

The Board ofDirectors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

The Boaid of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same tothe stockholders or members.

R.G. Manabat &Co., appointed by the stockholders, has audited the financial statements ofthe
^^^o''d^ice,with the Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the

stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit. v . v

edunder oath by the following:

lato B. Magadia
Cftaimian of the Board

fecilla oJlorisino
)rporate Finance Director

Signed this__
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WATERFRONT
rHlLlPPINES, INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of Waterfront Philippines, Inc. is responsible for all information and
representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Retuni for the year ended December 31,
2017. Management is likewise responsible for all information and representations contained in
the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same
reporting period. Furthermore, the Management is responsible for all information and
representations contained in all the other tax returns filed for the reporting period, including, but
not limited, to the value added tax and/or percentage tax returns, withholding tax returns,
documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all other tax returns.

In this regard, the Management affirms that theattached audited financial statements for the year
ended December31,2017 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance
with the books and recordsof Waterfront Philippines, Inc., complete and correct in all material
respects. Management likewise affinns that:

(a) the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of
the National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
issuancesof the Department of Financeand the Bureauof Internal Revenue;

(b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards and the preparation of the income tax return pursuant to tax accounting rules
has been reported as reconciling items and maintained in the company's books and
records in accordance with the requirements of Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and
other relevant issuances;

(c) Waterfront Philippines, Inc. has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements
required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and
other impositions shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the reporting
period, e.xcept thosecontested in good faith.

,ned underoath by the following:

1Sfpnato B. Magac
liairman of the Board
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
)S.S

TREASURER'S CERTIFICATION

I, ELVIRA A. TING, of legal age, Filipinoand with officeaddressat the
The 35/F One Corporate Center Julia Vargas Comer Meralco Avenue Ortigas Center,
PasigCityafterbeing sworn in accordance with law, hereby certify that:

1. I am the Treasurerof Waterfront Philippines, Inc. (the **Company"), a
corporation duly organized andexisting under andbyvirtue ofthe laws of the
Republic of the Philippines underSEC Certificate of Registration No. AS094-
8678withprincipal officeaddressat No. 1 Waterfront DriveLahug,Cebu
City.

2. I am executing this certification to attest to the truth of the foregoing and in
compliancewith the reportorial requirementsofthe SEC.

WITNESS MY HAND on this 2018 at

ELVPUAATING
Treasurer

L\.'- i\J

3EQ..^^ND SWORN to before me on this day of
V-Ji ii_ Affinnt RvhShitpH to m(» hpr l^nmmtinilv To*Affiant exhibited to me her Community Tax Certificate No.

23493219 issued onJanuary 10,2018.
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 9/F
6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226
Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000
Fax +63(2)894 1985
Internet www.kpmg.com.ph
Email ph-inqulry@kpmg.com.ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated and Subsidiaries
No. 1 Waterfront Drive
Off Salinas Drive, Lahug
Cebu City, Cebu

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Waterfront Philippines,
Incorporated and Subsidiaries (theGroup), which comprise the consolidated statements
offinancial position as at December 31, 2017and 2016, and the consolidated
statements ofprofit or loss and othercomprehensive income, changes inequity and
cash flows foreach ofthe three years inthe period ended December 31,2017, and
notes, comprising significant accounting policies and otherexplanatory Information.

In ouropinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31,2017 and 2016, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flowsfor each of the three years in the period ended
December 31,2017, inaccordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinbn

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are fuiiher described in the Auditors'
ResponsibiiiUes for the Auditof the Consoiidated FinancialStatement section of our
report. We are independentof the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethicsfor
Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)together withthe ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Philippines, and we have flilfiiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We tielieve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Pft&GOA Rsebnttaa Ml OOOS. wH ma Uanfi ia.2aao
SEC Metaailtaa No. ooomw. Oaup A. onia Nwemter ISb2020

Un ffliWAllOint W. jW
R.6. Manabat&Co, a Pistippinepaibieffhipand a fnatnberlinn ol (m KPMG natwoikel cndependant SSP• Qtsaial Catagoiy A,wad(tar audB polod
inefflber((nRsatlSatad%MiliKPM6imemaaonalCoapeiativarKPMOIntemationar).aSwin«(ttliy. (zaiTtoooiQ



Key Audit Matter
Keyaudit matter Is a matter that, in our profiessional judgment, was of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. This matter
was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
this matter.

Revenue recognition
(P2.10 billion, see consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and Notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements)

The risk

Market expectations and profit based tai^ets may place pressure on
management to distort revenue recognition. Although the Group's revenue
transactions are noncomplex and nosignificant Judgement is applied overthe
amount recorded, we howeverconsidered the potential for management override
to achieve revenue targets.

Our response
As partofouraudit procedures, we evaluated and tested the internal controls
overthe completeness,existence and accuracyof revenue recognized In the
consolidated financial ^atements. We performed analytical procedures, cutoff
testing to ensurewhether transactions occurring nearyearend wererecorded in
the proper period andjournal entriestesting around revenue to identify any
unusual or irregular itemsposted.We assessed whetherthe Group's revenue
recognition policiesare in accordance with PFRS.

Other information

Management is responsible forthe other information. Theother information comprises
the information included Inthe Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Form 20-IS
(Definitive Inforriiation Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Reportforthe year
ended December 31,2017, but does not includethe consolidatedfinancial statements
and our auditors' reportthereon.The SEC Form 20-IS(Definitive Information
Statement), SEC Form 17-A andAnnual Report forthe yearended December 31,2017

^0^ are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors' report

Our opinion on the consolidatedfinancial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusionthereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated finandal statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit, or othenmse
appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilitiesof Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
finandal statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.



in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a materialmisstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or inthe aggregate, theycould reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As partofan audit inaccordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintainprofessionalskepticismthroughoutthe audit.We also:

• Identify and assess the risksofmaterial misstatement ofthe consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsiveto those risks, and obtainauditevidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis forour opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than forone resulting from error, as fraud mayinvolve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
intemal control.

• Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in orderto design
auditprocedures that are appropriate inthe circumstances, but notforthe purpose
ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Group's intemal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

• Conclude on the appropriatenessof management's use ofthe going concem basis
of accounting and, based on the auditevidenceobtained, whethera material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that maycast significant doubton
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we concludethat a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlyingtransactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.



• Obtainsufficient appropriateaudit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activitieswithin the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financiai statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performanceof the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate withthose charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged withgovemance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements ofthe currentperiodand are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
those matters in our auditors' report unless lawor regulation precludes publicdisclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefitsof such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is
Tireso Randy F. Lapidez.

R.G.MANABAT&CO.

TIRESO RANDY PyLAPIDEZ
Partner

CPA License No. 0092183
SEC Accreditation No. 1472-A, Group A, valid until April 30, 2018

^ Tax Identification No. 162-411-175
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-34-2017

Issued September 4,2017; valid until September 3,2020
PTR No. 6ei5138MD

Issued January 3,2018 at Makati City

April 25, 2018
Makati City, Metro Manila
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPrNES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

Note 2017 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - net

Notes receivable

Inventories

Due from related parties - current portion
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

4, 21
5, 21
8, 21

6

8, 21
7, 21

P345,929,975
228,360,959
195,007,214

33,918,798
1,602,120,084

97.563,340

P204,295.153
235.447,147

28,167.104
1,537,900,077

90,402.965

Total Current Assets 2,502,900,348 2.096,232,446

Noncurrent Assets

Available-for-sale investment
Due from related parties - noncurrent portion
Property and equipment - net
Deferred tax assets

Other noncurrent assets

8, 21
8. 21

9

19

10,21

15,954,640
347,927,681

6,390,497,964
64,994,497
30.534,463

16,821,740
340,197.163

6.585,028.850
41,086,003
27,978,112

Total Noncurrent Assets 6,849,909,245 7,011,111,868

P9,352,809,593 P9,107,344.314

LiABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Loan payable
Income tax payable
Other current liabilities

11, 21
13, 21

12. 21

PI ,468,215,052
375,000,000

70,613,726
15.377.744

PI,358,365,891
375,000,000

69,555,622
25,644,184

Total Current Liabilities 1,929,206,522 1,828,565,697

Noncurrent Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Retirement benefits liability
Other noncurrent liabilities

19

18

14. 21

1,275,069,230
124,481,905

6.537.329

1,339,315,801
98,517,865

6,577,959

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,406.088,464 1,444.411,625

3,335,294,986 3,272,977,322

Forward



December 31

Note 2017 2016

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent Company

Capital stock 16 P2,498,991,753 P2,498,991,753
Additional paid-in capital 706,364,357 706,364.357
Revaluation surplus on property and equipment 9 2,211,108,991 2,349,524,496
Retirement benefits reserve 83,695,458 102,082,569
Foreign currency translation adjustment 52,542,000 41,686,179
Fair value resen/e 2,063,223 2,683,245
Accumulated deficit (404.632,514) (760,985,667)

Total Equity Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Parent Company 5,150,133,268 4,940,346,932

Noncontrolling Interests 16 867.381,339 894.020.060

Total Equity 6,017,514,607 5,834,366,992

P9,352,809,593 P9,107,344,314

See Notes to the ConsoBdated Rnandal St^ments.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015

REVENUES
Rooms

Rent and related income
Food and beverage
Others

22,23
P752,685,023

675,827,680
629,397,919

47.021.801

P662,116,109
805,703,911
595,040,745

72.484.476

P606,473,995
827,620,396
585,764,307

81.049.092

2,104,932,423 2,135,345,241 2.100,907,790

COSTS AND EXPENSES
OTHERTHAN INTEREST,
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION,
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Energy costs
Personnel costs
Food and beverage
Repairs and maintenance
Rooms
Rent
Others

INCOME BEFORE INTEREST,
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION, IMPAIRMENT
LOSSES AND INCOME TAX
EXPENSE

339,742,550 330,679,391 333,238,825
18 326,883,250 336,524,229 354,949.699

6 222,565,682 208,718,438 173,788.840
6 48,696,483 48,610,121 75,627,236

30,336,459 37,016,392 48,926,506
23 37,408,179 47,932,759 66,778,509
17 415.150.260 352.897.807 351.064.421

1,420,782,863 1,362,379,137 1,404,374.036

684,149.560 772.966.104 696,533.754

DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION, INTEREST
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Depredation and amortization
Interest expense
Foreign exchange losses - net
Impairment losses, bad debts

written ofF and provisions
Interest income
Others - net

9

13,22
355,307,819

60,222,509
10,365,853

632,751
(42,276,067)

714.766

255,392,265
80,144,299
12,007,679

3,442,842
(39,859,178)

(9,550,150)

333,683,900
136,933,256

18,318,204

2,587,635
(33,711,906)

3.207.862

INCOME BEFORE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

NET INCOME

Forward

5

4,8

19

384,967,631 . 301,577,757 461,018,951

299,181,929

100.448.728

471,388,347

152.503.361

235,514,803

76.807.708

198,733,201 318,884,986 158,707,095



. ^

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
(LOSS) INCOME

Items that will never be
reclasslfled to profit or loss

Appraisal increase on property
and equipment

Actuariai (losses) gains on
defined benefit plan

Deferred tax effect

9

18

19

P -

(36,534,724)
10.960.417

P913,101,845

8,322,675
(276.427,356)

P -

19,796,982
(5,939,095)

(25,574,307) 644,997,164 13,857,887

Items that may be reclasslfled
sul>sequently to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign operations

Net change in fair value of
available-for-sale investment 8, 21

10,855,821

(867,100)

9,243,210

(1.387,360)

8,272,530

(4,769,050)

9,988,721 7,855,850 3,503,480

(15,585,586) 652.853,014 17,361,367

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME P183,147,615 P971,738,000 PI 76,068,462

Net Income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent

Company
Noncontrolling interests 16

P217,937,648
(19.204.447)

P287,392,497
31.492,489

PI 27,211,459
31,495.636

P198,733,201 P318,884,986 PI 58,707,095

Total comprehensive Income
attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent
Company

Noncontrolling interests 16

P209,786,336
(26,638.721)

P854,154,052
117,583,948

P144,747,910
31.320.552

P183,147,615 P971,738,000 PI 76,068,462

EARNINGS PER SHARE -
Basic and Diluted 20 P0.087 P0.115 P0.051

See Notes to the ConsoBdated Hnandet Statements.
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year Ended December 31

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Comoany

Capital
Stock

fNots 18)

Additional
PeldJn
CaDital

Revaluation
Surplus on

Property and
EQulomsnt

Retlremsnt
Benefits
Reserve

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Aiflustmant

Fair Value
Reserve Dsflctt Total

Noil*

controlling
Interests
(Note 16)

Total
Equity

As at January l.mr P2.408.8d1.763 P708.384J87 P2J49J24.488 P102.082.669 P41.888.17g P2.683Jt4S (P760.988.667) P4.940.346J32 P884.020.080 P6.834J66.692

Total Coinprahanaive Income for the Year •
Net Incomefor the year
Othercomarehensira income - net of tax effect

- - -

(18.387.111) 10.855.821 (620.022)
217.937.648 217.937.648

(8.161.312)
(19.204.447)

(7.434.274)
198.733J01
(16.686.688)

• • - (18.387.111) 10.855.621 (820.022) 217.937.648 209.786.336 (K,636.721) 183,147.616

Transferof revaluaUon suiplus absortredttimush
deoredation for the year - net of tax effect f138.416.6DS) 138Jt16.60S

As at December 31,2017 P2.<U8.991.763 P708.384,3&7 P2.211.108.991 P83,696.488 P52.642.000 P2,083.223 (P404.632.614) P6.160.133,268 P867.381.339 Pe.017.614,607

See Notes to the ConsoSdated Ftneeciat Statements.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year Ended December 31

Einilty Attributable to Eouitv Hotdera of the Parent Comoanv

CepitBl
Stock

fNate161
Additional

Paid-in Caitilal

Revaluation

&iipluson
Property end

^ubxnent

Refirement
Beneffts
Reserve

Foreign
Currency

TrenslaOon
Aiflustment

Fair Value
Reserve Deficit Total

Non-
controfiing

Interests
(Note 16)

Total
Emiitv

As at Januaiv 1.2016 P2.4e8.S01.7S3 P708.384.3S7 PI .841.118.443 P101.280.250 P32.442.e80 P3.458.005 (PI .007.460.008) P4.086.ie2.880 P776,436.112 P4.e62.628.e02

Total Comprehend Income for the Year
Nat Income for the yaar
Olhar comDrehensiva income • net of tax effect

- -

557.282.121 1.008.084 0.243.210 (772.760)
287,302,407 287,302,407

568.761.555

31,402,480
86.001.450

316,884,088
652.853.014

- - 557,282,121 1,008,084 0,243,210 (772,760) 287,302,407 854,154,052 117,583,048 071,738,000

Transferofrevaluation surplusat)Sort)s<l through
depredation fOrthe year-net of tax effect .

Chanae in retirement treneffts reserve
- - (48,876,088)

(208.674)
- -

46,676,088
206.674

- - -

As at Oecemtrer 31,2016 P2,408.e01,753 P708,384,357 P2.34g.S24,4e8 P1Q2,082,580 P41,686,170 P2,683,245 ^760,085,667) P4,040,346,032 P6e4,020,080 P5,834,388,e02

See Notes to the ConsolktNedFhienctal Statements.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year Ended December 31

Eauitv AtlilbulatilB to Eauitv Koldars of the Parent Comoanv

Capita)
Stock

fNoteiei
AttdOtonal

Paid4n Caoital

Revaluation
Surplus on

Propc^and
Eaulomant

Retoement
Benefits
Reserve

For^n
Currency

Trenslatitm
Adlustmant

Falr\Ai)ue
Resenm Deficit Total

Non-
contndllng

Interests
(Note 18)

Total
Eauitv

A88tJanuaiv1.201S P2.4e8.e81.753 P708.384.357 PI .935.685.721 P89.2S0.280 P24.170.439 P8.222.0S4 (PI .319.210.843) P3.e41.444.e70 P745.115.580 P4.688.S80.530

Total Comprehensive incoma for the Year
Net income for ttie year
Other comorehenslve income • net of tax effect

- - -

12.028.970 8.272.530 (2.768.049)
127,211,459 127,211,459

17.538.451
31,405,838

(175.084)
158,707,095

17.381.387

- - - 12,029,970 8,272,530 (2,786,049) 127,211,459 144,747,910 31,320,552 176,088,482

Transfer of levaluatlonsurplus absorlied through
demeciation for the year • net of tax eRect (94.547.278) 94.547.278

As at Decemlrer 31,201S P2.488,991,753 P708,384,3S7 P1,841,118,443 P101,280,259 P32,442,989 P3,4S8,00S (PI,097,480,908} P4.088,192,e80 P778.438.112 P4,882.828,992

See Notes to the Consdktated Flnandat Statements.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTiVmES

Income before income tax

expense P2S9,181,929 P471,388,347 P235,514,803
Adjustments for.

Depieclation and amortization 9 355,307,819 255,392,265 333,683,900
Interest expense 13,22 60,222,509 80,144,299 136,933,256
Retirement benefits cost 18 21,196,913 20,814,752 40,342,055
Unrealized foreign exchange

loss - net 10,855,821 9,243,210 8,272,530
Impairment losses 5 632,751 3,442,842 2,587,635
Provisions 25 - - (45,575,012)
Gain on disposal of property

and equipment - (947,110) -

Interest income 4.8 (42,276,067) (39.859.178) (33,711,906)
705,121,675 799,619,427 678,047,261

Changes in:
Receivables 6,453,437 (25,188,037) (16,328,580)
Inventories (5,731,692) 1,111,077 (1,482,280)
Prepaid expenses and other

current assets (7,160,375) (13,420,759) (26,858,888)
Accounts payable and

accrued expenses 49,626,652 (14,410,832) 64,127,114
Other current liabilities (10,266,440) (523,576,556) 468,612,863

738,043,257 224,134,320 1,166,117,490
Interest received 4 1,902,783 505,729 3,456,946
Retirement benefits paid 18 (10,317,597) (9,606,808) (8,945,198)
Retirement contributions paid 18 (21,450,000) (21,050,000) (11,250,000)
Income taxes paid (176,585,272) (85,130,822) (50,947,041)
Interest paid - (63,195,329) (96.477,022)

Net cash provided by operating
activities 531,593,171 45,657,090 1,001,955,175

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Changes in:
Due from related parties (31,577,221) 99,298,558 30,892,282
Other noncurrent assets (2,556,351) 12,710,611 26,002,418

Additionsto property and
equipment •9 (160,776,933) (9,668,747) (25,043,772>

Notes receivable 8 (195,007,214) - _

Proceeds from sale ofproperty
and equipment - 8,928,615 -

Net cash (used in) provided by
investing activities (389,917,719) 111,269,037 31,850,928

Forward



Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Changes In:
Loans payable
Other noncument liabilities

P -

(40.630)
(P121,030,050) (P351,776,392)

(4.769.144) (648.551.702)

Cash used in financing
activities (40,630) (125.799,194) (1,000,328,094)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 141,634,822 31,126,933 33,478,009

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 204,295,153 173.168,220 139.690.211

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 4 P345,929,975 P204,295.153 P173,168,220

See Notestotha Consi^ated Rnandel Ststaments.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED ANDSUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

Waterfront Philippines, incorporated (the Parent Company) was incorporated and
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
September 23, 1994 as an investment holding company for hotel, leisure, and
tourism businesses. The Parent Company is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE) and is 46%-owned by TheWellex Group, Inc. (TWGI), an entity registered and
domiciled in the Philippines.

The details of the equity interest of the Parent Company in its subsidiaries as at
December 31.2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Percentage of Ownership
Direct Indirect

Hotels and Resorts

Waterfront Cebu CityCasino Hotel, Incorporated
(WCCCHI) 100

Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Incorporated
(WMCHI) 100

Davao Insular HotelCompany, Inc. (DIHCI) 98
Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation (APHC) 56
Grand llocandia Resort and Development Inc. (GIRDI) 54

Real Estate

CIMA Realty Phil., Inc. - 56
Fitness Gym
WaterfrontWellness Group, Inc. (WWGI) 100
International Marketing and Promotion of Casinos
Mayo Bonanza. Inc. (MB!) 100
Waterfifont Promotion Ltd. (WPL) 100
Club Waterfront Intemational Limited (CWIL) • 100
Pastries Manufacturing
Waterfront Food Concepts Inc. (WFC) 100 -
Hotel Management and Operation
Waterfront Entertainment Corporation (WEC) 100
Waterfront Hotel Management Corporation (WHMC) 100 ^

All of the above subsidiaries were incorporated and registered in the Philippines
except for WPL and its subsidiary, CWIL, which were registered In the Cayman
Islands.

Management decided to temporarily cease the operations of MBI, WHMC, WPL.
CWIL and GIRDI in 2016, 2014, 2003, 2001 and 2000, respectively, due to
unfavorable economic conditions.



On March 18, 2018, a fire broke out In APHC's hotel property that damaged the
lower floors of the main building as well as the Podium building occupied by the
casino area and restaurants Inthe APHC's hotel propertyresultingto the suspension
of Its hotel operations. Based on the Fire Certification Issued by the Bureau of Fire
Protection - National Headquarters on April 23, 2018, the cause of the subject fire
has been declared and classified as "accidental in nature." APHC is Inthe process of
preparing the requirements for Its insurance claims, the proceeds ofwhich shall be
used to restore APHC's hotel for Its continued operation.

Theregistered office oftheParent Company is at No. 1Waterfront Drive, Off Salinas
Drive, Lahug, Cebu City, Cebu.

2. Basis of Preparation

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and Its subsidiaries,
collectiveiy herein referred to as the Group, have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Finandal Reporting Standards (PFRS). They were approved and
authorized for issue by the Parent Company's Board of Directors (BOD) on
April 25,2018.

Details of the Group's accounting policies are included In Note 27.

Basis of MeasuremCTt

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis
of accounting, except for the following Items which are measured on an alternative
basis at each reporting date:

Items Measurement Basis
Land, land improvements, hotel buildings Revalued amount less accumulated

and improvements, fumiture, fixtures depreciation and impairment losses
and equipment and transportation

Available-fbr-sale (AFS) Investment Fair value
Retirement benefite liability Present value of the defined benefits

obligation (DBO) less fair value of
planassets (FVPA)

Functional and Presentation Currencv
The consolidated financial statements are presented In Philippine peso, which Is the
Group's functional currency except for WPL and CWIL, the functional currency of
which Is the United States (U.S.) dollar. All financial information presented In
Philippine peso has been rounded off to the nearest peso, unless othenvise stated.

3. Use of Judgments and Estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group's
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities. Income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to estimates are recognized prospectively.
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Judgments

Information about judgments made In applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect in the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements Is as follows;

Transactionswith PhUipplne Amusementand GamingCorporation (PAGCOR)
The Group has significant transactions witii PAGCOR. Under Presidential Decree
(PD) No. 1869, otherwise known as the PAGCOR Charter, PAGCOR is exempted
from payment of any form of taxes other than the 5% franchise tax imposed on the
gross revenue or earnings derived by PAGCOR from its operations under the
franchise. The amended Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 16-2005 which became
effective in 2006, however, provides that gross receipts of PAGCOR shall be subject
to the 12% value-added tax (VAT). In February 2007, the Philippine Congress
amended PD No. 1869 to extend the franchise term of PAGCOR for another 25
years but did not include any revocation of PAGCOR's tax exemption privileges as
previously provided for in PD No. 1869. In accounting for the Group's transactions
with PAGCOR, the Group's management and its legal counsel have made a
judgment that ^e amended PD No. 1869 prevails over the amended RR No. 16-
2005 (see Note 22).

Operating Lease Commitments - Group as Lessor
The Group has leased out its commercial spaces to third parties. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these commercial spaces and thus, accounts for the contracts as operating leases
(see Note 23).

Distinguishing Investment Properties and Owner-occupiedProperties
The Group detenhines whether a property qualifies as an investment property. In
making its judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independent of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the properties but also to the
other assets used in the delivery of service.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the delivery of sen/ices or for
administrative purposes. If these portions cannot be sold separately, the property is
accounted for as investment properly only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the delivery of services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as investment property- The Group has classified its properties as owner-
occupied (see Note 23).

Resolution of Tax Case involving Tax Assessment from the Treasurer of the City of
Manila

In consultation with legal counsels, the Group management believes that the
compromise agreement executed on December 8,2015 between APHC and the City

- of Manila to resolve the tax deficiency assessment filed by the latter against APHC
was an adjusting event as at December 31, 2015 as the legal counsels and
management have no reasons to believe that the City Council of Manila will not ratify
the compromise agreement. Accordingly, APHC recognized the gain on the reversal
of the provision it previously setup for the case amounting to P39.73 million which
was presented as part of "Others" in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31,2015 (see Note 25).
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Provisions and Condngencles
TheGroup has received assessmentsfrom the Bureau of Intemai Revenue (SIR) for
deficiency taxes and is aiso a defendant in various legal cases which are still
pending resolutions. The Group's management and legal counsels have made a
judgment that the positions of the Group are sustainable and, accordingly, believe
that the Group does nothavea presentobligation (legal or constructive) wife respect
to such assessments and claims (see Note 24).

Classifying Financial Instrvments
The Group exercisesJudgment in classilying a financial instrument, or its component
parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset a financial liability, or an equity
instrument in accordance wife fee substance of the contractual agreement and fee
definition of a financial asset, financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance
of a financial instrument rather than its legal forni, governs its classification in fee
consolidated statement of financial position.

Classifying Receivables from Related Parties
The Group exercises judgment in classifying fee receivables from r^ated parties as
under current assets or noncurrent assets based on fee expected realization of fee
receivables. The Group takes into account the credit rating and other financial
information about fee related parties to assess their ability to settle fee Group's
outstanding receivables. Relat^ party receivables that are expected to be realized
within twelve months after fee reporting period or within fee Group's normal
operating cycle are considered current assets (see Note 8).

Estimation Uncertainties

Informationabout estimation uncertainties feat have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within fee next financial year is as follows:

Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables and Due ftom Related Parties
The Group maintains an allowance for impairment losses on receivables, at a level
considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of
this allowance is evaluated by fee Group on fee basis of factors feat affiect fee
collectabilityof fee related accounts. These factors include, but are not limitedto, fee
length of fee Group's relationship wife its customers or debtor, their payment
behavior and known market factors. The Group reviews fee age and status of
receivables, and identifies accounts that are to be provided wife allowance on a
continuous basis. The anfiount and timing of record^ expenses for any period,would
differ if fee Group made different judgments orutilized di^rentestimates.

For due from related parties, fee Group uses judgment based on fee available facts
and circumstances, including but not limited to, assessment of fee related parties'
operating activities, business viability and overall capacity to pay, in providing an
allowance against the recorded receivable amount.

Further details on fee allowance for Impairment losses are disclosed in Notes 5
and 8.

Net Realizable Value(NRV) ofInventories
The Group carries its inventories at NRV whenever such becomes lower than cost
due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price levels or
other causes. Estimates of NRV are based on fee most reliable evidence available at
the time the estimates are made of the amount fee inventories are expected to be
realized. These estimates take into consideration fluctuation of prices or costs
directly relating to events occum'ng after fee reporting date to the extent feat such
events confirm conditions existing at fee reporting date. The NRV is reviewed
periodically to reflect the accurate valuation in the financial records.



The carrying value ofthe inventories are disclosedin Note6.

Revaluation ofProperty and Equipment
The Group carries certain classes of property and equipment at fair value, with
changes in fair value being recognized In other comprehensive income (GCI). The
Group engaged independent valuation specialists to assess fair value. Fairvalue is
detennined with references to transactions involving properties of a similar nature,
location and condition.

The key assumptions used to determine the fair value of properties are provided in
Note 9.

Useful Lives ofProperty and Equipment
The Group estimatesthe useful lives ofproperty and equipment based on the period
over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful
lives of property and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and are updated
ifexpectationsdiffer from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical
or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. In
addition, estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment Is based on the
collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and
experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes In estimates brought about by
changes In the factors mentioned above.

The carrying amounts of propertyand equipment are disclosed in Note 9.

Impairment ofNonfinancialAs^ts
Impairment eMStswhen the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU)
exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is
based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length,
for similar assets or obsen^able market prices less incremental costs of disposing of
the asset The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow (DCF)
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the performance of the assets of the CGU being
tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF
model as well as the expected future cash-Inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, there is no indication of impairment on the
Group's prepaid expenses and other current assets, property and equipment and
other noncurrent assets.

Fair Value Estimation
If the financial instruments are not traded in an active market, the fair value is
determined using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques are used to
determine fair values,- they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel, independent of the area calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual
data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use only
observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates. Change in
assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair values of financial
instruments.
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Recrement Benefit Cost
The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and the present value of the pension
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, fijture salary increases and
future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a DBO is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reportingdate.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. The discount rate
assumption is based on the Philippine Dally Exchange t)enchmark market yields on
government bonds considering average years of remaining working life of the
employees as the estimated term of the DBO.

Further details about pension obligationsare provided in Note 18.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for consolidated financial statement and tax
differencesto the extent that it is probablethat taxable profit will be availableagainst
which these differences can be utilized. Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized,
based upon the likely timing and the level of fijture taxable profits, together with
future tax planning strategies.

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 19.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

Cash in banks

Short-term placements
Cash on hand

Note

21

21

2017

P214,768,039
128,090,117

3.071.819

2016

P159,803,886
26,407,387
18,083,880

P345,929,975 P204,295,153

Cash in banks eam interest at the respective bank deposit rates.

Short-term placements eam interest at annual average of 0.13% to 2.88% in 2017
and 2016 and have average maturities ranging fifom 30 to 35 days for both years.

Related interest income recognized in profitor loss amounted to PI.90 million, P2.03
million and PI .98 million in 2017,2016 and 2015, respectively.
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5. Receivables

This account consists of:

2017 2016Note

Trade P237,612,791 P248.757.489

Advances to employees 3,751,079 6,852,387

Others 8.581,003 2,148,399

21 249,944,873 257,758,275
Less allowance for impairment losses on

22,311,128trade receivables 21.583,914

21 P228,360,959 P235,447,147

Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are generally on a 30-day term.

Movements in the allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables are as
follows:

2017 2016 2015

Beginning balance
Impairment loss during the year
Write-off during the year

P22,311,128
832,751

(1,359,965)

P20,024,340
3,442,842

(1.156,054)

PI 7,436,705
2,587,635

Ending balance P21,583,914 P22,311,128 P20,024,340

6. Inventories

This account consists of:

2017 2016

Food and beverage P16,992,646 P16,196,062
Operating supplies 16,487,829 10,624,757
Engineering and maintenance supplies 438,321 1,366,285

P33,918,796 P28,187,104

The cost of food and beverage charged to profitor loss amounted to P222.57 million,
P208.72 million and PI73.79 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectiveiy, and is
presented as Tood and beverage" account in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group recognized expenses for operating supplies amounting to P27.54 million,
P28.82 million and P41.30 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectiveiy, and are
presented as "Supplies", which is part of expenses under "Others" account in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
(see Note 17), while the expenses for engineering and maintenance supplies
amounting to P48.70 million, P48.61 million and P75.63 million in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively, are included under "Repairs and maintenance" account in the
consolidated statements of profitor loss and other comprehensive income.



7. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Input VAT
Prepaid taxes
Short-term investment

Advances to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Others

21

P40,313,479
27,000,775
12,359,747
11,316,104

4,597,307
1.975.928

P43.455.636
20.769.412
12.251,466
8,311.836
5,001,755

612.860

P97,563,340 P90.402,965

8. Related Party Transactions

The Group's related partytransactions include transactionswith its key management
personnel (KMP) and related parties in the table below:

Related Party

TWGI

Pacific Rehouse Corp. (PRC)
Crisanta Realty Development Corp. (CROC)
Philippine Estates Corporation (PHES)
Metro Aliiance Holdings and Equities Corp. (MAHEC)
Forum Holdings Corporation (FHC)
East Asia Oil& MiningCompany, Inc. (East Asia)
Plastic City Industnai Corporation (PCIC)
Wellex industries. Inc. (Wll)
Acesite Leisure Entertainment Corporation (ALEC)

Relationship with the
Group

Ultimate Parent
Stockholder

Stockholder

Stockholder
Stockholder
Stockholder

Stockholder
Under common control

Under common control

Subsidiary*
*ALEC is an unconsoBddad /ve-ope/stfng stAskSary Inoorporated In 2017 Omt is bnmatai^ to the Group's
oonsdid^ed finand^ ^tamenls as at DecemlierSI. 2017.
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Significant Transactions with Related Parties

The Group's transactions with related parties consists of (in thousands):

CatBaoiyfTfansBcaon Year Ntnte

UtUmate Parent

Amount of the
Transaction

Due from Relatail Parties
Current Noncurront

Notes

Receivable
Advances to Due to

Subsidiaries* Subsidiaries* Terms and CondlUons

••TW8I
Advances, Interest and
settlement

Stockholders

2017

2016

2018

68
8a

8a

P20.639
24,301
13,245

P882,189
861,550
045,471

P • P - P - P - Secured; interest-beadng; subject to repridng;
due in one year subject to renewal; net of
allowance CorImpalnnent

• PRC
Advances, interest and
setltemant

»I17
2016
2015

8a
8a
8a

10,623
10,415
10,211

541,781
531,158
520,743

• - 3 Secured; interest-beadng; subject torepridng;
* due inone yearsubjecth) renewal

• CROC
Advances and Intsrest
sstdaments

2017

2016
2015

8a

8a
8a

15,188
14,665

332,707

14,030
7,465

347,028
340,107
332,707

- Unsecured; interest-beadng; subject to repddng;
* due infiveyears

• MAHEC
' Advances and Interest

•PHES
Advances and interest

2015

2017
2016
2015

8a

8b

8b
8b

385,033

12,500

5,700

104,654
02,054
02,054

• •

Secured; interest bearing;subset to
repddng; dueinoneyearsul^ torenewal

Unsecured; nonlnterest-beadng; subject to
* repddng;due on demand

• Others
Advances and interest 2017

2016

2016

8b
8b
6b

12,093

778

58,698
45,673
51.043

• - ' Unsecured; nonlnterest-beadng; subject to
* reprdng; due on demand

Subsidiaries

• WCCCHl
Advances and setttemant

Deposits for future stock
subscr^on

2017
2016
2015
2017

2016
2015

6c

6c
6e

6d

8d
8d

199,074
560,525
135,053

• 310,847
510,821
560,525

1/100,000
1,000,000
1,000,080

Unsecured; nonlnterest-beadng; due on demand

Unsecured; noninterest-beadrq

•ALEC
Notes receivable 2017 B0 195,007

- - 195,087 Unsecured; nonlnterest-trearing; subject to
resddnti: due on demand

*EAnlnsledduring comodd^hn

Fomsrd
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CBtBaoiv/Transactlon Year Mote
Amount of the

Transaction

Duo from Related Parties
Current Noncurrent

Notes
Receivable

Advaneea to Due to
Subsidiaries* Subsidiaries*

Subsidiaries

• DIHCi
Advances and settlements 2017 6c P7,171 P - P - P- P1.748 P -

2016 Be 10,257 , 5,425
2015 6e 5,167 - 15,682

•APHC
Advances and settlements 2017 6e 173,670 123 .

2016 80 108,087 - 173,447
2015 8e 43,776 - 370,414

• 6IRDI

Advances and settlement 2017 Be 1,042 205,868
2016 Be 1,803 . 207,835
2015 Be 1,730 - 200,641

• WHMC
Advances and settlement 2017 Be 72 .

2016 Be 1,303 .

2015 Be 11,020 -

•MBI
Advances and settlement 2017 8c 344

2016 Be 6,007 .

2015 Be 2,089 13,241
Deposits for future stock 2017 Bd - .

subscription 2016 8d - -

2015 Bd - 35,000

•VVWGl
Advances and settlement 2017 8c 166 .

2016 Be 165 .

2015 Be 148 462
Deposits for ttiture stock 2017 Bd - .

subscr^on 2016 Bd - -

2015 Bd - 13,000

•VtMCHl

2017Advances and settlement Be 26,088 . 216,630
2016 Be 16,030 - 160,535
2016 Be 163,695 - 173,486

• Vise
Advances and settlement 2017 Be 2,438 . 2,348

2016 Be 6,681 01 .

2015 Be 73 6,773 -

• WFC
. Advances and settlement 2017 Be 166 . . .

2016 Be 184 - . .

2015 Be 153 - 57 -

'EMbtated during oonso&Mon

Femaid
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Terms and Conditions

Unsecured; noninterest-beadng; due on demand

Unsecured; nontnterest-bsaring; due on demand

Unsecured; nonlnterest-bearing

Unsecured; nonlnterest-bearing; due on demand

Unsecured; nonlnterest-bearing

Unsecured; nonlnterest-bearing;due on demand

Unsecured; nonlnterest-bearing; due on demand



)

Amount of the Duo from Rotetad Paities
Cateoorv/TrensBcUon Year Nate Treneeetlon Current Nmcuirent Receivable Subaldlartee* Subaidlariee* Terms and Conditions

Deposits for future stock
8ut»crfptlon

2017

2016
201S

Bd
8d

8d

P . P . P - P - P .

8,080

P -
Unsecured: noninterest-beaitng

• WPL
' Advences and settlement SI17

2016
2015

80
8a

8a

127
283

212
-

194,990
195,126
105,409

Unsecured: nonlnterest-beaitng; due on demand

KMP

• StuMt-tenm employee
benefits

• Post-employment
benefits

2017
^16

2015

2017

2016
2015

32,921
28,661
22,153
7,807
6,105

11.189

•

TOTAL 2017 21 P1,602,120 P347,92B P165,C07 P1,312.716 P618,773

TOT/U. 2016 21 PI ,537,800 P340.197 P- P1,S10,912 P771.371

'BMn^ed during oonsoSdaSon
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a. Interest-bearing Advances to Related Parties

The Group granted interest-bearing advances to TWGI, PRC, MAHEC and
CRDC.

TWGI, PRC and MAHEC
The advances granted to TWGI and PRC were substantially used to finance the
acquisition or development of real properties for the Parent Company. These
advances are payable on demand and charge interest at 2% per annum. TWGI
paid P25.49 million In 2017 and P82.33 million in 2016 while PRC had no
payments in 2017 and 2016.

In a Resolution dated February 5, 2015, the Parent Company, APHC, TWGI,
PRC and MAHEC entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
whereby the parties agreed that the outstanding balance of the advances from
TWGI, PRC and MAHEC will be settled using parcels of land owned by PRC.
Subject to the other specificterms of the MOU, the settlement shall tie effective
upon completion of titling of the subject property by PRC, which is currently
ongoing. However, the advances to MAHEC was fully paid through cash
settlement as at December 31,2015.

On February 19. 2016, the parties made amendments to the previously issued
MOU for the settlement of all outstanding liabilities of TWGI and MAHEC to the
Parent Company. The amended MOU stated that MAHEC shall no longer be a
party to the said MOU, and all references to any obligationor rights that MAHEC
shall have under the said MOU shall no longer be in force. All other terms and
conditions shall remain unchanged.

As at December 31, 2017, the fair value of PRC's land based on valuation
performed by an accredit^ Independent appraiser, with a recognized and
relevant profiessional qualification and with recent experience in the locationsand
categories of the land being valued, amounted to PI .63 billion.

On April 11, 2018, TWGI initiated to transfer certain parcels of land located in
Puerto Princesa, Palawan as partial settlement of the advances.

interest receivable from TWGI amounted to PI 37.85 million and PI24.86 million
as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, while intere^ receivable from
PRC amounted to P66.27 million and P55.64 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. Allowance for impairment losses on receivables from
TWGI amounted to P61.19 million as at December 31,2017 and 2016.

CRDC
On December 21, 2015, the Parent Company granted advances to CRDC with
an interest of 2% and maturity on December 21, 2020. Interest receivable from
CRDC amounted to P14.93 million and P7.47 million as at December 31. 2017
and 2016, respectiveiy. It was agreed that CRDC has the option to pay the
balance before maturity date without payment of penalty fees and in case the
latter refuses or fails to pay the principal and interest within the time agreed
upon, the same shall be due and demandable. Accretion income of P7.73 million,
and P7.40 million was recognized in 2017 and 2016, respectively and accretion
expense of P40.46 million was recognized in 2015 in profit or loss to show the
effect of the time value of money on the said advances.
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b. Noninterest-bearing Advances to Related Parties

The Group has noninterest-bearing, collateral-free advances to PHES, FHC,
PCIC and East Asia with no fixed term of repayment The said advances are due
and demandable at anytime.

The collectability of the aforementioned advances is unconditionally recognized
and guaranteed by a stockholder of the Group, representing the majority
stockholders.

c. Advances to Subsidiaries

These mainly represent funds provided to support subsidiaries' daily operations
and to finance the construction and completion of certain hotel projects.

d. Deposits to Subsidiaries

These represent amounts set aside that will be used as subscription payments
by the Parent Company once the planned Increase In the authorized capital
stock of the subsidiaries materialize (see Note 21).

e. Due to Subsidiaries

In the ordinary course of business, the Parent Company obtains
noninterest-bearing. collateral-free cash and non-cash advances from related
parties for working capital purposes. The above advances are due and
demandable at anytime.

f. APS Investment

In July and August 2005, the BOD approved the conversion of APHC's net
receivables from related parties amounting to P43.30 million into 86.71 million
shares of stock of Wll which are listed in the PSE. The conversion resulted to a
loss on exchange of assets of P31.10 million for APHC. The fair market value of
the shares based on closing market price as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to PI 5.95 million and PI 6.82 million, respectively (see Note 21).
Valuation loss recognized in OCI In 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to P0.87
million, PI .39 million and P4.77 million, respectively.

g. Notes Receivable

The Group extended loans to Acesite Leisure and Entertainment Corporation
(ALEC) amounting to PI 95.01 million payable on December 31, 2018, and bear
interest at 4% per annum (see Note 21).

The outstanding balance of related party transactions are generally settled in cash.
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9. Property and Equipment

Movements in this account are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31.2017

Land
L^nd

Imnrovements
l^eaaehold

Improvements

Hotel

Bulidinge and
Improvements

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Eoulpment
Opeiattng

Eoulpment
Tranepoitatien

Eoulpment
Construction*

ln*Pro(ires8
Measurement Basts: Revalued 'RevsAied At Cost Rmalued Reva/usrt At Cost Revalued At Cost Total

Beginningbalance
Additions
Disfxtsais

P1.076.280.000 P17,021,148 P24.863,124
47,768

P8.802.539,197
5,261,627

f19.743.385l

P1,087.622,077
4,341,841

P266,231.654
4,710.219

P14.780.038
8.868.944

P •
137.548.634

P11,269.327.235
160.776.933
(16.743.385)

Ending balance 1.076.280,000 17.021,146 24,900,692 8.788,087,339 1,071,983,918 270,941,873 23.648.882 137.548,634 11,410.380.783

Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization

Beginningbalance
Depredation and anuMtizatlon
DisnosaiB

- 16.039,578
430,763

17,372,270
1,677,491

3,688.227,909
240,613.048
(19.743.385)

788,392,934
100,854,708

268,295,081
8,798,653

10.070.633
2.636.155

• 4.684.208,385
388.307.519
(19.743.385)

Ending balance - 16,470,341 16,249.761 3.809.»7,670 897,247.642 265.091,714 13,505.791 - 5.019,882,819

Carrying Amount P1.076.280/)00 Pl.660,884 P6.e61.131 P4,978,759,769 P174.716.276 P5.850.1S9 PIO.143,191 P137.648.634 P6,300.497.684

For the Year Ended December31.2016

Lend
Land

Imnrovements
Leasehold

Improvements

Hotel
Buildingsand

Improvements

Furniture,
Fixtures end

Eaulpment
Operating

Eoulpment
Transportation

Eoulnment
Construction-

In-Prooress
Measuramait Basis: Revalued Revalued AlCosI Revalued Revalued At Cost Revalued AtCosf Total

Beginning balance
Additions

Disposals
Retirement
Aocraisal inoease

P1.033.6S2,080

4Z628.000

P16,845,425

75.720

P65,082,016
57,767

(40.268,679)

P6,2S0,247,44e
1,107.189

(118.455.021)
660.549,600

PI ,035,776,038
4,387,230

(11,560,482)
(158,024,241)
107.683.512

P262.185.0g3
4,046.581

P11,910,643

(15,618)
2.885.013

P - P10,675,778,684
9,688,747

(51,827.141)
(277,394.880)
013.101.845

Ending balance 1,076,280.000 17,021,145 24.653,124 6,802,539.197 1,087,622,077 268.231,654 14,750,038 11,260,327,235

Accumulated Depredation and
Amoitlzalion

B^intdng balance
Depredation and amortization
Disposals
Retirement

-
14,808,670

232,809
46,163,253

3,620,697
(34,631,680)

3,619,561.083
187,121.887

(118.455.021)

923,751,004
40,760,127
^,213.958)

(156.924.241)

233,941.679
22,353.182

9,602,758
1,033,493

(15.618)

-

4,750,148,636
255,302,265
(43,545,638)

(277.304.860)

Ending balance
-

15.039,678 17,372,270 3,588,227.900 708,392,034 258,205,081 10,070,633 - 4,694,298,385

CarryingAmount PI,076,280.000 P1,981,S87 P7,460,6S4 P5,214,311,268 P271,22e.143 P9,038,593 P3,809.40S P • P6,585,028,850
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The Group engaged an independent firm of appraisers to determine the fairvalue of
certain classes of its property and equipment specifically hotel buildings and
improvements, land, fumiture, fixtures and equipment, transportation equipment and
land improvements, which are carried at revalued amounts. Fair value was
determined byreference to market-based evidence, which is the pricethat would be
received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, in determining fair value, an estimate was made in accordance
vrith the prevailing pricesfor materials, equipment latxir, and contractor's overhead
and ail other costs associated with acquisition while taking into account the
depreciation resulting from physical deterioration, functional and economic
obsolescence. The latest revaluation was in July 2016 which resulted to the increase
in the gross carrying amount of property and equipment amounting to P913.10
million.

Had the following classes of property and equipment been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would been as follows:

20162017

Hotel buildings and improvements
Land
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment
Transportation equipment
Land improvements

PI,860,144,558
650,515,909
106,081,301

3,438,967
1.144.493

PI ,946,061,894
650,515,909
133,061,735

982,809
8.622.705

P2,621,325,228 P2.739,245,052

Depreciation on cost charged to profit or loss amounted to P141.15 million, P161.15
million and P175.36 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Depreciation on
appraisal increase charged to profit or loss amounted to P214.16 million, P94.24
millionand PI58.32 million in 2017,2016 and 2015, respectively.

The revaluation increment absorbed through depreciation and transferred directly to
retained earnings, net of deferred tax effect, amounted to PI38.42 million and
P48.88 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively. The carrying amount of the
revaluation surplus amounting to P2.21 billion and P2.35 billion as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively, is not available for distributionto shareholders.

10. Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Refundable deposits 21 PI 5,276,436 PI 5,752,437
Special project deposits 7,515,468 636,721
Others 21 7.742.559 11.588,954

P30,534,4S3 P27,978,112

Refundable deposits refer to security deposits on utilities, electricity, rental,
retumable containers and others.

Special project deposits pertain to deposits to contractors in connection with the
renovation work ofWCCCHI and APHC.

Others represent deposits to service providers such as security and janitorial
sen/ices.
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11. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Trade payables 21 P350,726,S58 P319.713.743
Accrued:

Interest and penalties 13,21 926,355,691 866,355.691
Salaries, wages and employee

benefits 21 36,737,784 14.319.024
Utilities 21 12,265,564 11.577.999
Rent 21 482,568 517.815

Other accruals 21 17,871,872 38.911.795

Local taxes and output VAT 34,514,014 26.340.803
Unclaimed wages 21 11,158,500 870.886
Guest deposits 21 10,922,577 4.556.859

Service charges 21 8,033,523 7.777.827
Withholding taxes payable 2,044,557

57.101.444
2.642.044

Other payables 21 64.781.405

PI,468,215,052 PI .358.365,891

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally on 30-day terms and are
settled In cash.

Other payables include commissions, sponsorships, gift certificates issued and
sundry payables.

12. Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Concessionaires' and other deposits 21 P12,623,373 P20,027.801
Deferred income 1,754,371 4.616.383
Others 21 1.000.000 1.000.000

PI 5,377,744 P25,644.184

Others represent a P1.00 million unsecured short-term loan obtained from a local
bank in 1996 with interest at prevailing market rate. The proceeds of the loan were
used for the working capital requirements of GIRDI. GIRDI is a defendant in a
collection case filed by a local bank involving an unsecured short-term loan obtained.
While the case is currently inactive and the latest assessment made by the legal
counsel is fevorabte to GIRDI. the payable is still retained untilthe case is completely
dismissed. Management believes that the carrying value of the liability retained in the
books as at December 31. 2017 and 2016 sufficiently represents the amount of
possible liability that GIRDI may settle in the event that this case will ultimately be
activated and decided against GIRDI.
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13. Loan Payable

Social Security System (SSS) Loan

On October 28.1999, the Parent Company obtained a five-year term loan from SSS
amounting to P375.00 million originally due on October 29, 2004. The SSS loan
bears interest at the prevailing market rate plus 3% or 14.5% per annum, whichever
is higher. Interest is repnced annually and is payable semi-annually. Initial interest
payments are due 180 days from the date of the release of the proceeds of the loan.
The repayment of the principal shall be based on eight (8) semi-annual payments,
after a one-year grace period.

The SSS loan was availed to finance the completion of the facilities of WCCCHI. It
was secured by a first mortgage over parcels of land owned by Wll, a related party
and bythe assignment of 200 million common shares of the Parent Companyowned
byTWGI. The commonshares assigned were placed in escrow in the possession of
an independent custodian mutually agreed upon by both parties.

On August 7, 2003, when the total loan obligation to SSS, including penalties and
interest, amounted to P605.00 million, the Parent Company was considered in
default with the payments of the loan obligations, thus, on the same date, SSS
executed a foreclosure proceeding on the mortgaged parcels of land. The SSS's
winning bid on the foreclosure sale amounting to PI 98.00 million was applied to
penalties and interest amounting to P74.00 million and PI24.00 million, respectively.
In addition, the Parent Company accrued penalties charged by SSS amounting to
P30.50 million covering the month of August until December 2003, and unpaid
interest expense of P32.00 million.

The Parent Company, Wll and TWGI were given the right to redeem the foreclosed
property within one (1) year from October 17, 2003, the date of registration of the
certificate of sale. The Parent Company recognized the proceeds of the foreclosure
sale as its liability to Wll and TWGI. The Parent Company, however, agreed with
TWGI to offset this directly against its receivable from the latter. In August 2004, the
redemption period for the Parent Company, Wll and TWGI expired.

The remaining balance of the SSS loan is secured by the shares of stock of the
Parent Company owned by TWGI and shares of stock of Wll totaling 235 million and
80 million shares, respectively.

. .

On May 13,2004, SSS filed a civil suit against the Parent Company for the collection
of the total outstanding loan obligation before the Regional Trial Court (RTC) of
Quezon City. SSS likewiseasked the RTC of Quezon Cityfor the issuance of a writ
of preliminaryattachment on the collateral property.

On June 18, 2004, the RTC of Quezon City Issued its first order granting SSS's
request and the issuance of a writ of preliminary attachment based on the condition
that SSS shall post an attachment bond in the amount of P452.80 million. After the
lapse of three (3) months from the issuance of RTC order, no attachment bond was
posted. Thus on September 16,2004 and September 17,2004, the Parent Company
filed a Motion to Set Aside Order of Attachment and Amended Motion to Set Aside
Order of Attachment, respectively.

On January 10, 2005, the RTC of Quezon City Issued its second order denying the
Parent Company's petition after finding no compelling grounds to reverse or
reconsider its initial findings dated June 18, 2004. In addition, since no writ of
preliminary attachment was actually issued for failure of SSS to file a bond on the
specified date, the RTC granted SSS an extension of fifteen (15) days from receipt of
its second order to post the required attachment bond.
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On February 10. 2005, SSS filed a Motion for Partial Reconsideration of the Order
dated January 10, 2005 requesting that itbe allowed to posta real property bond in
lieu ofa cash/surety bond and asking for another extension ofthirty (30) dayswithin
which to postthe said property bond. On March 7, 2005, the ParentCompany filed
its opposition to the said Motion.

On July 18, 2005, the RTC of Quezon City issued Its third orderdenying the Parent
Company's petition and granted SSS the 30 day extension to post the said
attachment bond. Accordingly, on August 25, 2005, the Parent Company filed a
Motion for Reconsideration (MR).

On September 12, 2005, the RTC ofQuezon City Issued its fourth orderapproving
SSS's property bond in the total amount of P452.80 million. Accordingly, the RTC
ordered the corresponding issuance of the writ of preliminary attachment On
November 3,2005, the Parent Companysubmitteda Petition forCertlorari before the
Court of Appeals (CA) seeking the nullification of the orders of the RTC of Quezon
City dated June 18,2004, January 10,2005, July18,2005 and September 12,2005.

On Febmary 22, 2006, the CA granted the Parent Company's petition for the
issuance of the Temporary Restraining Order to enjoin the implementation of the
orders of the RTC of Quezon City specifically on the issuance of the writ of
preliminary attachment

On March 28, 2006, the CA granted the Parent Company's petition for the issuance
of a writ of preliminary injunction prohibiting the RTC of Quezon City from
implementing the questioned orders.

On August 24,2006, the CA issued a decision granting the Petition for Certiorari filed
by the Parent Company on November3,2005 and nullifying the orders of the RTCof
Quezon City dated June 18, 2004, January 10, 2005, July 18, 2005 and
September 12, 2005 and consequently making the writ of preliminary injunction
permanent

Accordingly, SSS filed a Petition for Review on Certiorari on the CA's decision before
the Supreme Court (SC).

On November 15, 2006, the First Division of the SC issued a Resolution denying
SSS's petition for failure of SSS to sufficiently show that the CA committed any.
reversible error in its decision which would warrant the exercise of the SC's

discretionary appellate jurisdiction.

The Parent Company, at various instances, initiated negotiations with the SSS for
restructuring of the loan but was not able to conclude a formal restructuring
agreement.

On January 13, 2015, the RTC of Quezon City issued a decision declaring null and
void the contract of loan and the reiated mortgages entered Into by the Parent
Company with SSS on the ground that the officers and the SSS are not authorized to
enter the subject loan agreement. In the decision, the RTC of Quezon City directed
the Parent Company to retum to SSS the principal amount of loan amounting to
P375 million and directed the SSS to retum to the Parent Company and to Its related
parties titles and documents held by SSS as collaterals.

On January 22, 2016, SSS appealed with the CA assailing the RTC of Quezon City
decision in favor of the Parent Company, et al. SSS filed its Appellant's Brief and the
Parent Company filed a Motion for Extension of Time to file Appellee's Brief until
May 16,2016.
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On May 16, 2016, the Parent Company filed Its Appellee's Brief with the OA.
furnishing the RTC of Quezon City and the Office of the Solicitor General with
copies. SSS was given a period to reply but itdid not file any.

On September 6, 2016, a resolution for possible settlement was received by the
Parent Company from the CA. However, on February 7, 2017 a Notice to Appear
dated December 7, 2016 was received by the Parent Company from the Philippine
Mediation Center Unit - Court of Appeals (PMCU-CA) directing the Parent Company
and SSS to appear in person and without counsel at the PMCU-CA on
January 23, 2017 to choose their mediator and the date of initial mediation
conference and to consider the possibility of settlement Since the Notice to Appear
was belatedly received, the partieswere notable to appear beforethe PMCU-CA.

On February27,2017, a Second Notice to Appear issued bythe PMCU-CA directing
all parties to appear on February 27, 2017 at a specified time was received by the
Parent Company only on February 27, 2017 after the specified time of the meeting.
The Parent Company failed to appear.

On June 30, 2017, a resolution issued by the CA, resolved to submit the appeal for
decision.

/'•O' As atthe report date, there had been no updates on thematter.

Outstanding principal balance of the loan amounted to P375.00 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016. Interest expense related to the SSS loan recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amounted to P60.00 million. P60.04 million and P59.88 million in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively. Accrued interest and penalties, presented as part of "Accrued
interest and penalties" under "Accounts payable and accrued expenses" account in
the consolidated statement of financial position, amounted to P926.36 million and
P866.36 million as at December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 11).

14. Other Noncurrent Liabilities

The account consists of;

. Note 2017 2016

Concessionaires' deposit
Accrued rent

21 PS,342,247
1.195,082

P4,548,003
2.029.956

P6,537,329 P6,577,959
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15. Segment information

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the natureof sen/ices provided, vwth each segment
representing a strategic business unit - the Hotel operations and the Marketing operations. The Corporate and Others segment includes
general and corporate income and expense items. Segment accounting policies are the same as the policies described in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The following table presents the revenue and profit information regarding industry segments for the years ended December31, 2017, 2016
and 2015and certainasset and liability Information regarding industry segments as at December31,2017,2016 and 2015 (in millions):

Hotd Operations Maitc^nn Operations
Coiporam and Otiisr

Operations Eliminations Consolidated
2017 2018 2015 2017 2018 2015 2017 2016 2015 2017 2018 2015 2017 2016 2015

TOTAL REVENUES
Extems) sales P2,095 P2.085 P2.023 p - P - P - P19 P49 pe9 (P9) (pe) (P11) P2,105 P2.13S P2,101

RESULTS
Seoment resulls P3S9 P846 P132 (PI) (PI) (PI) (P40) (P40) (P24) P - p - P254 P328 P805 P361

OTHER INCOME (LOSS)
Interest eiqwnse
Interest Income
Benefit fiom (provision loi) Income taxes
Olhem

2

(114)

(80)
1

(148)
(94)

(97)
1

(72)
(10) (10) (11) (10)

(60)
40
14

30

(7)
(51)

(40)
33

(5)
(2) (1) 82

(60)
42

(100)
(11)

(60)
40

(152)
(94)

(137)
34

(77)
(22)

Total Other Income (luiaa) (112) (318) (178) (10) (11) (10) (6) (10) (14) (1) 62 (129) (288) (202)

Net Income (Loaa) P257 P328 (P4e) (P11) (P12) (P11) (P48) (P59) (P38) (PI) P62 P254 P199 P319 P159

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets
Deferred tax assets

P7,S94
46

P7.580
40

P7,032
120

P219 P220 P220 P4,693
19

P4.737
1

P4,929
4

(P3.118) 9>3,460) (P3.760) P9,288
65

P0.086
41

P6,421
124

Consolidated Total Assets P7,640 P7.609 P7,152 P219 P220 P220 P4,ei2 P4.738 P4,933 (P3,118) 0^3.460) (P3,760) P9,363 P9.107 P8,S4S

Segment Qattififies
Defened tax Gatiililiss

P2,080
1.276

P2.076
1.339

P2.942
1.110

P6S P64 P62 P2,10S P2.321 P2.336 (P2.190) (P2.530) (P2,768) P2.0S0
1.276

P1.934
1.339

P2.S72
1.110

Consolidated Total Uabinties P3,355 P3.418 P4.0S2 pe6 P84 pe2 P2.106 P2.321 P2.338 (P2.190) (P2,530) (P2.768) P3,335 P3.273 P3.682

Other Segment Information
Ca]^ expenditures
Daoredaiion and amortization

P160
363

P8

250
P22
327

P - P . p - PI
2

PI
5

P3
7

P . P . P - P181

355

P9
255

P25
334
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16. Capital Stock and Noncontroiling interests

Capttai Stock

Details of capital stock of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
are as follows:

Number of
Common

Shares Amount

Authorized capital stock:

at PI par value per share 5,000,000,000 P5,000,000,000

Issued and outstanding 2,498,991,753 P2,498,991,753

A summary of the Parent Company's securities registration is as follows:

Date of Registration/Listing Securities

March 17,1995

(Initial Public Offering)

April 18,1996

December 15,1999

112.50 million shares

On October 7,1994, the SEC approved the
increase in the authorized capital stock of
the Parent Company to P450.00 million
divided into 450 million shares with a par
value of PI per share, out of which, 337.50
millionshares were already subscribed.

944.97 million shares

On September 18,1995, the BOD resolved
to increase the authorized capital stock of
the Parent Company to P2.00 billion
divided into 2 billion shares with a par value
of PI per share. The purpose of the
increase was to finance the construction of
WCCCHI's hotel project

888.47 million shares

On August 7, 1999, the BOD resolved to
increase the authorized capital stock of the
Parent Company to P5.00 billion divided
into 5 billion shares with a par value of PI
per share. The purpose of the increase was
to accommodate the acquisition of DIHCI's
outstanding common shares for 888.47
million shares of the Parent Company with
an offer price of P2.03 per share.

The Parent Company has not sold any unregistered securities for the past 3 years.
As at December 31,2017,1.95 billion shares of the Parent Company are listed in the
PSE and has a total of 464 shareholders.

On July 20, 2007, the BOD resolved to Increase the authorized capital stock of the
Parent Company to PI 0.00 billionwith 10 billion shares at par value of PI per share.
This resolution was ratified by the Parent Company's stockholders owning at least
two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock during the annual stockholders' meeting
held on August 25, 2007.
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In 2009, the BOD passed a resolution temporarily suspendingthe implementation of
the above proposed increase in the authorized capital stock of the Parent Company.
As at December 31,2017, the Parent Company has no updated plans to increase its
authorized capital stock, or to modify any issued shares or to exchange them to
another class.

NoncontroHina Interests fNCIsl

The details of the Group's material NCIs are as follows (inthousands):

December 31.2016

APHC 6IRDI APHC GIRDI

Percentafie of NCt 44% 46% 44% 46%

Canying amount of NCI F657,6S6 P198,708 P885,239 PI98.682

Net Income attributable to NCI (P19.473) P26 P31,218 P26

Other comprehensive (loss) income attributable
to NCIs (Pe,110) P - P85.055 P -

The following are the audited condensed financial infomnation of investments in
subsidiaries with material NCIs (in thousands):

Decemtrer 31,2017 December 31.2016

APHC GIRO! APHC GiRDi

Total assets
Total liabilities

P2,273,527
(718,644)

P470,658
(38,683)

P2,316,169
(699.022)

P471.034
(39.116)

Net assets P1.S54,883 P431.975 PI .617,147 P431.918

Revenue P436,SS8 P1.S68 PS89.238 PI .521

Net (loss) income
Other comprehensive income

(P43.956)
(18.308)

P57 P70,470
191.999

P57

(P62,264) P57 P262.469 P57

Cash flowsprovided by (used in)operating
activities

Cash flows provided by investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activ^

P94,889
24,468

(129,107)

P - (P108.S87)
199.830
(76.500)

P -

Net (Decrease) Increase In Cash (P9,750) P - P14,743 P -
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17. Other Costs and Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016 2015

Laundry, valet and other
hotel services P121,177,477 P82,858.545 P79,973,865

Taxes and licenses 58,872,008 63,209,790 37,706,467
Security and other

relat^ services 40,176,231 34.136,908 32,841,759
Corporate expenses 31,017,805 15,657,090 26,250,954

Supplies 6 27,541,398 28,820,855 41,296,252

Insurance 20,891,793 21,855,434 21,543,413
Advertising 20,672,986 17,146,883 17,958,548

Representation and
entertainment 15,089,343 15,395,969 6,671,351

Commissions 13,434,997 11,559,966 11,227,322
Data processing 12,789,344 11,827,756 11,685,323
Professional fees 12,120,384 11,410,836 10,642.820

Transportation and travel 12,045,579 10,587,514 13,180,135

Fuel and oil 9,652,240 8,498,026 10,899,829
Communications 5,366,245 6,190,749 7,080,404
Guest amenities 2,299,279 3,174,403 3,478,861
Guest and laundry valet 1,760,207 1,598,388 1,249,281
Meeting expenses 1,344,423 1,580,499 193,801
Miscellaneous 8,898,521 7,388,196 17,184,036

P415,150,260 P352,897,807 P351.064,421

Miscellaneous include recruitment expense and employee association dues.

18. Retirement Benefits Cost

Certain subsidiaries have noncontributory, defined benefit plans (the Plans) covering
substantially all of their regular employees with at least five (5) years of continuous
sendee. The benefits are based on percentage of the employee's final monthly salary
for every year of continuous service depending on the len^ of stay. Contributions
and costs are determined in accordance with the actuarial studies made for the
Plans.

The latest independent actuarial valuation of the Plans was as at December 31,
2017, which was prepared using the projected unit credit method. The Plans are
administered by independent trustees (the Retirement Plan Trustees) with assets
held consolidated for the Group.

The Plans are registered with the BIR as a tax-qualified plan under Republic Act
No. 4917, As Amended, othenvise known as "Ah Act Providing that Retirement
Benefits of Employees of Private Firms shall not be Subject to Attachment, Levy,
Execution, or any Tax whatsoever."
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The reconciiiation of the present value of the DBO and the FVPA to the recognized
retirement tieneflts liability as presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position is as follows:

2017 DBO

Asset Ceiling
Retirement

Benefits
Uability

Batanca. January 1.2017 P207.266,S94 (P119.020,367) P10,271.638 P98,517,865

Included In Profit or Loss

Current service cost
Net interest income (cost)

16,393,560
11.312,948 (7,073,508) 563,913

16,393,560
4,803,353

27,706,608 (7,073,508) 563,913 21,196,913

Included In OCI

Remeasurement gains on plan assets:
1. Actuarial gains (losses) arising

from:
• Changes in finandai assumptions
• Changes in demographic

assumptions
• Experience adjustments

2. Return on plan assets excluding
interest income

3. Effect of asset ceiling

(10,544,372)

37,463,028
1,183,682

5,593,574
2,838,812

(10,544,372)

37,463,028
1,183,682

5,593,574
2,838,812

28,102,338 5,593,574 2,838,812 36,534,724

Others

ContrilHttionspaid by the employer
Benefits paid from;

Book reserves
Plan assets

(10,317,597)
(2,061.863)

(21,450,000)

Z061,863

-

(21,450,000)

(10,317,597)

Balance, Decemtrer 31,2017 P2S0,695,980 (P139,888,438) P13.674,363 PI24,481,905

2016 DBO FVPA

Asset Ceiling
Adjustment

Retirement
Benefits
Liabltity

Balance, January 1.2016 P20g,197,676 (P100,815,990) P8.300,910 P116.682.596

Induded in Profit or Loss
Current service cost
Net interest Income (cost)

15,091,937
11,138,022 (5,665,116) 449,909

15,091,937
5.722.815

26,229,959 (5,865,116) 449,909 20.814,752

Induded in OCI
Remeasurement losses on plan assets:

1. Actuarial (tosses) gains arising
from:
• Changes in finandai assumptions
• Changes in demographic

assumptions
• Experience adjustments

2. Return on plan assets exduding
interest income

3. Effect of asset ceiiing

(3,859,977)

2,393,590
(12,337,681)

3,960,574
1,520,819

(3,859,977)

2,393,590
(12,337,681)

3,960,574
1.520.819

(13,804,066) 3,960,574 1,520,819 (8,322,675)

Others
Contributions paid by the ^ployer
Beneifis paid from:

Book reserves
Plan assets

(9,606,808)
(4.750.165)

(21,050,000)

4,750,165

.

(21,050,000)

(9,606,808)

Balance, December 31,2016 P207,266,594 (P119,020,367) PI 0,271,638 P98,517,865

The retirement benefits cost recognized in profit or loss for the years ended
December 31,2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to P21.20 million, P20.81 million and
P40.34 million, respectively, and is presented as part of "Personnel costs" account in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Personnel costs comprise the following:

2017 2016 2015

Salaries and wages
Retirement benefits expense
Other employee benefits

P281,286,064
21,196,913
24,400,273

P296,403,578
20,814,752
19.305,899

P294,365,171
40,342,055
20,242,473

P326,883,250 P336,524,229 P354,949,699

The Group's plan assets consist of the following:

2017 2016

Debt Instruments - govemment bonds P87,860,624 P1,407,398
Cashand cash equivalents 30,498,250 879,667
Investment in govemment securities 12,890,796 90,400,862
Deposit in banks 4,923,694 18,430,283
Investment in other securities and debt instruments 1,178,515 1,076,225
Equity instruments 300,333
Debt instruments - other bonds 200,105
Other receivables 2,038,122 6,825,932

P139,888,438 P119,020,367

The principal actuarial assumptions at reporting date are as follows:

2017 2016
Discount rate 6.70% - 6.00% 5.43% - 5.49%
Salary increase rate 3.0% -10.0% 3.0% -10.0%

Assumptions regarding the mortality and disability rates are based on the 2001 CSO
Table - Generational (Scale AA, Society of Actuaries) and the DisabiiHy Study,
Period 2, Benefit 5 (Society of Actuaries), respectively.

The weighted-average duration of the DBO is 13.4 years and 12.6 years as at
December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively.

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments as at December 31 follows:

2017 2016

Carrying amount P250,695,980 P207,266,594

Within one (1) year PI2,316,420 P8,327,180
Wrthin 1-5 years 58,599,384 25,044,008
Within 5 - ten (10) Years 134,689,361 96,729,656

Contractual cash flows P205,605,165 P130.100,844

Sensitivitv Analvsis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the DBO by
the amounts shown below:

2017 2016
+1% :1% +1% :!%_

Discount rate (P24,044,673) P26,049,S96 (P15,464,129) P17,620,401
Salary increase rate 26.865.716 (21,914,771) 15.438.990 (13,891.841)
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Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows
expected under the Plans, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

These respective Plans expose the Group to actuarial risks such as longevity risk,
interest rate risk, and market (investment) risk.

Asset-iiabllitv Matching

The Retirement Plan Trustees have no specific matching strategy between the plan
assets and the plan liabilities.

Funding Policv

The Group is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable under the
retirement plans t)efore they Isecome due. However, in the event a benefit claim
arises and the respective Plans' fund is insufficient to pay the daim, the shortfall will
be paid by the Groupdirectiy to the employee-retiree. Hence, the amount and timing
of contributions to the respective Plans are at the Group's discretion.

19. Income Taxes

The componentsof the Group's incometax expense (benefit) are as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Recognized in Profit or Loss
Current tax expense
Deferred tax (benefit) expense

P177,643,376
(77.194.648)

P116,624,221
35.879.140

P71,347,136
5,460,572

P100,448,728 PI 52,503,361 P76,807,708

Recognized in OCi
Deferred tax (benefit) expense (PIO.960,417) P276,427,356 P5,939,095

The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at the statutory tax rate to
the actual incometax expense shown in profit or loss is as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Income before income tax P299,181,929 P471.388,347 P236,514.803

Income tax expense at 30%
Additions to (reductions in)

Income tax resulting from the
tax effects of:
Nondeductible expenses
Unrecognized deferred tax

assets during the year
Income not subject^to

income tax

P89.754.579

7.968.948

5.632.258

(2.907.057)

P141,416,504

10,863,786

3,678,457

(3.455.386)

P70,654.441

13,430,934

2,067,312

(9.344.979)

PIQO.448,728 PI 52,503,361 P76,807.708
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The movements of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Balance
Januaiy 1,

2017
Recognized

In Profit or Loss
Recognized Balance

Decetnbar 31.2017

Defied tax tiabOity:
Revaluation surptus on property

and eauloment P1.339.315.801 tP64J246.S71) P - P1Jt75.C69Jt30

Defensd tax assets:
Rettrementllabiitfy
Allowance for Impaiiment losses

on receivables

Unainortized past service cost
Uniealized fore^ exchange

toss
Accnied rent expense
Unsamed navenues
Minimum corporate Income tax

(Mcm
Accnied Interest expense on

loan

29,555.359

6,285,350
2,660,988

1,584.569
616,383
348,206

35,148

(3,171,205)

189,824
(915,842)

(1,584,569)
(113J188)
178,105

(35,148)

18.000.080

10,880,417 37,344,671

6,475,174
2,145,146

503,295
526,311

18.000.000

41,086,003 12.943,077 10.960,417 84,994,497

P1,288,229.798 (P77,ig4,648) (P10,860,417) P1,210,074,733

December 31.2016
Balance

January 1.2016
Recognized

In Profit or tjiss
Recognized

in 001
Balance

December 31.2016

Deferred tax liabilities:
Revaluationsurptus on property

and equipment
Rental receivable
Unamortized premium on

securftv deoosits

PI ,093,657,003
11,059,602

5.251.709

(P28,271,75S)
(11,059,602)

(5.251.709)

P273,930,5S3 P1,339,31S,801

1.109,888,314 (44,583,068) 273,630,553 1,339,315,801

Deferred tax assets;
Rdlrement liabOty
AHowaneefor Impairment

losses on reoeivabies
Unamortized past service cost

35,230,653

5,758,472
3,176,831

(3,178,481)

528,876
(515,843)

(2,466,803) 29,555,350

6,285,350
2,660,888

UlUOttUMlQ tMLIuUVyts

loss
Accnied rent expense
Unearned revenues
Mcrr

Rent received In advance
Net operating loss cany-over

INOLCO)

11,749,805
703,075
433,089
517,891

64,125,456

2.349.730

(10,165,238)
(88,692)
(84.883)

(492,743)
(64,125,456)

(2.349.730)

-

1,584,560
616,383
349,208

35,148

124,045,012 (80,462,208) (2,488,603) 41,086,003

P885,923.302 P35,879,140 P27e,427.35e PI ,298,229,788

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized by certain subsidiaries in respect of
the following Hems in the table below because it is not probable that future taxable
profits wiil be available against which the subsidiaries can utiiize the benefits thereon
prior to their expiration or reversal.

2017 2016

Tax Base Tax Effect Tax Base Tax Effect

NOLCO
Mcrr
Less allowance for

Impairment losses

P39,404,286
489,211

(3,427.734)

P11,821.286
489,211

(1.275.686)

P43,537,477
725,383

(530.528)

P13.G61.243
725,383

(159,158)

P36.465,763 P11,034,811 P43.732.332 PI 3,627,468

-27-



The movements of unrecognized net deferred tax assets of the Group are as follows:

2017 2016

Balance at beginning of year P13.627.468 P17.809,208

Unrecognized deferred tax asset during the year
NOLCO 5,620.492 3.429,246
MCIT 11,766 249,211
Impairment losses (1,116,528) (159,158)

Expiration of unrecognized deferred tax assets:
NOLCO (6.860,449) (6,859,312)
MCIT (247,938) (89,005)

Unrecognized deferred tax asset applied during
the year
NOLCO - (752.722)

Balance at end of year P11.034.811 P13.627.468

Detailsof unrecognized NOLCO are as follows;

Year

tncurted NOLCO

Remaining
AmountApplied Expired Amount

2017

2016

2015
2014

December 31,2020
December 31,2019
December 31,2018
December 31.2017

PI8,734,973
11,430,821

9,238,492
23.141.865

P -

(273.701)

P -

(22.868.164)

P18.734.973
11,430,821

9,238,492

P62.546.151 (P273,701) (P22,868,164) P30,404,288

Certain subsidiaries were required to pay MCIT under existing tax regulations. The
MCIT payments and the applicable years that these will be deductible from future
regular corporate income tax payable are shown below:

Year
Incuned Expiry Date Mcrr Applied Expired Amount

Remaining
Amount

2017

2016
2015
2014

December 31,2020
December 31,2019
December 31,2018
December 31.2017

P11,768
249,211
228,234
247.938

P - P -

(247.938)

P11,766
249,211
228,234

P737.149 P - (P247.938) P489,211

20. Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net income for the year by the
weighted average number of outstanding shares of common stock dunng the year.

Net income attributable to
equity holders of the Parent
Company

Weighted number of sharas
outstanding

Earnings per share -
basic and diluted

2017 2016 2015

P217,937,648 P287,392,497 P127.211.459

2,498.991.763 2.498.991.753 2.498,991.753

P0.087 P0.115 P0.051

There are no potentially dilutive shares as at December 31, 2017. 2016 and 2015.
Accordingly, diluted EPS is the same as basic EPS.
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21. Financial Instruments - Risk Management and Fair Values

Risk Management Stmcture

The BOD Is mainly responsible for the overall riskmanagement approach and for the
approval of risk strategic and principles of the Group. It also has the overall
responsibility for the developmentof risk strategies, principles, frameworks, policies
and limits. It establishes a forum of discussion of the Group's approach to risk Issues
In order to make relevant decisions.

Risk Management Committee

Risk management committee Is responsible for the comprehensive monitoring,
evaluation and analysisofthe Group's risksin line with the policies and limits set by
the BOD.

Financial Risk Management Obiectives and Policies
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents,
receivables, notes receivable, due from related parties, short-term investment, AFS
Investment, other noncurrent assets (except special project deposits), accounts
payable and accrued expenses, loan payable, other current liabilities and
concessionaires' deposits. These financial instruments arise directly from operations.

The main risks arising from the financial Instruments of the Group are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk. There has been no change to ttie Group's exposure to
risks or the manner in which It manages and measures the risks In prior financial
year. The Group's management reviews and approves policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarized as follows:

Credit Risk

Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss to the Group If a customer or counterparty to a
financial Instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Group's cash in banks, receivables and due from related parties.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer Is
analyzed Indh/iduaily for credltworthiness Isefore the Group's standard payment and
delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group's review includes external
ratings. Ifthey are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry
information, and in some cases bank references. The Group limits its exposure to
credit risk by establishing credit limits and maximum payment period for each
customer, reviewing outstanding balances to minimize transactions with customers in
industries experiencing particular economic volatility.

With respect to credit risk from other financial assets of the Group, which mainly
comprise ofdue from related parties, the exposure ofthe Group toci^it risk arises
firom the default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of these instruments.

There Is no other significant concentration of credit risk in the Group.
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The aging analyses of the Group's financial assets as at December 31, 2017 and
2016 are as follows (In thousands):

NeBher

PsstDus

nor <30 30-60 81-00 91-120 >120

OaesatlMrSI. 2017 Mofa Total tmoatred Days Days Davo Days Days tmpalfod

Cash and cash equhntents* 4 P342.803 P342,858 P • ? - P • P - P - P -

Rooatvatdas 9 240,945 143,008 58,991 7^ 4,994 3,900 11,790 21,584

KotssreosvaUo S 185,007 195/107 - - • •

8tact<(8Ra invastment 7 12:380 12,380 • • - •

Diesfromrslatsd pajtisa 8 2,011,233 1,990/M8 • - •
01,185

AF8 invastment a 15,855 15,855 - - • •

outer nancurrent sssela ** 10 23.018 23/119 - - • -

Tatal P2,880.377 92,882,253 P88,901 P7,6dO P4,894 P3,S80 P11,760 Pa2,789

'Excluding cashen hand
t 1 i 1 *7 •

spoomi ooposn

Neilher
Past Duo Past Oua but not saired

nor <30 30-60 61-90 91-120 >120

Oeoeml)er31.2018 Noto Total Imoaifod Days Days Days Days Daya tmaaired

Cash end cash equivelenia* 4 P168,211 P168,211 P - P - P - P - P - P -

Raoeivatdes 5 257,758 173^42 27,253 12.088 8,154 6,055 8,355 22,311

Shart-tBRn investment 7 12,251 12,251 - - - - - -

Oua item relalBd paities 0 1,839,282 1,878,097 • - - - -
61,165

AFS Invastment 0 18,822 16,622 - - - - • *

Ottiernoneunant assets ** 10 27.341 27.341 - • • - • -

Total P2,439,665 P2,294284 P27;253 P12.068 P8,1S4 P6,055 P0,3S5 P83,496

"ExcftKtlng cash on hand
"ExdufSng specialpwjoct daposda

The credit quality of the Group's financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired is considered to be of good quality and expected to be collectible without
incum'ng any credit losses.

Information on the Group's receivables and due fi'om related parties that are
Impaired as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the movement of the allowance
used to record the impairment losses are disclosed in Notes 5 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

LiquidityRisk
Liquidity risk Is tiie riskthat the Groupwill not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operation and mitigate the effects of fluctu^ons
in cash flows. Additional short-term funding is obtained through related party
advances and from bank loans, when necessary.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the BOD, which has
established an appropriate liquidity riskmanagement firamework for the management
of the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
by continuously monitoring forecast and ac^alcash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities. For the Group's short-term funding, the
Group's policy is to ensure that there is sufficient working capital inflows to match
repayments of short-term debt.
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The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities
as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 based on contractual undlscounted payments
(in thousands):

Total Contractual UndlScountgd Paymenta

December 31.2017 Note
Carrying
Amount Total On Demand

Less than

1 Year
ItoS

Years

Accounts payable and accrued
expenses*

other cunent (labilities**
(.oans payable
Concessionaires' deposits - net

of cunent Dordon

11

12
13

14

P1.431,6ii6
13,623

376,000

6,342

P1,431,666
13,623

376,000

6,342

PI,240,216
13,623

376,000

5,342

P180,263 P11,177

P1,826.621 P1,825,621 P1,634,181 P180,283 P11,177

'Excluding local taxes, output VATand wffhholdingtaxes
*^dudlng defened /itcome

Total Contractual Undlscounted Payments

Oeceffiber31.2016 Note
Canylng
Amount Total On Demand

Less than
1 Year

1to5
Years

Accounts payable and seemed
expenses*

Other cunent Ilabliities**
Loans payable
Concesslonaltes' deposits - net

ofcunent portion

11

12
13

14

PI .329,383
21,028

375,000

4,548

PI ,329,383
21,028

375.000

4.548

P886,3S6
21,028

375,000

4.548

P446,608 P16,419

PI ,729,959 PI ,729,659 PI ,266,932 P446,608 P16,419

*Exdu(tos focal toxes, output VATenefwHhhokSng taxes
"ExctixSng defsned bioonte

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument of the
Group wiil fluctuate due to change in market prices. Market risk reflects interest rate
risk, currency risk and other price risks.

Since the Group's loan in U.S. dollar had been fully paid in March2016, the Group is
not anymore significantly exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

interest Rate Risk
Ca^ flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flow of the financial
instruments will fluctuate because of the changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk tiiat the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates.

The Group's financial instrument that is exposed to interest risk is the interest-
bearing funds made available by the Parent Company to WCCCHI to finance the
construction of the Cebu City Hotel Project Such fiinds were substantiallysourced
from a P375.00 million loan from SSS, as well as the stock rights offiering of the
Parent Company. Since 2006, the Parent Companycharged WCCCHI on the related
interests and penalties on the contention that the latter benefited from the proceeds
of the SSS loan (see Note 13). Starting 2017, WCCCHI was not anymore charged
with the interest on SSS loan because .the Parent Company has assessed that if it
has already fulfilled its obligations related to its use of process from such loan.

31-



The following table Illustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the year and equity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates of ±10 basis point in 2017 and 2016,
with corresponding effect in equity. These changes are considered to be reasonably
possible based on obsenration of current market conditions. The calculations are
based on the Group's loan payable held at the reporting date. All other variables are
held constant.

2017

Changes in Interest Rates (in Basis Points) +10 -10

Net income (P6,000,000) P6,000,000

2016

Changes in Interest Rates (in Basis Points) +10 -10

Net income (P6,004,211) P6,004,211

The other financial instruments of the Group are either short-term or noninterest-
bearing and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk.

Cash flow interest rate risk exposure is managed within parameters approved by
management If the exposure exceeds the parameters, the Group enters into
hedging transactions.

Equity Price Risk
Equify price risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors aff^'ng all
similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk because of its investment in shares of
stock of Wll which are listed in the PSE totaling to 86.71 million ^ares as at
December 31,2017 and 2016 (see Note 8f).

The Group monitors the changes In the price of the shares of stock of Wll. In
managing its price risk, the Group disposes of existing or acquires additional shares
based on the economic conditions.

The following table Illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's equity to a reasonably
possible change in equity price. These dianges are consider^ to be reasonably
possible based on past equity price performance of the Group's AFS Investment and
macroeconomic forecast for 2017 and 2016. This analysis assumes an increase of
10% for 2017 and 2016 and a decrease of 10% for 2017 and 2016 of the equity price
of the Group's AFS investment All other variables are held constant

2017 2016

10% :10% 10% -10%
Equity PI,116,825 (PI,116,825) P1,177.522 (P1,177.522)
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Fair Value of Financial Assets and LiabHities
The table below summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial assets and liabilities as at December 31,2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

20162017

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amounts Values Amounts Values

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents* P342,858 P342,858 PI86,211 PI86,211

Receivables 228,361 228,361 235,447 235,447

Notes receivable 195,007 195,007 - -

Due from related parties 2,011,233 2,011,233 1,939,282 1,939.282

Short-term Investment 12,360 12,360 12,251 12,251

Available-for-sale investment 15,955 15,955 16,822 16,822

Other noncurrent assets ** 23.019 23.019 27.341 27,341

P2,828,793 P2,828,793 P2,417,354 P2,417,354

'ExdtxSng cash on hand
"Excluding specid pn^ect depodts

2017 2016

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amounts Values Amounts Values

Rnanclai Liabilities

Accounts payable and accroed
expenses*** PI ,431,656 P1,431,656 PI ,329,383 PI ,329,383

Other current liabilities**** 13,623 13,623 21,028 21,028
Loans payable 375,000 375,000 375,000 375,000
Concessionaires' deposits -

net of current portion 5,342 5.342 4.548 4.548

PI ,825,621 PI,825,621 PI ,729,959 PI ,729,959

*£xcftA/8S local taxes, output VATand w^^xMng raxes
'"Excluding defaned income

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, notes receivable,
current portion of due from related parties, short-term investment, other noncurrent
assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses, other current liabilities and
concessionaires' deposits approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity
of these instruments.

The fair value of interest-bearing due from related parties and loan payable is based
on the discounted value of expected future cash flows using the applicable market
rates for similar types of instruments as of the reporting date, thus, the carrying
amount approximates fair value.

The fair value of AFS investment was determined using the closing market price of
the investment listed on the PSE as of December 31,2017 and 2016.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure its ability to
continue as a going concem and that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capitai ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.
Capital is defined as the invested money or invested purchasing power, the net
assets or equity of the entity. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from
2017 and 2016.
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The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to It, in light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue newshares. Nochanges were made in the objectives, policies
or processes in 2017 and 2016.

On March 13, 2018, the WCCCHI's BOD approved the increase in the WCCCHI's
authorized capital stock from PI3.80 million divided into 13.80 million shares with a
par value of PI per share to P2.00 billion divided into 2 billion shares with a par value
of PI per share.

Further, the WCCCHI's BOD approved the proposal to convert the existing deposit
on future subscriptions which currently amounts to PI .00 billion Into equity, in
tranches, the first tranche inthe amountof P500.00 million and subsequent tranches
as the WCCCHI's BOD shall decide.

As at the date of the approval of the consolidated financial statements. WCCCHI has
yet to file its application forthe increase inauthorized capitai stockwith the SEC.

For purposes of the Group's capitai management, capital includes all equity Items
that are presented inthe consolidated statementofchanges inequity.

The Group is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements as at
December 31,2017.

22. Lease Agreements with PAGCOR

The Parent Company, in behalf of WCCCHI and WMCHI, entered into lease
agreements with PAGCOR. The lease agreement of WCCCHI with PAGCOR
covered the Main Area (8,123.60 sq.m.). Slot Machine Expansion Area (883.38
sq.m.). Mezzanine (2,335 sq.m.) and 5'*' Floor Junket Area (2,336 sq.m.) for a total
area of 13,677.98 sq.m. which commenced on March 3, 2011 and March 16, 2011,
for the Main Area and Slot Machine Expansion Area, respectively. The lease
agreement of WMCHI with PAGCOR covered the Main Area (4,076.24 sq.m.) and
Chip Washing Area (1,076 sq.m.) for a total area of 5,152.24 sq.m. which was last
renewed on March 21, 2011. Both leases expired on August 2, 2016. Thereafter,
PAGCOR paid the WCCCHI and WMCHI rental on a month-to-month basis. The
leasewas renewed on February 15,2018, for a period of1 year.

APHC also has a leaseagreement with PAGCOR covering the Main Area (7,093.05
sq.m.), Expansion Area A (2,130.36 sq.m.). Expansion Area B (3,069.92 sq.m.) and
Air Handling Unit Area (402.84 sq.m.) for a total lease area of12,696.17 sq.m. The
lease agreement was last renewed on December 1, 2010 and expired on
December 31, 2016. As at December 31, 2017, PAGCOR continued to operate a
portion ofthe leasearea ona month-to-month basiswhile completing itspullout from
APHC.

The amortized cost of the refundable security deposits received by WCCCHI,
WMCHI and APHC upon execution ofthe above lease contracts were determined by
calculating the present value ofthe cash flows anticipated until the end of the lease
term usir^ the respective interest rates. The change in the present value and the
amortization of the discount Is recognized as part of "Interest expense" account in
the consolidated statements ofprofit or lossand amounted to nil, P19.01 million and
P20.31 million In 2017, 2016 and2015, respectively. As the deposits do not have an
active market, the underlying interest rates were determined by reference to market
interest rates of comparable financial Instruments.
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Total rental Income from the above PAGCOR lease contracts recognized as part of
"Rent and related income" in the consolidated statements of profit or loss amounted
to P619.44 million, P720.41 million and P691.99 miilion in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

23. Other Lease Agreements

Group as Lessor

Lease Agreements with Concesstonalies
WCCCHI, WMCHI, DIHCI and APHC have lease agreements with concessionaires
for the commercial spaces available in their respective hotels. These agreements
typically run for a period of less than one year, renewable upon the mutual
agreement of the parties.

Rent revenue recognized as part of "Rent and related income" in profit or loss and
amounted to P56.39 million, P85.29 miilion and PI 35.63 million in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Group as Lessee

Land under Operating Lease
On September 15, 1994, Waterfront Hotel and Resort Sdn. Bhd. (WHR), a former
related party, executed a lease contract (the Agreement) with Mactan Cebu
Intemab'onal AirportAuthority (MCiAA) for the lease of certain parcels of land where
the hotels were constructed. On October 14, 1994, WHR assigned its rights and
obligations under the MCIAA contracts to WCCCHI and WMCHI.

WCCCHI and WMCHI shall pay MCIAA fixed rentals per month plus a 2% variable
rent based on the annual gross revenues of WCCCHI and WMCHI, as defined in the
Agreement The leases are for a period of fifty (50) years, subject to automatic
renewal for another twenty-five (25) years, depending on the provisions of the
appiicable Philippine laws at the time of renewal.

Fixed and non-cancellable operating lease rentals payable to MCIAA are as follows:

2017 2016

Less than 1 year P17,741,933 P17,741,933
Between 1 and 5 years 60,341,346 60,341,346
More than 5 years 276.271,062 286,619,044

P354,354,341 P364,702,323

Lease ofSlot Gaming Machines
In 2007, Dynamo Atlantic Limited (Dynamo), a foreign corporation duly organized,
existing and registered at the British Virgin Islands, entered into a Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) with Entertainment Gaming (Philippines), Inc. (EGP), for the lease
of electronic gaming machines for installation and operation in Universal Park Mall
Building located at Rizal Avenue, Sta. Cruz, Manila. Subsequently, Dynamo
executed a deed of assignment in favor of MBi for the fuli authority and rights over
the contract The MOA was renewed several times, the latest of which expired in
June 30,2016.

As a result of the cessation of MBI's business operations effective July 1, 2016, the
lease contract was no longer renewed.
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Total rent expense for the aforementioned leases amounted to P37.41 million,
P47.93 million and P66.78 million In 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively in the
consolidated statements of profitor loss and other comprehensive Income.

24. Commitments and Contingencies

The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the
Group:

a. On November 10,2008, the Parent Company received a preliminary assessment
notice from the BIR for deficiency taxes for the taxable year 2006. On
February 9,2009, the Parent Company sent a protest letter to BIR contesting the
said assessment. On February 18, 2009, the Regional Office of the BIR sent a
letter to the Parent Company informing the latter that the docket was returned to
Revenue DistrictOffice for reinvestigation and further verification.

On December 8, 2009, the Parent Company received BIR's Rnal Decision on
Disputed Assessment for deficiency taxes for the 2006 taxable year. The final
decision of the BIR seeks to collect deficiency assessments totaling to
P3.30 million. However, on January 15,2010, the Parent Company appealed the
final decision of the BIR with the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA) on the grounds of
lack of legal and factual bases in the issuance of the assessments.

In its decision promulgated on November 13, 2012, the CTA upheld the
expanded withholding tax (EWT) assessment and cancelled the VAT and
compromise penalty assessments. The Parent Company decided not to contest
the EWT assessment. The BIR filed its MR on December 4, 2012 and on
April 24, 2013, the Court issued its amended decision reinstating the VAT
assessment. The Parent Company filed its MR on the amended decision that
was denied by the CTA in its resolution promulgated on September 13,2013.

The Parent Company appealed the case to the CTA sitting En Banc on
October 21, 2013. The CTA En Banc decision promulgated on
December 4, 2014 affirmed the VAT and EWT assessments. The EWT
assessment was paid on March 3,2013.

The CTA En Banc decision, was appealed to the SC on February 5, 2015
covering the VAT assessment only. As at December 31, 2017, the Parent
Company Is still awaiting the SC's decision.

Management and its legal counsels believe that the position of the Parent
Company is sustainable, and accordingly, believe that the Parent Company does
not have a present obligation (legal or constructive) with resp^ to the
assessment

b. WMCHI has a tax case involving VAT assessment for the taxable year 2006. The
case was elevated to the CTA in 2011.* In 2012, WMCHI offered its formal
evidence to the court In its decision promulgated on May 31, 2013, the CTA
cancelled the VATassessment in its entirety. The BIR filed a MR that was denied
by the CTA in its resolution promulgated on August 16, 2013. The BIR appealed
the case to the CTA sitting En Banc on September 20, 2013. On
September 15, 2015, the CTA reaffirmed the decision cancelling the VAT
assessment.

In March 9,2016, the BIR filed with the SC its motion for extension of time to file
its appeal. As at December 31,2017, WMCHI is stillawaiting the SC's decision.
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c. Acesfte(Phils.) HotelCorporation versus PAGCOR, et al.
The case involved a Petition for Prohibition and Mandamus, with application for
the issuance of a Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) and writ of preliminary
injunction filed byAPHC against PAGCOR and Vanderwood Management Corp.
(VMC). APHC filed this case to assail PAGCOR's award to VMC of a
procurement project entitled "Lease Space for a Casino Gaming Facility in
Manila for a Period of 15 Years" under ITB No. 09-16-2014 for being violative of
the laws and rules on government procurement.

Subsequently, VMC filed its "Motion to Admit Attached Supplemental
Comment/Answer with Compulsory Counterclaim" (the Motion to Admit) on
August 10,2015, to which APHC filed an opposition to VMC's Motion to Admit In
an order dated Septemtjer 5, 2016, the Court denied VMC's Motion to Admit.
The Regional Trial Court of Manila, Branch 36, (the Court) likewise denied the
MRfiled by VMCin an order dated February 28,2017.

In a resolution dated June 18,2015, the Court denied the APHC's application for
TRO. The APHC thereafter filed a MR on July 6,2015. The said MR was denied
by the Court on August 1, 2016. APHC filed with the CA a Petition for Certiorari
(the 2nd petition), withapplicationfor TRO and/or writof preliminary injunction, to
assail the Courts resolutions dated June 18,2015 and August 1,2016. VMC and
PAGCOR filed their respective comments to the 2nd petition, to which APHC
filed its Consolidated Reply on December 19,2016.

At the pre-trial conference on October 4, 2016, the Court referred the parties to
the Philippine Mediation Center for mediation proceedings. After the termination
of the mediation proceedings, the case was returned to the Court for the Judicial
Dispute Resolution (JDR) proceedings. The JDR conference was set on
May 2, 2017 and was reset to February 6, 2018. No update conference has yet
been issued.

In a resolution dated January 25, 2017, the CA denied the APHC's applications
for the TRO and writ of preliminary injunction, and directed the parties to submit
their respective memoranda. In compliance with the CA's directive, APHC filed
its memorandum on February 13, 2017. VMC aiso filed its memorandum dated
February 16, 2017, while PAGCOR filed its memorandum dated
February 14,2017.

In a resolution dated March 3, 2017, the CA considered APHC's Petition for
Certiorari as submitted for decision. To date, no decision has yet been issued.

d. In the nomial course of business, the Group enters into commitments and
encounters certain contingencies, which include a case against a contractor of
one of its hotels for specific perfomiance. Management believes that the losses,
if any, that may arise from these commitments and contingencies would not be
material to warrant additional adjustment or disclosure to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group is defendant in other legal cases which are still pending resolution.
Management and legal counsels believe that the outcome of these cases will not
have any material effect on the Group's financial position and financial performance.
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25. Settlement of Tax Case with the Treasurer of City of Manila

The case arose from the notice of assessment issued by the Manila CityTreasurer's
Office on July 13,2007demanding APHC to payfor deficiency business tax for the
years 2004 to 2006totaling P45.58 million (including interest and penalties), arising
principally from non-declaration for local ^ purposes of revenues derived from
services In connection with the operation of PAGCOR InAPHC's hotel.

After the filing of the protest letters, petitions and appeals, the case was
subsequently decided against APHC on January 9, 2014 by the CTA En Banc.
Accordingly, APHC recognized a provision for P45.58 million In its books but
proceeded to elevate the case to the SC.

On December 8, 2015, APHC executed a compromise agreement with the City of
Manila wherein both parties agreed to the following terms: (1) APHC will pay the
recomputed tax liability amounting to P5.84 million; and (2) upon ratification of the
compromise agreement by the City Council of Manila, APHC shall cause the
withdrawal of the case pending before the SC.

The recomputed tax liability was paid by APHC on December 10, 2015. The
provision set up for the amounting to P45.58 million was subsequently reversed In
the consolidated statement of financial position and a gain on the reversal of
provision amounting to P39.73 miilion was recognized as part of revenues under
"Others" in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

On January 12, 2018, the City Council of Manila passed a resolution ratifying the
compromise agreement between the Cityof Manila and APHC.

26. Omnibus and Security Loan Agreement

On December 21, 2017, the Parent Company, WCCCHI, WMCHI, DIHCI, CRDC and
PRC (collectively, the Borrowers) entered into an Omnibus Loan and Security
Agreement (the Agreement) with Philippine Bank of Communications (PBCOM) for
the latter to provide the Borrowers multiple term loan facilities (the Loan Facilities) for
general corporate purposes in the maximum aggregate amount of up to P1.50 billion.
The Loan Fadlities consist of the followinig:

Facility 1 - represents secured term loan facility In the amount of P850.00 million
available through a single or multiple drawdowns with term of fifty-four (54) months
from the Initialdrawdown date, regardless of the number of drawdowns. Any amount
not drawn after the expiration of the commitment period shall be automatically
cancelled and may not be reinstated. Commitment period means the period
commencing from the date of the agreement and terminating on the earliest of:
(a) six (8) months from the signing of the Agreement; (b) the date when the
commitment is fully drawn or availed by mutual agreement of the parties; or (c) the
date when the cdmmltment is terminated of cancelled in accordance With the terms

of the Agreement.

Facility 2 - represents secured term loan facility In the amount of P200.00 million
available through a single or multiple drawdowns with term of fifty-four (54) months
from the initialdrawdown date, regardless of the number of drawdowns. Any amount
not drawn after the expiration of the commitment period shall be automatically
cancelled and may not be reinstated.
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Facility 3 - represents secured term loan facility in the amount of P450.00 million
available through a single or multiple drawdowns with term of forty-two (42) months
from the initial drawdown date, regardless of the number of drawdowns. Any amount
not drawn after the expiration of the commitment period shall be automatically
cancelled and may not be reinstated. Facility 3 requires, on or liefbre the initial
drawdown date, the borrower to cause the relevant mortgagors to constitute in favor
of PBCOM a first ranking real estate mortgage over Davao Agricultural Property
located at Matina, Pangi, Tolomo, Davao Cityconsisting of parcels of agricultural real
property containing an aggregate area of seventy (70) hectares registered in the
names of CREX) and PRC, and Locob property still registered in the name of an
individual, and register such security interest withappropriate Registry of Deeds.

The loan principal is repayable on equal monthly installments to commence at the
end of si}^ (6th) month from the initial drawdown date subject to balloon payment
upon maturity. Interest is charged at the higher of four (4)-year PDSTR2 rate on the
date of availment and spread of 3.25% per annum or 7.75% per annum, and
repayable monthly from the drawdown date.

The Loan Facilities are secured by chattel and real mortgages over various operating
assets of WCCCHI and DIHCI; real estate mortgages over Davao Agricuitural
Property; assignment over leasehold rights on the land owned by MCIAA on which
WCCCHI stands; and pledge of shares of stocks representing ownership of the
Parent Company In WCCCHI and DIHCI.

Each of the Borrowers is required to comply with certain covenants during the term
of the Agreement and until the full payment of the amounts due which include,
among others:

1. Debt to Equity Ratio of not higher than 2.5:1;
2. Debt Service Coverage Ratio of at least 1.25x; and
3. Negative covenants which prohibit each of the Borrowers to:

• Change the nature or scope of its business as presently conducted, or
liquidate or dissolve, or enter into any consolidation, merger, pool, joint
venture, syndicate or other combination, or sell, lease or dispose of a
substantial portion (as determined by PBCOM) of its business or assets, with
market or book value of P500.00 million or more;

• Permit any change in ownership (direct or indirect), management or control
of its business, which results in the present majorify stockholders ceasing to
hold, whether directly or indirectly through any person benefidally, at least
sixty-eight percent (68%) of the direct or indirect beneficial or economic
interest In each of the Bonewers;

• Declare or pay dividends to stockholders and make any capital or asset
distribution to stockholders;

• Purchase, redeem, retire or othenivise acquire for value any of capital stock
now or hereafter outstanding (other than as a result of the conversion of any
shares of capital stock into shares of any other class of capital stock), return
any capital to its stockholders as such, ormake any distritiution ofassetsto
its stockholders as sUch (other than distribution payable in shares of its own
outstanding capital stock);

• File any legal action to question any corporate act or transaction;
• Extend any loans, advances or subsidies to any corporation, partnership or

entity owned by the Borrowers or in which it may have equity, other than
advances in the ordinary course of business; and

• Extend any loans or advances to any of its directors, officers, stockholders,
affiliates and partners other than advances in the ordinary course of
business.
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On March 13, 2018, the Borrowers made the drawdowns of Facility 1 and Facility 2
amounting to P850.00 million and P200.00 million, respectively. On April 10. 2018,
the Borrowers made the drawdown of Facility 3 amounting to P450.00 million.

27. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out t}elow have been applied consistently to all years
presented In the consolidated financial statements, except for the changes in
accounting policies as explained below:

Adoption of Amendments to Standards
The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards starting
January 1, 2017 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. The adoption of
these amendments to standards and interpretations did not have any significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

• DisdosufB iniUaHve (Amendments to Phitippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 7,
Statement of Cash Flows). The amendments address financial statements users'
requests for improved disclosures about an entity's net debt relevant to
understanding an entity'scash flows. The amendments requireentities to provide
disdosures ttiat enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising fiom financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes - e.g. by providing a reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the statement of financial position for
liabilitiesarising from financing activities.

• Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets tor Unrealized Losses (Amendments to
PAS 12, Income Taxes). The amendments clarifythat

• the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carryingamount of an asset and its tax base at the end of
the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the
carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset;

• the calculation of future taxable profit in evaluating whether sufficient taxable
profit will be available in future periods excludes tax deductions resulting
from the reversal of the deductible temporary diflierences;

• the estimate of probable future taxable profit may include the recovery of
some of an entity's assets for more than their carrying amount if there is
sufficient evidence that it is probable that the entity will achieve this; and

• an entity assesses a deductible temporary difference related to unrealized
losses in combination with all of its other deductible temporary differences,
unless a tax law restricts the utilization of losses to deduction against income
of a specific type.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company,
as well as those of its subsidiaries enumerated in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

40



Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entit'es controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity if and
only if, the Group is exposed to, or has rights to. variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Parent Company and are included in the consolidated financial
statements fiom the date when control commences until the date when control
ceases.

The accounting policies of subsidiaries are being aligned wHh the policies adopted by
the Group. Losses applicable to the NCI in a subsidiary are allocated to the NCI even
ifdoing so causes the NCIto have a deficit balance.

Accounting for NCI
NCI represents the portion of profit or loss, OCI and the net assets not held by the
Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position,separately from the Parent Company's equity.

Acquisitions of NCI are accounted for as transaction with owners in their capacity as
ownersand therefore no goodwill is recognized as a result of such transactions. The
adjustments to NCI. ifany, are based on a proportionate amount ofthe net assets of
the subsidiary.

LossofContml
Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, any noncontrolling intere^ and other components of equity related to the
subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit resulting from lossof control Is recognized in profit
or loss. Ifthe Group retainsany Interest inthe previous subsidiary, then such inters
is measured at fair value at the date that control Is lost Subsequently, it Is accounted
for as an equity-accounted investee oras an AFS investment depending onthe level
of influence.

Transac^ons Eliminated on Consolkiation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses
arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with equity-
accounted investees are eliminated against the Investment to the extent of the
Group'sinterestIn the investee. Unrealized losses are eliminated inthe same wayas
unrealized gains, butonly tothe extent that there is noevidence ofimpairment

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incurexpenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other components.
All operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's BOD, the chiefoperating
decision maker of the Group, to make decisions about resources to tie allocated to
the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information Is available.
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Segment results that are reported to the Group's BOO include Items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Unallocated Items comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses
and Income tax assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
property and equipment.

The Group's businesses are operated and organized according to the nature of
business provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit,
namely, the Hotel operations, Marketing operations and Corporate and Other
Operations segments.

The Group's only reportable geographical segment is the Philippines.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to tiie extent that It Is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Income Is measured at
tiie fair value of tiie consideration received, net of trade discounts, rebates, and other
sales taxes or duties. The following specific criteria must also tie met before revenue
is recognized:

Rooms

Room revenue is recognized based on actual occupancy.

Food and Beverage
Foodand beverage revenue is recognizedwhen orders are senred and billed.

Rent and Related income

Rent and related Income on leased areas of the Group's properties is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for cancellable leases
which are recognized at amount collected or collectible based on the contract
provision.

Other Revenues
Otherrevenues are recognized upon execution ofservice or when earned.

Interest Income
Interest income is recognized as Itaccrues using the effective interestmethod.

Determination of whether tiie Group Is Actingas a Principal oran Agent
The Group assesses its revenue anangements against the following criteria to
determine whether It is acting as a principal or an agent

• whether the Group has primary responsibility for providing the goods and
services;

• whether the Group has discretion in establishing prices; and
* whether the Group bears the credit risk.

Ifthe Group has determined It is acting as a principal, the Group recognizes revenue
on a gross basis withthe amount remittedto the other party being accounted as part
of costs and expenses. Ifthe Group has detemnlned it is acting as agent onlythe net
amount retained is recognized as revenue.

The Group assessed Its revenue arrangements and concluded that It is acting as
principal in all arrangements.
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Cost and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized In profit or loss upon utilization of the senrlce or
at the date they are Incurred. Interest expense Is recognized In profit or loss In the
period Inwhich they are Incurred using the effective Interest method.

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets
The Group classifies Its financial assets In the following categories: (a) at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), (b) loans and receivables, (c) held-to-maturlty (HTM)
Investments, and (d) APS financial assets. The Group's classificationdepends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of Its financial assets at Initial recognition. The Group only holds
financial assets classified as AFS Investments and loans and receivables.

(a) Classification

Loans and receivables are nondeiivatlve financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and where
management has no Intention of trading. They are Included In current assets,
except formahirities greater than twelve (12) monthsafter the financial reporting

^ date. In which case, these are classified as noncurrent assets. The Group's cash
and cash equivalents, receivables, short-term Investment, due from related
parties and rekindabte deposits (presented under "Other noncurrent assets"
account In the consolldateicl statement of financial position) are classified as
loans and receivables as at December 31,2017 and 2016.

Cash, which Includes cash on hand and In banks, is stated at face value. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid Investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three (3) months or less
which are subject to Insignificant risk of change Invalue.

Short-term Investment Is a certificate of deposit which is highly liquid with
maturity of more than three (3) months but less than one (1) year from date of
acquisition and subject to an Insignificant risk of change in value.

AFS Investment Is designated as such or does not qualify to be classified as
financial asset at FVPL, HTM Investments or loans and receivables. This
Investment, which Is purchased and held indefinitely, may be sold In respond to
llquidify requirements or changes In market conditions. This only Includes equity
Investments.

(b) Initial Recognition and Derecognltion

Financial assets are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Regular way purchases and sales-of financial assets are recognized on trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets require delivery of assets
within the timeframe generally established by regulations or convention In the
marketplace. Rnanclal assets are initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at FVPL.
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Financial assets are derecognized when:

• the rightsto receive cash flows from the flnancial assets have expired; or
• the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has

assumed an obligation to pay them In full without material delay to a third
party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; or

" the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flowsfrom the asset and
either (i) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset;
or (ii) has neither transferred nor retained substantially ail the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from a financial
asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantiaily all the risks and
rewards of the financial assets nor transferred control of the flnancial asset, the
flnancial asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement
in the financial asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
financial asset Is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
financial asset and frie maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

(c) Subsequent Measurement

Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less Impairment losses, if any.

AFS investment is subsequently measured at fair value. The effective yield
component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on
foreign currency-denominated AFS debt securifles, is reported in profit or loss.
The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS
investments are recognized in 001 and are presented as "Fairvalue reserve" In
the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position.

(d) Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is determined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to. transfer a liability In an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions
(i.e. an exit price), r^ardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Where applicable, the Group uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable Input and minimizing fee use of uncbservable inputs.

When measuring fee fair value of an asset or liability, fee Group uses market
observable data as far as possible.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on
fee inputs used in fee valuation techniques as follows:

• Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 feat are
observable for fee asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and
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" Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

if the inputs used to measure the ^ir value of an asset or liability might be
categorized in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement
The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting period during whichthe change has occurred.

The Group's AFS investment as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is based on
Level 1. Further information about the assumption made in measuring the
recurring fair value of AFS investment is included In Note 8f to the consolidated
financial statements.

(e) Impairment

The Group assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired.

Impaimrent of trade and other receivables financial assets is described in Note3
to the consolidated financial statements. For those carried at amortized cost,
individually significant financial assets are tested for Impairment if there are
indicators of impairment Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss and the
carrying amount Is reduced through the use of allowance. If, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impaimnent was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.

Impairment loss on AFS financial asset is recognized by reclassifying the loss
accumulated in the fair value reserve to profitor loss. The amount redassifled Is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortization) and the current fair value, less any impaimnent loss previously
recognized in profit or loss. If the fair value of an Impaired AFS debt security
instrument subsequently increases and the increasecan be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss; othen/vise it is reversed
through OCI.

Financial Liabiiities

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial liabilities as financial liabilities at FVPL and
otiier financial liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are classified as other
financial liabilities.

OtherFinancial Liabiiities
These include liabilitiesthat are not classified or designated at FVPL and contain
contract obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or to
settle the obligation other than the exchange of a fixed amount of cash.

The Group's financial liabilities categorized under other financial liabilities include
interest-bearing loans, accounts payable and accrued expenses, refundable
security deposits and related accrued interest
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(b) initiai Recognition and Derecognition

Financiai liabiiities are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial liabiiities are initiaiiy recognized at fair value, less any directly
attributable transaction cost.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liabilify is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantiallydifferentterms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the diflierence in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in profitor loss.

(c) Subsequent Measurement

After Initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized co^ is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.

Offsetting Financial Assets and UabiiWes
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consoiidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is intention to
settle on a net basis, or to reaiize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
This is not generallythe case vrith master netting agreements, and the related assets
and liabilities are presented at gross in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and NRV. Cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition is calculated using the weighted
average method.

NRV for food and beverage represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs to sell. NRV of operating supplies and
engineering and maintenance supplies is the estimated current replacement cost
Inventories are periodically reviewed and evaluated for obsolescence. Obsolete
inventories are scrapped or disposed of and the related costs are charged to
operations.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent expenses not yet incurred but are already paid. Prepaid
expenses are initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are charged to profit or loss as they are
consumed in operations or expire with the passage of time.

Prepaid expenses are classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as
current assets when the cost of goods or services related to the prepayments are
expected to be incurred within one year or the Group's normal operating cycle,
whichever is longer. Otherwise, they are classified as noncurrent assets.
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Property and EouiDment

Measumment at InitialRecognition
Upon initial recognition, items of property and equipment are measured at cost which
comprises the purchase price and ali directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to the location and condition for its intended use.

Measurement Sut)sequent to InitialRecognition
Properly and equipment, except for leasehold improvements, operating equipment
and construction in progress which are stated at cost, are carried at revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any sut)sequent
accumulated depreciation and amortization and impairment losses, if any. Fair
values are determined through appraisal by an independent firm of appraisers.
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the casing amount
does not differ materially from that which would be detemnined usingfairvalue at the
end of the reporting period.

The net appraisal surplus resulting from the revaluation is credited to "Revaluation
surplus on property and equipmenf account (net of corresponding deferred income
tax effect) shown under die consolidated statenrtent of changes in equify. Any
increase in the revaluation amount is credited to the "Revaluation surplus on propeity

^ and equipmenf account unless it offsets a previous decrease in tee value of tee
same asset recognized in profit or loss. Adecrease invalueis recognized in profit or
loss where it exceeds tee increase previouslyrecognized in tee "Revaluation surplus
on property and equipment" Upon disposal, any related revaluation surplus is
transferred to "Accumulated Defied account and is not taken into account inarriving
at tee gain or loss on disposal. Also, tee amount of revaluation surplus absoit)ed
through depreciation is being transferred to "Accumulated Deflcif account, net of
deferred tax effect.

All costs, including borrowing costs, which were directly and dearly assodated with
tee construction of tee hotels, were capitalized.

Construction-in-progress, included in property and equipment, represents structures
under construction and is stated at cost This indudes cost of construction and other
direct costs. Construction-in-progress is not depredated until such time as tee
relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.

Operating equipment consisting of chinaware, glassware, silvenivare and linen are
stated at cost less accumulate amortization and adjustments based on periodic
inventory method. Under this method, the recorded co^ ofoperating equipment are
amortized using various rates and adjusted based on periodic inventory count
Adjustments indude tee effects of any breakages and damages. The amortization
and adjustments are recognized in profitor loss.

Subsequent Costs
Subsequent costs teat can be measured reliably are added to tee carrying amount of
tee asset when it is probable teat feture economic benefits assodated virite tee asset
will flow to tee Group. The costs of day-to-day senridng of an asset are recognized
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Fair Value Measurement
The Group's property and equipment as at Decemtier 31, 2017 and 2016 is based
on levei 3. Further information about tee assumption made in measuring feir value of
property and equipment is included in Note 8 to tee consolidated finandal
statements.
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Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation Is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful
life of the asset or term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Number of Years

Land improvements 5-10

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term

and 10

Hotel buildings and improvements 15-50

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3

Operating equipment 3

Transportation equipment 3

The estimated useftji lives, as well as the depreciation and amortization methods are
reviewed at each reporting date to ensure that the period and methods of
depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic
benefits from those assets.

Fully depreciatedand amortized assets are retained in the accounts until they are no
longer in use, no further charges for depreciation and amortization are made in
respect of those assets.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expect^ from its disposal, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal is
recognized in profit or loss.

Imoainnent of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying amount of the Group's property and equipment is reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether ^ere is any indication of impairment if such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the impaired asset is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its
cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount Impaimient losses are
recognized in profit or loss, unless the asset is carriedat revaluedamount in which
case the Impairment loss is chained to the revaluation incrementof the said asset

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use (VIU). Fair value less cost of disposal is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabilHy in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, less the costs of disposal. In
assessing ViU, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset being evaluated. Ifah asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change In the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been
recognized. Reversals of impairments are recognized in profit or loss, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization expense is adjusted in future
years to allocate the assets revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining life.

Emolovee Benefits

Short-tenn Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations, such as those for salaries and wages,
social security contributions, short-term compensated absences, bonuses and
nonmonetary benefits, among others, are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related senrice Is provided.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Group's net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of the future benefit that employees have earned In the
currentand prior periods, discounting that amount and deductingthe fairvalue of any
plan assets.

The calculation of OBO is performed on a periodic basis by a qualified actuary using
the projected unitcredit method.When the calculation results in a potential asset for
the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the retum on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset
ceiling (If any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in OCI and presented
under "Retirement Benefits Reserve" under equity. The Group determines the net
interest expense or incomeon the net defined benefit liability or asset for the period
by applying the discount rate used to measure the DBO at the tieginning of the
annual period to the net defined benefit liability or asset, taking into, account any
changes in the net defined liability or asset during the period as a result of
contributions and benefitpayments. Net interest expense and other expenses related
to the defined benefit plan are recognized in profitor loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined tjenefit plan
when the settlement occurs.
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Related Party Relationship

A related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directlyor
indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exerdse significant
influence over the other party in making finandal and operating decisions. Such
relationships also exist between and/or among entities which are under common
control with the reporting enterprise, or between, and/or among the reporting
enterprise and Its KMP, directors, or its stockholders. In considering each possible
related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship,
and not merely the legal form.

Operatina Leases - Group as Lessor

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is
retained by the Group are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs Incurred
in negotiating operating lease are added to the carrying amount of tiie leased asset
and recognized over the leased term on the same basis as rental income. Rental
income from operating leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease, except for cancellable leases which are recognized at the
amount collected or collectible based on the contract provision.

Operating Lease - Group as Lessee

Lease in which a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership is retained
by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Payments made under non-
cancellabie operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a stralght-llne basis
over the term of the lease.

Foreign Currencv Transactions and Translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded In Philippine peso
based on the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Philippine
peso using the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in
profit or loss witii the exception of monetary Items that are designated as part of the
hedge of the Group's net Investment in a foreign operation. These are recognized
under "Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations' account in
GCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount Is
reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exdiange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI.

Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost In a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the Initial
transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using tire exchange rates at the date when the fairvalue is determined.

The gain or loss arising on translation of nonmonetary items measured at fair value
Is treated in linewith the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fairvalue of
the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or-profit or loss,
respectively).

During the translation of the financial statement accounts of the foreign subsidiaries
wherein accounts are being maintained In U.S. dollar, the differences between the
reporting currency and the functional currency are recorded in OCI.
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The results and financial position of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into
Philippine peso using the following procedures:

• assets and liabilitiesare translated at the closing rate at reporting date;

• income and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the date of the
transaction; and

• all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component in
equity.

Income Taxes

Incometax, which comprises current and deferred tax, Is recognized in profit or loss
except to the extentthat it relates to itemsrecognized directly inequityand in OCl.

Current tax is the expected tax payable for the year, using tax rates enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years, if
any.

^ Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assete and liabilities for finandal reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized fon

• temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss;

• temporarydifferences related to investments insubsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse In the
foreseeable future; and

• taxable temporarydifferencesarising on the Initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset Is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profitswill be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized. The deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced, ifappropriate.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and if they relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entitles, but
they Intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets-on a net basis or either tax
assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

mi
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT,except

" where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the tax Is recognized as part of the cost
of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and
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" receivablesand payables that are stated with the amount of tax Included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of "Prepaid expenses and other current assets" or "Accounts
payable and accrued expenses" accounts In the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Eouitv

Capital stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of capital stock, Ifany, are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of
any tax effects, if this can be atisorbed by the excess of issue oost over par value.
OthenMise, these are recognized in profitor loss.

Accumulated deficit includes accumulated results of operations as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

EPS

Basic EPS is determined by dividing net income or loss for the year by the weighted
average number of common shares subscribed and issued during the year, after
retroactive adjustment for any stock dividend and stock splits declared during the
year. Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner as the aforementioned, except
that all outstanding convertible preferred shares were further assumed to have been
converted to common stock at the beginning of the period or at the time of issuance
during the year.

Provisions and Continoencies

A provision Is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. It is recognized when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; when it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to setUe the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. The amount to be recognized as provision shall
be the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period.

When it is not probable that an outflowof economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation Is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by tfie occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more, future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but
are disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reoortina Period
The Group identifies post year-end events as events that occurred after the reporting
date but before the date when the consolidated financial statements were authorized
for issue. Any post year-end events that provide additional information about the
Group's financial position or performance at the end of a reporting period (adjusting
events) are recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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New Standards. Amendments to Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Adopted
A number of new standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017. However, the Group has not applied the
following new or amended standards and interpretations in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. The Group is currently assessing and has yet to
reasonably estimate the impact of these, if any, on its consolidated financial
statements.

To be Adopted on January 1,2018

• PFRS 9, Financial instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognib'on and Measurement and supersedes the
previously published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
model (In 2013). PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets, including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment, guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities
measured at fair value and supplements the n^ general hedge accounting
requirements published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting
requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and
introduces significant improvement by aligning the accounting more closely with
risk management. The Parent Company is still completing its assessment of the
impact of PFRS 9 on its consolidated financial statements.

• PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, replaces PAS 11,
Construcdon Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, Intemational Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 13, CustomerLoyalty Programmes, IFRIC 18,
Transfer ofAssets from Customers and Standard Interpretations Committee-31,
Revenue - Barter Transactions inymlving AdvertisingServices. The new standard
introduces a new revenue recognition model for contracts with customers which
specifies that revenue should be recognized when (or as) a company transfers
control of goods or sen/ices to a customer at the amount to which the company
expects to be entitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are met, revenue is
recognized over time, in a manner that best reflects the company's performance,
or at a point in time, when control of the goods or services is transferred to the
customer. The standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial
instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRS. It also
does not apply if two companies in the same line of business exchange non-
monetary assets to fedlitate sales to other parties. Furthermore, if a contract with
a customer is partly in the scope of another PFRS, then the guidance on
separation and measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.
The new standard is to be applied retrospectively.

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration. The interpretation clarifies that the transaction date to be used for
translation for foreign currency transactions involving an advance payment or
receipt is the date on which the entity initially recognizes the prepayment or
deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For transactions
involving multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt gives rise to a
separate transaction date. The interpretation applies when an entity pays or
receives consideration in a foreign currency and recognizes a non-monetary
asset or liability before recognizing the related item.
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To be Adopted on January 1, 2019

• PFRS 16, Leases, supersedes PAS 17, Leases, and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The newstandard introducesa single lease accountingmodel for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing
the lease classification te^. Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains
unchanged except for a number of details including the application of the new
lease definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and
new disclosure requirements. Practical expedients and tarigeted reliefs were
introduced including an optional lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases
with a term of twelve months or less) and low-value Items, as well as the
permission of portfolio-level accounting instead of applying the requirements to
individual leases. Ne/v estimates and judgmental thresholds that affect the
identification, classification and measurement of lease transactions, as well as
requirementsto reassess certain key estimates and judgments at each reporting
date were introduced. The new standard Is to be applied retrospectively.

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatinents
clarifies howto applythe recognition and measurement requirements in PAS 12,
income Taxes when there is uncertainty over income tax freatments. Under the
interpretation, whether the amounts recorded in the consolidated financial
statements will differ to that in the tax retum, and whether the uncertainty is
disclosed or reflected In the measurement, depends on whether It Is probable
that the tax authority will accept the Group's chosen tax treatment If it is not
probable that the tax authority will accept the Group's chosen tax treatment the
uncertainty is reflected using the measure that provides the better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty - either the most likely amount or the expected
value. The interpretation also requires the reassessment of Judgements and
estimates applied if facts and circumstances change - e.g., as a result of
examinationor action bytax authorities,following changes in tax rules or when a
tax authority's right to challenge a treatment expires.
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R.G. Manabat & Co.
The KPMG Center. 9/F
6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226
Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000
Fax +63(2)894 1985
Internet www.kpmg.com.ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpm9.c0m.ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR FILING
WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Waterfront Philippines, incorporated and Subsidiaries
No. 1 Waterfront Drive
Off Salinas Drive, Lahug
Cebu City, Cebu

We have audited, in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated
financial statements of Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated and Subsidiaries
(the Group) as at and for the year ended December 31,2017, included in this

. Form 17-A, on which we have rendered our report thereon dated April 25,2018.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in
the following accompanying additional components is the responsibility of the Group's

. management.

1. Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations
(Annex A)

2. Map of Conglomerate (Annex B)
3. Supplementary Schedules of Annex 68-E (Annex C)
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The above supplementaryinformation is presented for purposes ofcomplying with the
SecuritiesRegulation Code Rule 68, As Amended, and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information has been subjected
to the auditing proceduresapplied in the auditofthe consolidated financial statements
and, in our opinion, Isfairly stated, inallmaterial respects, in relation to the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT&CO.

TIRESO RANDY F:

Partner
CPA License No. 0092183
SEC Accreditation No. 1472-A, Group A, valid until April 30. 2018
Tax Identification No. 162-411-175
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-34-2017

Issued September 4,2017; valid until September 3, 2020
/-O PTRN0.6615138MD

Issued January 3,2018 at Makati City

r

April 25,2018
Makati City, Metro Manila



ANNEX A

WATEFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE REQUIRED UNDER SECURITIES REGULATION CODE RULE 68,

AS AMENDED

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and interpretations
Effective as at December 31, 2017

iMI^PiN&FlNANCrAL REPQj
jlTERPRETAnONS " |
bscdveas ofDecember 31,

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting S^ndards

PFRS1

(Revised)

PFRS 2

PFRS 3

(Revised)

PFRS 4

First-time Adaption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an invesbnent
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for Fitsf-time
Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative
PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

IAmendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans
Annual Impnsvements to PFRSs 2C09 - 2011 Cycle; First-
time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards -
Repeated Application of PFRS 1

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Borrowing Cost Exemption

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle; PFRS
version that a first-time adopter can apply

Annual improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle; Deletion
of short-term exemptions for first-limeadopters

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2; Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

Annual Improvementsto PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle: Meaning
ofvesting condition"

Amendments to PFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of
IShare-based Payment Transactions

: Business Combinations

•Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
iClassificationand measurement of contingent consideration

;Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle; Scope
:exclusion for the formation of joint arrangements

IInsurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee
Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9, Financial
instruments with PFRS 4. Insurance Contracts

! Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

' Not ^
Adopted

" • 'Not

Applicable



lUPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
Pf^RETATlONS ; ,

iAnnual Improvements to PFRSs2012- 2014Cycle:
\ Changes in method for disposal

PFRS 6 i Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7; Reclassification of
Financial Assets • Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7; Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures • Transfers of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7; Disclosures - Offsetting Rnancial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS
9 and Transition Disclosures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle;
'Continuing involvement' for servicing contracts

Annual Improvemente to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Oflsetting disclosures in condensed interim financial
statements

'PFRS 8 jOperating Segments
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle:
Disclosures on the aggregation of operating segments

PFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014)

Amendments to PFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11. and PFRS 12:
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12. and PAS 27 (2011):
Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to PFRS 10. PFRS 12 and PAS 28: Investment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11. and PFRS 12:
Consolidated Finandal Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

j PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10. PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10. PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011):

ANNEX A
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IliiUPPiNE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
IgTER^RETATiON!:

: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28; Investment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 -2016 Cycle:
Clarification of the scope of the standard

PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
; Measurement of short-term receivables and payables

jAnnual Improvements to PFRSs2011 - 2013Cycle: Scope of
I portfolio exception

PFRS 14 i Regulatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 15 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS 16 Leases

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS1

(Revised)
iPresentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1; Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Presentation of Financial Statements - Comparative
Information beyond Minimum Requirements

iAnnual Improvements toPFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
i Presentation of the Opening Statement of Financial Position
i and Related Notes

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

Inventories

Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

Accounting Policies, Changes inAccounting Estimates and
Errors

Events after the Reporting Period

Construction Contracts

Income Taxes

Amendment to PAS12: Deferred Tax; Recovery of Underlying
Assets

iAmendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred TaxAssets
Ifor Unrealized Losses

PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Annual Improvementsto PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle: Property,
Plant and Equipment- Classification of Servicing Equipment

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle:
Restatement of accumulated depreciation (amortization) on
revaluation (Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38)

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of

ANNEX A

Adopted
Adopted Applical



Lterpretations
IAcceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 17

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41; Agriculture: Bearer
plants

PAS 19

(Amended)

jRevenue
1 • —
! Employee Benefits

IAmendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefil Plans: Employee
{Contributions

PAS 20

PAS 23

(Revised)

PAS 24

(Revised)

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle: Discount
rate in a regional market sharing the same currency - e.g. the
Eurozone

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

PAS 27

(Amended)

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Definition of 'related party'

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011):
Investment Entities

PAS 28

(Amended)

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28. Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

iAmendments to PFRS 10. PFRS 12 and PAS 28' Investment
•Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

:Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle:
: Measuring an associate or joint venture at fair value

:Amendments to PAS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates
iand JointVentures ;

jFinancial Reporting In Hyperinflationary Economies I
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

iAmendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues
Amendments to PAS 32: OITsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

IAnnual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle: Financial
i Instruments Presentation - Income Tax Consequences of
; Distributions

iEarnings per Share

j Interim FinancialReporting

ANNEX A

Adopted Applicable!



PAS 37

PAS 39

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle: Interim
Financial Reporting - Segment Assets and Liabilities
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Disclosure of information "elsewhere in the interim financial
report'

Impairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Intangible Assets

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Restatement of accumulated depreciation (amortization) on
revaluation (Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38)

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognition of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee
IContracts
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of

Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and PAS
i39: EmbeddedDerivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items

Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40 Investment Property

Annual improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: Inter
relationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 (Amendment to PAS 40)

I Amendments to PAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property
!PAS 41 ;Agriculture

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS41: Agriculture: Bearer
Plants

; Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1 :Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
i Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2 iMembers' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
i Instruments

IFRIC 4 Determining Whetheran Arrangement Containsa Lease

IFRIC 6 Rights to Interests arisingfrom Decommissioning, Restoration
and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating ina SpecificMarket -
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29Financial !



lUPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARbS AN
TERPRETATIONS

, IFRIC 9

Reporting in HyperinflationaryEconomies

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Amendments to Ptiilippine interpretation IFRlC-9 and PAS
39: Embedded Derivatives

1IFRIC 10 ]Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IIFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IIFRIC 14 IPAS 13 -The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, twiinimum
! Funding Requirements and their Interaction

:Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC-14.
: Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

ÎFRIC 16 IHedges ofa Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
IIFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

jIFRIC 18 iTransfers ofAssets from Customers
IFRIC 19 IExtinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

iIFRIC 20 Stripping Costsin theProduction Phaseofa Surface Mine

IIFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 22 iForeign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 23 : Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

SIC-7 ; Introduction of the Euro

SIC-10 ; Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating
: Activities

SiC-15 IOperating Leases - Incentives
S!C-26 Iincome Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its

i Shareholders

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease

SIC-29 IService Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.

SIC-31 i Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services

SIC-32 : Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs

Philippine Interpretations Committee Questions and Answers

PIC Q&A PAS 18, Appendix, paragraph 9 - Revenue recognition for
2006-01 isales of property units underpre-completion contracts

PIC Q&A ! PAS 27.10(d) - Clarification of criteria for exemption from
2006-02 Ipresenting consolidated financial statements
PIC Q&A PAS 1.103(a) - Basis of preparation of financial statements if
2007-01- an entity has not applied PFRSs in full
Revised

PIC Q&A PAS20.24.37 and PAS 39.43 - Accounting for government
2007-02 loans with low interest rates (see PIC Q&A No. 2008-02]

PIC Q&A PAS 40.27 - Valuation of bank real and other properties
2007-03 acquired (ROPA)

PIC Q&A PAS 101.7 - Application of criteria for a qualifying NPAE

PAS 19.78 - Rate used in discounting post-employment
benefit obligations



PIC Q&A

2008-02

PIC Q&A

2009-01

PIC Q&A

! 2009-02

PIC Q&A

2010-02

PIC Q&A

2010-03

PIC Q&A

2011-01

PIC Q&A
2011-02

PIC Q&A

2011-05

PIC Q&A
2011-06

PIC Q&A
2012-01

PIC Q&A

2012-02

PIC Q&A
2013-01

: PIC Q&A
12013-02

PIC Q&A

2013-03

(Revised)

PIC Q&A

2015-01

IPIC Q&A
I2016-01
jPIC Q&A
2016-02

PIC Q&A
2016-04

i PIC Q&A
I2017-01
: PIC Q&A

2017-02

PIC Q&A
2017-03

PAS 20.43 - Accounting for government loans with low
interest rates under the amendments to PAS 20

!Framework.23 and PAS 1.23- Financial statements prepared
on a basis other than going concern

PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rate used in determining the fair value of
government securities in the Philippines

PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rate used in determining the fair value of
government securities in the Philippines

PAS 1R.16- Basis of preparation of financial statements

PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Current/non-
current classification of a callable term loan

PAS 1.10(f) - Requirements for a ThirdStatement of
Financial Position

PFRS 3,2 - Common Control Business Combinations

PFRS 1, D1-D8 - Fair Value or Revaluation as Deemed Cost

PFRS 3, Business Combinations (2008), and PAS 40,
Investment Property - Acquisition of Investment properties -
asset acquisition or business combination?

PFRS 3.2-Application of the Pooling of Interests Method for
Business Combinations of Entities Under Common Control in
Consolidated Financial Statements

Cost of a New Building Constructed on the Site of a Previous
Building

Applicability of SMEI6 Final Q&As on the Application of IFRS
for SMEs to PhilippineSMEs

Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As- Cyde 2013

jPAS 19- Accounting for Employee Benefits undera Defined
1Contribution Plan subject to Requirements of RepublicAct
j(RA) 7641, The Philippine Retirement Law
Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cyde 2015

Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As • Cycle 2016

PAS 32 and PAS 38 - Accounting Treatment of Club Shares
Held by an Entity

Application of PFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customere' on Sale of Residential Properties under Pre-
Completion Contrads

Conforming Changes to PIC O&As - Cycle 2017

PAS2 and PAS 16 • Capitalization of operating lease cost as
part of construction costs of a building

PAS 28 - Eliminationof profits and losses resulting from
transactions between associates and/or joint ventures

PIC Q&A PAS24 - Relatedparty relationships between parents,



PIC Q&A
2017-06

PIC Q&A
2017-07

PfC Q&A
2017-08

PIC Q&A

2017-0S

PIC Q&A
2017-10

PIC Q&A

2017-11

PIC Q&A
2018-01

PIC Q&A

2018-02

PIC Q&A

2018-03

PIC Q&A

2018-04

PIC Q&A

2018-05

PIC Q&A
2018-06

PIC Q&A
2018-07

PIC Q&A

2018-08

PIC Q&A

2018-09

PAS 2.16 and 40-Accounting for Collector's Items

PFRS 10 - Accounting for reciprocal holdings in associates
and joint ventures

PFRS 10- Requirement to prepare consolidated financial
statements where an entity disposes of its single investment
in a subsidiary, associate or joint venture

PAS 17 and Philippine Interpretation SIG-15 - Accounting for
payments between and among lessors and lessees

PAS 40 - Separation of property and classification as
investment property

PFRS 10 and PAS 32 - Transaction costs incurred to acquire
outstanding non-controlling interest or to sell non-controlling
interest without a loss of control

Subsequent Treatment of Equity Component Arising from
Intercompany Loans

Voluntary changes in accounting policy

INon-controlling interests and goodwill impairment test

Fair value of PPE and depreciated replacement cost

Inability to measure fair value reliably for biological assets
within the scope of PAS 41

Maintenance requirement of an asset held under lease

Cost of investment in subsidiaries in SFS when pooling is
applied

Cost of an assodate, joint venture, or subsidiary in separate
financial statements

Accounting for the acquisition of non-wholtyowned subsidiary
that is not a business

Classification of deposits and progress payment as
monetary or non-monetary items

Legend;

Adopted- means a particular standard or mierpretation is relevantto the operationsol the entity(evenif ithas no affector no materialeffecton
the financial statements), forwhich there may&e a relatedparticularaccounting policy made in the financial statements and/or there are current
transactions the amounts or balances of which are disclosed on the face or in the notes of the firanoa/ sfaremenrs.

NotAdopted - means a particularstandard or inlerprelation is effective but the entitydidnotadopt itdue lo eitherof these tworeasons: 1) The
entityhas deviatedor depaded hornthe requiiementsofsuch standardor interpretation; or 2} Thestandard providestoran optiontoearlyadopt
it but the entity decided otherwise.

NotApplicable - meens thestandardorinterpratallon is notrelevant at allto theoperations ofthe entity.



WATERFRONT PHIUPPINES, INCORPORATED ANDSUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE REQUIRED UNDER SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
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December 31,2017
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LEGEND:

TWGI - The Wellex Group, Inc.
WPI - Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated
WCCCHI - WaterfrontCebu CityCasino Hotel, Incorporated
WMCHI - Waterfront MactanCasino Hotel, Incorporated
DIHCI - Davao Insular HotelCompany, Inc.
APHC - Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation
CIMAR - CIMA Realty Philippines, Inc.
GIRDI - Grand llocandia Resort and Development, Inc.
WWGI - Waterfront Wellness Group, Inc. (formely W Citlgyms &Wellness, Inc.)
WPL -Waterfront Promotions Limited

CWIL - Club Waterfront International Limited
MBI - Mayo Bonanza, Inc.
WFC - Waterfront Food Concepts
WHMC -Waterfront Hotel Management Corp. (formerly Waterfront Management Corporation)
WEC - WaterfrontEntertainment Corporation
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Table of Contents

Supplementary Schedules of Annex 68-E
Required Under Securities Regulations Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011)

December 31,2017

A. Financial Assets

^ B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related
Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated
during the Consolidation of Rnancial Statements

D. Intangible Assets - Other Assets - (nothing to report)

E. Long^erm Debt

F. Indebtedness to Related Parties - (nothing to report)

G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers - (nothing to report)

_ H. Capital Stock
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE A - FINANCIAL ASSETS

DECEMBER 31,2017
(Amounts in thousands)

Name of Issuing Entity/Description
of Each Issue

Loans and receivables
Due from The Wellex Group, Inc.
Due from Pacific Rehouse Corp.
Due from Crisanta Realty

Development Corp.
Due from Philippine Estate Corp.
Due from Others
Cash on hand

Various banks

Receivables from various
customers
Other receivables
Notes receivable
Refundable deposits

Available-for-sale Investment

Number of
shares or

Principal Amount
of Bonds and

Notes

195,007

86,710

See Notes 4,5,7,8 and 10 to the Consolidated Rnancial Statements.

Amount Shown
in the

Statements of
Rnancial

Position

P882,189
541,781

362,858
104,554

58,666
3,072

355,218

216,029
12,332

195,007
23,019
15.955

P2.770.680

Value Based on
Market Quotations
at December 31,

2017

P882,189
541,781

362,858
104,554

58,666
3,072

355,218

216,029
12,332

195,007
23,019
15.955

P2.770.680

Annex C

Page 2 of9

Income Received
and Accrued

PI 3,000
10,623

7,465

1,902

P32.990



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE B - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM DIRECTORS, OFFICERS,

EMPLOYEES, RELATED PARTIES AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS (Other than Related Parties)
DECEMBER 31,2017

(Amounts in thousands)

Annex C

Page 3 of 9

Name and

Designation of
Debtor

Balance at
beginning of Additions

Amounts
collected

Amounts

written off
Current Noncurrent

Balance at end

of the period

TheWellex
Grouo. Inc. P861.550 P46.127 P25.488 P - P882.189 P - P882.189

Pacific
Rehouse
Corp. 531.168 10.623 541.781 541.781

Crisanta Realty
Development
Corp. 347.662 15,196 14.930 347.928 362,858

Philippine
Estate Corp. 92.054 12.500 104,554 104.554

Acesite Leisure
Entertainment
Corporation 195.007 195.007 195.007

See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



Name and

Designation of
Debtor

>
)

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE 0 - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES WHICH ARE ELIMINATED

DURING CONSOLDIATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017

Annex C

Page 4 of 9

Balance at
beginning of the Additions

Amounts
collected

Amounts

written off
Current Noncurrent

Balance at end

of the period

Waterfront
Cebu City
Casino Hotel,
Incorporated PI .510.820.507 P - P199.973.327 P - PI .310.847.180 P - PI .310.847.180

Waterfront
Hotel
Management
Corp. 72.040

Mayo
Bonanza, Inc. 343.547

Waterfront
Wellness
Group. Inc. 165.453

Waterfront
Food
Concepts,
Inc. 166.373

Davao Insular
Hotel
Company,
Inc. (5.425.438) 1.745.863 5.425.438 1.745.863 1.745.863

Acesite
(Phils.) Hotel
Corp. 123.072 123.072



Description

)

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE D - INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHER ASSETS

DECEMBER 31,2017

Beginning
balance

P-

P-

Additions at

cost

P-

P-

Charged to
cost and

expenses

P-

P-

Charged to
other

accounts

P-

P-

Other

charges,
additions

(deductions)
P-

P-

Annex C

Page 5 of 9

Ending
Balance

P-

P-



)

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE E - LONG-TERM DEBT

DECEMBER 31.2017

Title of Issue and Type of
Obligation

Social Security System Loans
Payable

Amount authorized by
indenture

P375.000.000

See Note 13 to the Consolidated Rnancial Statements.

Amount shown under
caption "Current portion

of long-term debt" in
related balance sheet

P375.000.000

Annexe

Page 6 of 9

Amount shown under
caption "Long-Term Debt"
in related balance sheet

P-



)

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE F - INDEBTEDNESS TO RELATED PARTIES

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Name of Affiliates Balance at beginning of period Baiance at end of period

Annex C

Page 7 of 9



WATERFRONT PHIUPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE G - GUARANTEES OF SECURITIES OF OTHER ISSUERS

DECEMBER 31,2017

Name of Issuing entity of
securities guaranteed by the

company for which this
statement is filed

Title of issue of each
class of securities

guaranteed

Total amount

guaranteed and
outstanding

Amount owned by
person for which
statement is filed

Annex C

Page 8 of9

Nature of

guarantee
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE H - CAPITAL STOCK

DECEMBER 31,2017

Annex C

Page 9 of 9

Number of
Number of shares Issued Number of Directors,

Shares and Treasury shares held by officersand
Description authorized outstanding Shares _ affiliates employees Others

Common shares 5.000.000.000 2.498.991.753 - 1.128.466.800 41.790.430 1.328.734.523

See Note 16 to the Consolidated Rnandal Statements.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COIVl|̂ Sip^e
FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

1. For the quarterly period ended

; March 31, 2018

2. SEC Identification Number

j AS0948678

3. BIRTax Identification No.

; D80003978254NV

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter

. WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INC.

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

5 PHILIPPINES

j

I 6. Industry Classification Code (SEC Use Only)

7. Address of principal office

r/f«M Aw0r:O'itl\TS



NO. 1 WATERFRONT DRIVE, OFF SALINAS DRIVE. LAHUG, CEBU
CITY Postal Code 6000

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code

032-2326888

9. Former name or formeraddress, and formerfiscal year, ifchanged since last
report

NOT APPLICABLE

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12ofthe SRCor Sections 4
and 8 of the RSA

Tide of Each Class

COMMON SHARES - PI.00
PAR VALUE

Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Outstanding

2,498,991,753

11. Are any or all of registrant's securities listedon a Stock Exchange?

Yes

No

Ifyes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities
listed therein:

THE PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:



(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC
Rule 17 thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder,
and Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the
preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports)

E

C

Yes

No

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days

C

E

Yes

No

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and
representations contained in all corporate disclosures, including financial reports. All data
contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange, and
are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained
herein should be addressed directly to the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing
party.

Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated

PSE Disclosure Form 17-2 - Quarterly Report References: SRC Rule 17
and

Sections 17.2 and 17.8 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

IFor the period
!ended

•March 31,2018

ICurrency (indicate
1units, if applicable)

Balance Sheet

iCurrent Assets

!Total Assets

1Current Liabilities

PESO

Period Ended

March 31, 2018

4,946,985,163

10,843,613,472

2,110,788,267

Calendar Year Ended (Audited)

Dec 31, 2017

2,502,900,348

9,352,809,593

1,929,206,522



{Total Liabilities

IRetained
IEamings/(Deflcit)

IStockholders' Equity

{Stockholders' Equity - Parent

IBook Value per Share

Income Statement

4,730,080,044

(285,209,723)

6,113,533,428

5,269,556,059

2.11

3,335,294,986

(404,632,514)

6,017,514,607

5,150,133,268

2.06

Current Year

(3 Months)
Previous Year

(3 Months)
Current Year-To-Date

Previous Year-To

Date

Operating Revenue 509,026,988 548,525,311 509,026,988 548,525,311

Other Revenue
7,769,084 7,760,328 7,769,084 7,760,328

Gross Revenue
516,796,072 556,285,639 516,796,072 556,285,639

Operating Expense 350,036,628 326,454,290 350,036,628 326,454,290

Other Expense 67,188,197 73,572,293 67,188,197 73,572,293

Gross Expense 417,224,825 400,026,583 417,224,825 400,026,583

Net lncome/(Loss) Before
Tax

99,571,248 156,259,056 99,571,248 156,259,056

Income Tax Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net lncome/(Loss) After
Tax

99,571,248 156,259,056 99,571,248 156,259,056

Net Income Attributable to
Parent Equity Holder

119,422,790 140,663,693 119,422,790
140,663,693

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share
(Basic) 0.048 0.056 0.048 0.056

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share
(Diluted) 0.048

0.056

0.048 0.056



Current Year (Trailing 12 months) Previous Year (Trailing 12 months)

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share (Basic)

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share
(Diluted)

0.029

0.029

Financial Ratios

Liquidity Analysis Ratios:

Current Ratio or Working
Capital Ratio

Quick Ratio

Solvency Ratio

Financial Leverage Ratios
Debt Ratio

Debt-to-Equity Ratio

Interest Coverage

Asset to Equity Ratio

Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Margin

Net Profit Margin
Return on Assets

Return on Equity

Price / Earnings Ratio

Formula

Curent Assets I Current

Liabilities

(Current Assets - Inventory -
Prepayments)/ Current

Liabilities

Total Assets I Total Liabilities

Total Debt I Total Assets

Total Debt / Total

Stockholders' Equity
Earnings Before Interest and

Taxes (EBIT) I Interest
Charges

Total Assets I Total

Stockholders' Equity

Sales - Cost of Goods Sold or

Cost of service/ Sales

Net Profit I Sales

Net Income I Total Assets

Net Income / Total

Stockholders' Equity
Price Per Share / Earnings Per

Common Share

Current Year

March 31,2018

2.34

2.29

2.29

0.44

0.77

4.59

1.77

0.32

0.19

0.01

0.02

0.048

0.157

0.157

Previous Year

March 31, 2017

1.38

1.32

2.89

0.35

0.53

6.07

1.53

0.41

0.28

0.02

0.03

0.056



PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.

Please refer to Annex A.

Item 2, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

Please refer to Annex B.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

NONE

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirementsof the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly
causedthis report to be signedon its behalfby the undersigned thereuntoduly authorized.

Registrant: Waterfront Philippines, Inc.
Issuer Atty. Arthur R. Ponsaran

Signature and Title
Corp^ateSecretary

Date 05/11/2018

Principal Financial/Accounting Ofllcer/Controller Precilla O. Toriano

Signature and Title //^
fmpliaiicd Officer/Corporate Director of Finance

Date 05/11/2018



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of March 31,2018

Annex A

Page 1 or4

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

March 31,2018 Maich3l,20l7 December3l,20t7

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash snd cash cquivalcnis 539335,886 389370.968 345.929.975

Receivables-net 361325384 300337.689 228360,959

Notes receivable 115.142,975 -
195,007314

Insurance receivable 921,117322 • -

Investories 28332.004 27374.029 33.918,796

Due rrom related patties - current ponton 2.905398380 1357.170384 1.602,120,064

Prepaid expenses and other cuirent assets 74331,812 78,190335 97363340

Total Current Assets 4,946,985,163 2352.743,^0ii 2302,900348

Noncorrent Assets

Receivables fhtm Acesitc Limited (BVI) - -
•

Due fromrelatedpatties - noncutrcntponion 347,927,681 373.253,414 347.927.681

Goodwill - - •

Property and equipment • net 5336346,006 6372.199.167 6390.497364

Available-fot^salc (AFS) investments 15,954,640 16.821.740 15,954.640

Defened tax assets 56387320 17307,895 64,994,497

Other noncuiicnt assets 39312362 22335315 30,534,463

Total Noneurrent Assets 5396,628309 6,801,917,431

1

S

I03^,6i3,472 9,134,660,936 9352,809393

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and scented expenses 1341,113,179 1339,742,094 1,468315,052

Loans payable• cuirent ponion 375,000,000 375.000.000 375.000.000

Incometax payable •
232.052 70.613,726

Contract payable - • -

Provisions 72.289344 - -

Other cuirent liabilities 322385,744 86,123,748 15377.744

Total Current Liabilities 2,110,788367 1,701,097.894 1,929,206322

Noneurrent Liabilities

Loanspayable- concurrentponion • - -

Deferred tax liabilities 1353.651,944 1328,142363 1,275.069330

Retirement benefits liability 120383.712 87381363 124.481,905

Other noneurrent liabilities 1,244.956.121 49,937,196 6337329

Total Noneurrent Liabilities 2,619391,777 1,465,461,123 1,406,088,464

Total Liabilities 4,Mosb,o44 3,166,559,016 3.335,294,986

Equity Attributable to Equity Holdersof the Parent Company
Capital stock 2398.991,753 2,498,991,753 2,498.991.753

Additionalpaid«!n capital 706364357 706,364357 706304357

Revaluation suiplus Inpropenyand equipment 2311.108,991 2349324,496 2311.108.991

Foreigneuirency translationadjustment 52342,000 41,686.179 52342.000

Fair value reserve 2.063323 2,683345 2.063323

Retirement benefits reserve 83.695,458 102,082369 83,695.458

Defidc

Appropriated - -

Unappropriated (285,209,723) (620321,974) (404.632314)

Total EquityAttributableto EquityHoldersof the ParentCompany 5,269356,059 5,081,010,625 5,150.133368

Non^ntroiHng Interest 843,977369 907,091395 867381339

10343,613372 9.154.660.936 9352,809393

Sec Noctt to tht CbtttolidsstdFhmicia!StttttmeBti.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED ANDSUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As of March 31,2018

Annex A

Page 2 of4

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

Match 31.2018 March 31,2017 December 31,2017

REVENUES

Hotel S00,76D315J4 542,927,160 2,057,910,622.00

Nonbotcl 8,266.473 5398.151

Interest and other income 7,769,084 7,760328 47,021,801

516,796,072 556385,639 2,104,932,423

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Cost ofsates

Hotel 339,114397 316,925,285 1.005,632,603

Nonhotel 10,922,031 9329,005 415,150360

350,036328 326.454390 1.420,782,863

166,759,445 229,831349 684,149,560

OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME)

Depreciationand amortization 49379,447 51,463,327 355307,819

Interestexpense 17308,750 22,117,107 60322,509

Penalties and odier charges - - -

Impairment losses,baddebts writtenoff andprovisions - -
632,751

Loss on sate on Aeesite shares -

Interest income - - (42376,067)

Foreignexchange losses (gains) - net - (8,141) 10,365.853

Othen - net - -
714,766

67,188,197 73372393 384.967,631

INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 99371,248 156359,056 299,181,929

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT) - - 100.448,728

NET INCOME (LOSS) 9937U48 156359.056 198.733301

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Appraisal on increase on propertyandequipment - - -

Foreign currency translation dilTerences forforeign operations - - 10,855,821

Actuarial gainson definedbenefitplan - - (36,534.724)

Net change in fair value ofAFS investment - - (867,100)

Deferred tax effect - 10,960,417

- - (15385386)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 9937U48 156359,056 183.147,615



WATERFR(M4T PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSHIIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AtorMarcb3l,20l8

Annex A

PageSofd

Unaudited Unaudited Attdltcd

March 31.2018 MorehSl.lOl? December 31,2017

EQUITV ATTRIBUTABIX TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
CipttilsUck-PI psrvslucpatluic 2,498,991.753 2.498.991.753 2.498,991.753

Addtttoiul PaliMa Capital 700364.337 706364357 706364357

Rmtaatloa Snrplat la Propcrqr and Eqalpmcin
Balanceat begmnins ofyear

Othercotnpreheniiveincome• net of incomelaxcdecl

Doetosnitica of land held under lintnce teaoedoe to otquitiiion of a wbtidiaiy
Tianxferofrevaluatioa Cluptoxabioibcd through depreciation for the year • net of incetne lax etfect

2311.108.991 2349324396 2.349324,406

(138.415305)

Balance XIend ofyear 2311.108.991 2349324396 2,211.108.99)

Unreatioed ValuxUoa Catn (Lots) on AFS Invcttaienls

Btlsaoeatbcsinnittgofyear . . •
Valuationloss taleenintoequityduring the year . . •
Changein equity owneiihipafnotMoniralting interestin a siihsidiaiy . . -

Balanceat end ofyear . • -

Foreign Curreuey Tntnslatloa Adjustttient

Balanceat begiffidng of year
Othercomprebcnsive tneotne• net ofincocneltxelTcet

52342300 41386.179 41386.179

10355321

Balance at end ofyear 52342300 41386.179

Dtildt

Appiopiiaison for icnovatioa cod business expansion

Unopproittiated

Balanceat begtnningof year
Tiantferof revshtationtuiplusxbsoibodthroughdepreciation fbrtheyear• netof incometaxeffect
Changein iciinemealbenefitsreserve

Kcl income for the year

(404332314)

119321.791

(760.985.667)

140363393

(760.985.667)

138.415305

217.937348

Balance at end ofyear (liisj^.^rii) (620321374) (404.632314)

Total deficit (185309,723) (6illii2i.974) (404332314)

5,183,797378 4,97634431 i ^.064374387

Fmrvalue leaeive.beginningofihe year
Other comprehensive incomes tax effect

2363323 2.683345 2.683345

(62a022)

Total &ir valne reserve 1363323 2.683345 2.063323

Rctiitmcmbcnelitsreserve,bcgiiutingof theyear
Othercomptefacnshx incomes tax effect

83395358 IOL082369 102.082369

(18387,111)

Taatl retiianentbenditi lescfve a349MS8 1(0082^ 8).695.4S8

5JA9.SS6;059 5.08ij0ia6U S.IS0.I2M68



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED ANDSUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

As ofMarch 31,2018

Annex A

Page4 of4

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

March3l.20l8 March 31.2017 Decembcr3l,20l7

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACnVITIES

Loss before inootne tax 99^1449 156459,057 299,181,929

Adjustmentsfor

Deprcctaiionand amonizsticn 49479447 51,463427 355407,819

Interest expense 17408.750 22,117,107 60,222409

Loss on sale on Bccsite shares - • -

Retirement benefit costt (3,798.193) (11,136402) 21,196.913

Provisions (72,289444) • -

Unrealized foreisn exehange loss (gain) -
(8.141) 10.855.821

Penaltiesand other charges - - *

Lossfgatn)on disposal of propertyand equipment - - -

ImpainTtent losses - -
632,751

Interest income (7,769,084) -
(42476,067)

Operatingincomebeforeworkingcapitalchanges 81,902425 218,694,848 705,121,675

Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables (974,818408) (65.090442) 6,453,437

Inventories 5486,792 813,075 (5,731,692)

Prepaidexpenses and other current assets 22,631428 12.212.430 (7.160475)

Increase (decrease) in:

Accountspayableand accruedexpenses 127,101473 118,631.938 49,626,652

Othercurrent liabilities (I764684S9) (60,479,564) (10466.440)

Coshgeneratedfrom operations (913,463449) 224,782.185 738,043457

Interest received 7,769,084 - 1,902,783

Incometaxes paid (70,613.726) (69423470) (176,585.272)

Retirementplan contributionspaid - • (21,450.000)

Benefitspaid - - (10417,597)

Imercst paid (17408,750) (22,117,107) •

Net cash provided by operating activities (994,117,241) 133441408 531493.171

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTiVITIES

Acquisitions of propertyandequipment 904472411 161466456 -

Investment in a subsidiary - - •

Due from relatedparties (1403478,916) (52426.458) (31477421)

Proceeds fromsaleof an equityinterestinsubsidiary - - -

Proceeds fromsaleof propcnyandequipment - - (160,776,933)

Notes Receivable 79464439 - (195,007414)

Increase in other noncurrent assets 290,463412 (89491490) (2456451)

Net cash used in investing activities (2847iiii4) 19,648408 (389,917,719)

Fonuri

Years Ended December 31

September 30,2017 March 31,2017 Deccmber3l,20I7

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Increase)Decrease in loanspayable - -

(Increase) Decrease in due fromrelatedparties - - -

Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent liabilities 1,217,001406 32.185,999 (40,630)
Payment ofobligation imder finance lease

Netcashprovidedby (used in) financing activities 1,217401406 32,185,999 (40,630)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT FOR THE YEAR

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 193,905,911 185,175415 141,634,822

CASH ANDCASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 345,929,975 204495.153 204.295,153
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 53943S486 389,470,968 345.929,975
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization and Status of the Business

Corporate Information
Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the

Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
September 23,1994. The Parent Company is46%-owned byThe Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI), anentity
registered and domiciled in the Philippines, which is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).
The Parent Company holds equity interests in hotels and resorts, a fitness gym, entities engaged in
the international marketing and promotion of casinos, manufacturing of pastries, and hotel
management and operations.

The Parent Company and the following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group) were
incorporated in the Philippines, except for Waterfront Promotion Ltd. (WPL) and Club Waterfront
International Limited (CWIL), which wereregistered in theCayman Islands.

Percentage of Ownership
Direct Indirect

Hotels and Resorts

Waterfront CebuCityCasinoHotel, Incorporated
(WCCCHI) 100

WaterfrontMactanCasino Hotel, Incorporated (WMCHI) 100
Davao InsularHotel Company, Inc. (DIHCI) 98
Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation (APHC) 56
Grand Ilocandia Resortand Development, Inc. (GIRDI) 54

Real Estate

QMA Realty PhU., Inc. (CIMAR) - 56*
Fitness Gym
Waterfront Wellness Group, Inc. (WWGI) 100

Intemational Marketing and Promotion of Casinos
WPL 100

Mayo Bonanza, Inc. (MBI) 100
CWIL (through direct ownership inWPL) - 100
Waterfront Entertainment Corporation (WEC) 100
Pastries Manufacturing
WaterfrontFoodConceptsInc.(WFC) 100

Hotel Management and Operation
WaterfrontHotel ManagementCorp. (WHMC) 100 -

Hotels

Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel, Inc.

WCCCHI was incorporated on September 23, 1994 to manage and undertake operations of
Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Casino (WCCHQ. WCCCHI achieved a milestone during fee year
by opening fee doors of WCCHC on January 5,1998,wife 158guest-rooms which has already grown
to 561 by fee last quarter of 1999, six-storey convention center known as fee Waterfront Convention
Center , previously known as Cebu Intemational Convention Center and sfac-storey" Entertainment
Block. Locatedin feis EntertainmentBlock is a 1,000-square meter5-star restaurant, which completes
5
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the Company's restaurants row. On February 5,1998, PAGCOR commenced operations at the new
purposely-builtcasinoat the Entertainment Block.

- Watetfront Convention Center-CWCC)
Waterfront Convention Center previously known as Cebu International Convention Center is a six-
storey building, especially-designed toadapt toany event size andpurpose, with a total gross area of
40,587 squaremeters, and has been in operation since January 5,1998. Major amenities of the center
includeten (11) function rooms and two (2) Grand Ballrooms wifli a seatingcapacity of4,000. WCC is
theonlyconvention and exhibition center of international standardin Cebu City.

- Entertainment Block

The Entertainment block isa six-storey building with a total gross areaof34,938 square meters. It is
comprised ofeleven (9) Food andBeverage entertainment outlets, an11,000 square meters of public
andinternational gaming area thatincludes the"Casino Filipino", and62hotel rooms andsuites

- Hotel Tower Block

The Hotel Tower block is a 22-storey building with a total gross area of 44,334 square meters. It
consists of a podium, containing the lobby, a food and beverage outlet, a reception, a shopping
arcade, three (3) pressfunction rooms, and a highriseblock of498 hotelrooms and suites.

The Hotel, with itsfairytale-inspired facade, isconveniently located in the center ofCebu City and is
withineasy reach hrom key business, commercial cind shoppingdistricts and is just 30minutesaway
hrom the Mactan International Airport.

Waterfront Cebu City Hotel & Casino has elegantly designed and well-appointed guest rooms
and suites. The 18th Floor is the Waterfront Ambassador Club with a two floor Club Lounge exclusive
for Ambassador Floor guests. Waterfront Ambassador Club guests enjoy butler service,
complimentary business services and a business boardroom fit for a group of up to 8 people,
equipped witii a built-in LCD projector, a roll-up screen, PA and recording system, a local area
network (LAN) anda poly communication system. The 2ndfloor lounge isoutfitted with3 computer
stations, where guests can availof complimentary WIFI access, flat-screen television entertainment,
an array of lifestyle and business magazines as well as newspapers and board games. Thehotel offers
a 10,000-square meter convention center, which is the largest convention center in the Visayas and
Mindanao, and is designed to adapt to multiple types of events. Theconvention centeris equipped
with 10 function rooms, 2 executive board rooms, and 2 Grand Ballrooms, each seating 4,000people. It
has playedhost toa myriadofnationalas wellas regional events, conventions and conferences.

Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Casino operates 9 F&B outlets, including a hotel cofrees shop, a
Japanese restaurant, an Italian restaurant and a poolside snack bar. The hotel has a fully functional
business center paired with flat-screen computers, internet access and private boardrooms.
The newly renovated lobby was inspired based on two main objectives; first; to transform die
existing single dimension grand lobby into a multi-dimensional lifestyle-concept space that will
enhance the guests' experience when dining and loungingin the lobby;and second, to improve traffic
patterns, dirough the constructionof larger check-in areas and through maximizingthe Lobb/s three
entrances. Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Casino's massive, high<eilinged lobby has always been
its principal attraction in fact it is touted as the largest hotel lobby in Visayas-Mindanao area.
Spanning 22 meters wide, 96 meters in long and 35 meters high and crisscrossed by hundreds of
people each day, the hotel's grand lobby sets the whizzing pulse for the hotel and dictates its overall
ambiance. Apart from improvements to the general structure of the lobby, the Lobby Lounge itself
will offer an all-new dining and lounging experience, with newly-installed glass panels, semi-closing
each side of the lounge.Fully-equipped bar areas have also beeninstalled in the middle of each of the
lounge's two sections, ensuring diners of more efficient and prompt service. To enhance the overall
guest experience, the hotel has put together additional features such as nightly entertainment from
the city's top performers, and soulful afternoon music by soloists.
Among the hotel's newest pride comes in the form of delectable treats, introducing Lobby Lounge's
new service concepts.

Aftemoon.Tea

Guests can now relive thesplendorand graceof theold English dayswith theLobby Lounge's
Afternoon Teaoffering. It isa teaand dessertconcept created togiveguestsa wholenew tea

6
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experience bygiving emphasis on unique ways to enjoy a cupof tea. Guests can expect an array of
snack choices tocomplement their teaselection. The Afternoon Tea comes with a choice ofTraditional
Afternoon Tea with a Local Twist or Chocolate Temptations. For each selection, guests may opt for
tea, coffiee or hot chocolate.Eachselection also comes with a variety of snack options to go along with
their choice of beverage.

Wine Dispenser
Guests cannowtakea sipofLobby Lounge's extensive selection ofwine. Thewinedispenser is an
innovative addition tothewining and dining experience at thehotel. It serves thepurpose of
allowing guests toselect among anarray ofbottles, through tasting bytheglass. This concept intends
togive guests anopportunity tosample different wines insmall amounts before deciding toordera
fullglassor bottle. Guests may testwines from thedispenser in threedifferent amounts. Thisway,
guestscanchoose theperfect winefit for their palate. Toenjoy thewinedispenserservice, guests
must avail of the WineCard which comes in prepaid or postpaid.

Tocomplement the Hotel's mainlobby, a group check-in counter is constructed, dedicated solely to
corporate and travel groups; a larger Duty Free shopping isalso provided; and an additional Casino
Filipino gaming space of2350 square meters is launched together with it.This willnotonly enhance
thecurrent lobby, but will also increase operational efficiency andadd more exciting features for the
hotel's customers.

Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Inc.

Waterfront Mactan was incorporated onSeptember 23,1994 to manage and undertake operations of
Waterfront Mactan Island Hotel and Casino (WMIHC). WMCHl has completed Phase1of Waterfront
Mactan Island Hotel and Casino {WMIHQ. It is located right across Mactan-Cebu International
Airport, on a landareaofapproximately 3.2hectares. Thehotel features 164 rooms and suites, 6 food-
and-beverage and entertainment outlets, witha total built-up areaof38,000 squaremeters. Equipped
with one of the largestcasinos in the Philippines, WMIHC has madeCebu the onlycity in Southeast
Asia that offers casino facilities to transients while waiting for their flights. For future development is
Phase n, consisting of200-guest rooms, whichwill bebuiltdependingon the demands of the market
It has recently improved its rooms by installing fax machines and Internetconnections to cater to the
needs of its guests. Additionally, the company has acquired the newesthospitality software in the
industry, the OPERA Property Management System, which is designed to help nm the hotel
operations at a greater levelof productivityand profitability. Thiswas installed last January 14,2003.

The hotel is conveniently located in firont of the Mactan International and Domestic Airport, just a
three-minute drive to the Industrial Zone, a fifteen-minute drive to the beaches of Mactan Island and
just fiiirty minutes away fromCebu City's shopping and financial district

This year 2016, the property extended the Annex parking to provide more slots for the guests and diis
year also marks the 20«^ anniversary of Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Inc.

Davao Insular Hotel Company, Inc. or Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao, Inc.

Davao Insular Hotel Company Inc. was incorporated in the Philippines on July 3,1959 to engage in
the operation of hotel and related hotel businesses. The hotel is a 98% owned subsidiary of Waterfront
Philippines, Incorporated and is operating under its trading name Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao.
Waterfi-ont Insular Hotel, the prestigious business hotel in a sprawling garden resort setting, is only
five to ten minutes to the downtown area. Nestled along the picturesque Davao Gulf, its open air
corridors provide a refieshing view of the hotel's beautifully landscaped tropical garden and the sea.

With a greater area than any other hotel facility in the city, it is unmatched in servicing large business
meetings, conventions, and exhibit groups. The hotel consists of four low-rise buildings of 159 guest
rooms and suites, 5 function rooms and 6 F&B outlets .Every room opens to a lanai overlooking a lush
garden die blue waters of the Davao Gulf or a sceniccoconutgrove. Features included in the newly
re-opened hotel are the 5 Gazebos locatedalong the beacharea.The hotel is every guesfs gateway to
thediverse, colorful and rich cultural heritage ofDavao City.
Discover the richcultural heritageof Davaowhichstemsfromthedifferentgroups and tribes that
populated the area throughout its history and be astonished of artworks in the hotel lobby where it

7
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showcases pieces ofartifacts featuring the various object d'artfrom the different tribes andhistorical.

On2015, the property re-opens its gymwith48square meters tocontinuously serveits guests and to
ensure guests satisfaction.

Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation

The principal property of the Company is a 22-storey building known as theManila Pavilion Hotel
located at the comer of United Nations Avenue and Maria Y. Orosa Street in Ermita, Manila. The
Hotel has 337 guestrooms and suites diat have individually controlled central air conditioning,
private bathroom with bathtub and shower, multi-channel radio, color TV with cable channels and
telecommunications facilities. It has 3 function rooms and one of this is Alcuaz which can
accommodate 250-300 guests. The hotel has approximately 2,200 sq. meters of
meeting/banquet/conference facilities, and also houses several restaurants, such as Seasons Caf§
(coffee shop), the El Rey (bar & lounge) and the Patisserie (bakeshop and deli items). Other guest
services and facilities include a chapel, swimming pool, gym, business center and a valet-service
basement car park. Concessionaires and tenants include beauty salon, foot spa, photography services,
transportation services, travel agency, flower shop and boutiques. In addition. Casino Filipino -
Pavilion, owned andoperated byPAGCOR, occupies partof the first, second, third, fourdi and fifth
floors (a total of 12,696.17 sq. m.) of die building.

The Company acquired 100% interest of CIMAR, a former subsidiary of Acesite Limited (BVI) or
ALB, in October 2011. In July 2011, The Company and CIMAR executed a Memorandum of

jn-n Agreement (MOA), which ^ectively settle all pending cases and controversies between the two
parties. In fulfillment ofall theterms andconditions of theMOA, CIMAR's stockholders including all
their nominees, agreed tosign, sell, transfer and convey allexisting shares ofstocks ofCIMAR to the
Company.

Year 2015, Alcuaz function thatcanaccommodate 250-300 guestswasrenovated and 111 rooms under
superior room category were opened.

Waterfront Hotel ManagementCorporation (previously WatetfrontManagementCorp.)

G-Hotelby Waterfiront locatedin 2090 Roxas Boulevard, MalateManilaon November of 2006 is being
managed by Waterfront Management Corporation. It is a seven-story building with 10 deluxesuites,
20 deluxe l^g and 20 deluxe twin rooms which offers a personalized butler service. Aboutique hotel
boasting with its trendy Caf6 Noir, poolbar Mirage and an elegantballroom. Promenade, added to
the list of must-go places in die busy district of Manila. The black and white concept of its lobby is
distinctly G-Hotel.

On October 01, 2014, the BOD approved the cessation of the Company's business operations.
Consequently, the Company's activities were confined mainly to the collection of receivables,
settlement of liabilities, and other administrative matters, while maintaining its status as non-
operating entity seeking for other business opportunities.

Mayo Bonanza, Inc.

Mayo Bonanza, Incorporated (MBI), a 100% owned subsidiary of WPI was incorporated on November
24,1995 in the Philippines with principal activities in the operation and management of amusement,
entertainment and recreation businesses. MBI is to extend the gaming business of the Company. Its
primary purpose is to establish, operate, and manage the business of amusement entertainment and
recreation facilities for the use of the paying public. The Company entered into an agreement with
the Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR) whereby the latter shalloperate the
former's slot machine outsideofcasinos in linewithPAGCOR's slot machine arcadeproject.

On May30,2016. BOD approved the cessationof the Company's businessoperations effective July 01,
2016.
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Waterfront Entertainment Corporation

WPI has successfully established the coiuitry's first ever integrated hotel reservations and booking
system featuring a full-service, round-the-clock, 7 days a week Central Reservation Office. This
service ranges from systems and solutions specializing in the operations hotel framework. It offers
specialize hotel consultancy services to hotel owners, operators, brands, developers, lenders and
investors with thesupport of hand-picked networks of experts covering allelements of thehotel or
hospitality business within a global perspective.

Waterfront Food Concepts, Inc.

Waterfront Food Concepts, Inc. is a pastry business, catering to pastry requirements of Waterfront
Cebu, Waterfront Mactan and other established coffeeshops and food service channels outside the
hotels. The property is located indielobby level ofWaterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel. It has started
its operation on May of 2006. Its pastry products include cakes, cookies and sandwiches. The
subsidiary hasalready catered most oftherenowned coffee shops in thecity ofCebu.

Waterfront Wellness Group, Inc.

This newsubsidiary is located in theGround Level of Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel occupying
617.53 square meters. WCitigyms andWellness, Inc. isa fully equipped gym with specialized trainers
and stateof theart equipments. Thegym offers variety of services from aerobic instructions to belly
dancing, boxing, yoga classes and a lotmore. It also has its own nutritionist/dietician. Its highly
trained therapists perform massage andspaservices toguests within thehotel.

Citigym entices the public by opening the newly renovated room-The Citigym Hit Zone. This is
Citigym's "Do It Right" and smart solution to Cebu's growing interest in high intensity workout
routines.

Grand Ilocandia Resort and Development, Inc.

As of March 31, 2000, the Company carried its investments in GIRDI at cost since it intended to
dispose such investment in die near future. In November 2000, GIRDI sold all of its property and
equipment, inclusive of the hotel facilities and related operating assets and the investment in
marketable securities.

Waterfront Promotions Limite<VClub Waterfront International Limited

Waterfront Promotion Ltd. was incorporated on March 6,1995, under and by virtue of the laws of
Cayman Islandsto act as themarketing arm for the international marketing and promotion of hotels
and casinos under the trade name of Club Waterfront International Limited (CWIL). It is a wholly

^0^ owned subsidiary ofWaterfront Philippines, Inc., a domestic company. Under the agreement witti
PAGCOR, WPL has been granted the privilege to bring in foreign players under the program in
Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Grand Ilocandia Resort Development Corp. On the other hand,
CWIL is allowed to bring in foreign players in Waterfront Mactan Hotel. In coimection to this, the
company markets and organizes groups of foreign players as participants to the Philippine
Amusement and Gaming Corporation's (PAGCOR) Foreign Highroller Marketing Program. The
company also entered into agreements with various junket operators to market the casinos for foreign
customers. Under these agreements, the company grants incentive programs to junket operators such
as free hotel expenses, free airfares and rolling commissions.

The company participated in a joint venture with Jin Lin Management Corporation, its sole marketing
agent and co-venturer on September 24,2001. This joint venture was terminated on April 15,2002.

The operations for Waterfront Promotions Limited, and likewise for Club Waterfront International
Limited had ceased for the year 2003in March due to the bleak market
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Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company, as well as those of
its subsidiaries enumerated in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity if and only if, the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with theentity and has
theability toaffect those returns through its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether or
not it controls an investeeif factsand circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the fiiree elements of control.

Thefinancial statements of thesubsidiaries are prepared for thesamereporting periodas the Parent
Company and are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date when control
commences until the date when control ceases.

The accounting policies ofsubsidiaries arebeing aligned with thepolicies adopted bytheGroup.
Losses applicable tothe NCI ina subsidiary areallocated totheNQ even ifdoing socauses theNCI
to have a deficit balance.

Segment Reporting
An operating segment isa component ofthe Group that engages inbusiness activities from which it
may earnrevenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group's other components. All operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Group's BOD, thechief operating decision maker oftheGroup, tomake decisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial

' information is available.

Segment resultsthat are reported to theGroup's BOD include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those fiiat can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly
corporate assets,head office expensesand incometaxassets and liabilities.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property and
equipment

The Group's businesses are operated and orgcuiized according to the nature of business provided,
with eachsegment representing a strategic business unit, namely, the Hotel operations. Marketing
operations and Corporate and Other Operations segments.
The Group's only reportable geographicalsegment is the Philippines.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economicbenefitswill flow to the
Group and the revenuecan be reliablymeasured. Incomeis measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, net of trade discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duties. The following
specificcriteria must also be met before revenue is recognized;

Rooms

Room revenue is recognized based on actual occupancy.

Food and Beverage
Food and beverage revenue is recognizedwhen orders are served and billed.

Rent and Related income

Rent and related income on leased areas of the Group's properties is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease,except for cancellable leases which are recognized at amount collected
or collectible based on the contract provision.

Other Revenues

Other revenues are recognized upon executionof serviceor whenearned.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognizedas it accrues using the effectiveinterest method.

10
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1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cashin banksearn Interestat the respective bank deposit rates.Short-term placements earn interestat
annualaverageof0.13% to 2.88% in 2017 and 2016 and haveaverage maturities rangingfrom 30to35
days for both years.

2. Receivables

This account consists:

March 2018 March 2017

Trade 138,763,006 176,959,069

Others 244,746,492 145,889,748

383,509498 322,848417

Less allowance for doubtful accounts -21,583,914 -22411/128

Total 361,925484 300437489

3. Inventories

This account consists of:

March 2018 March 2017

Food and Beverage
Operating Supplies
Others

13,449,833
11,056,623
3425448

9,618,500
16,411,609

1443,920

Total 28,332,004 27474,029

4. Related Party Transactions

In 2018, tiie Parent Company extended interest-bearing, collateral free advances to TWGI, PRC and
CrisantaRealty at a rate of two percent (2%) per annum. Thisalso includes PHES which is due and
demandable.

5. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

March 2018 March 2017

Trade

Accrued Expenses
Others

9,127,282
1,034,693,409

297,292,488

543,441,145
596,241,732
100,059417

Total 1,341,113,179 1439,742,094

6. Loans Payable

This account consists of:

SSS Loan

SSS vs WPI. Et al civil case no. Q-04-52629 at regional trial court, Quezon City. On October 28,1999,
the Parent Companyobtaineda five-year term loan fromSSS amounting to P375.00 millionoriginally
due on October 29, 2004. TheSSS loan bears interestat the prevailing market rate plus 3% or 14.5%
per annum, whichever is higher. Interest is repriced annually and is payable semi-annually. Initial
interest payments are due 180 days from the date of the release of^e proceeds of die loan. The
repayment of the principal shall be based on eight (8) semi-annual payments, after a one-year grace
period.

11
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The SSS loan was availed to finance the completionof the facilities of WCCCHI. It was secured by a
hirst mortgage over parcels of land owned by WII and by the assignment of 200 milhon common
shares of theParent Company owned byTWGI. Thecommon shares assigned wereplaced in escrow
in thepossession ofan independent custodian mutually agreed uponbybothparties.

On August 1,2003, when the total loan obligation toSSS, including penalties and interest, amounted
to P605.00 million, the Parent Company was considered in default with the payments of the loan
obligations, thus, on the same date, SSS executed a foreclosure proceeding onthemortgaged parcels
of land. The SSS's winning bid on the foreclosure sale amounting to P198.00 million was applied to
penalties and interest amounting toP74.00 million andP124.00 million, respectively. Inaddition, the
Parent Company accrued penalties charged bySSS amounting toP30.50 million covering themonth
ofAugustuntilDecember 2003, and unpaid interest expense ofP32.C0 million.

The Parent Company, Wn and TWGI were given the right to redeem the foreclosed properly within
one (1) year from October 17, 2003, the date of registration of the certificate of sale. The Parent
Company recognized theproceeds of the foreclosure saleas itsliability to WII andTWGI. The Parent
Company, however, agreed with TWGI tooffset this directly against itsreceivable hrom the latter. In
August 2004, theredemption period fortheParentCompany, WnandTWGI expired.

The remaining balance oftiie SSS loan is secured by the shares ofstock ofthe Parent Company owned
byTWGI andshares ofstock ofWII numbering 235 million and 80 million shares, respectively.

The Parent Company, at various instances, initiated negotiations with theSSS for restructuring ofthe
loan but was not able to conclude a formal restructuring agreement.

On Januaiy 13,2015, the RTC ofQuezon City issued a decision declaring null andvoid the contract of
loan and &erelated mortgages entered into by the Parent Company with SSS on theground thatthe
officers and theSSS arenotauthorized toenter thesubject loan agreement In the decision, theRTC of
Quezon City directed the Company to return to SSS die principal amount of loan amounting to
P375.00 million and directed the SSS to return to the Company and to its related parties tides and
documents held by SSSas collaterals.

OnJanuaiy22,2016, SSS appealed withtheCAassailing theRTC ofQuezon City decision in favor of
theParentCompany, et al.SSS filed itsAppellant's Brief and theParentCompany filed a Modon for
Extensionof Time to file Appellee's Briefundl May 16,2016.

OnMay 16,2016, theParentCompany filed itsAppellee's Brief withtheCA, furnishing theRTC of
Quezon City and the Office of the Solicitor Generalwith copies. SSS was givena period to reply but it
did not die any.

OnSeptember 6,2016, a resolution for possible settlement was received by the ParentCompany from
theCA.However, on February 7,2017 a Notice to Appeardated December 7,2016 was received by
the Parent Company from the Philippine Mediation Center Unit - Court of Appeals (PMCU-CA)
directing the Parent Company and S^ to appear inperson and widiout counsel at the PMCU-CA on
January 23,2017 to choose their mediator and the date of initial mediation conference and to consider
the possibility of settlement. Since the Notice to Appear was belatedly received, the parties were not
able to appear before the PMCU-CA.

On Februaiy 27,2017,a Second Notice to Appear issued by the PMCU-CA directing all parties to
appear on February 27,2017at a specified time was received by the Parent Company only on
Februaiy 27,2017after the specified time of the meeting. The Parent Company failed to appear.

OnJune30,2017, a resolution issued by the CA,resolved to submit the appeal for decision.

As at the report date, there had been no updates on the matter.

12
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7.The earnings (loss) per share is computed as follows:

March 2018 March 2017

Net Income (Loss) 119,422,790 140,663,693

Weighted Average Number of Shares
Outstanding 2,498,991,753 2,498,991,753

Earnings (Loss) per share 0.048 0.056

There are no dilative potentialshares as of March31,2018and 2017.

8.Lease Agreement with PhilippineAmusement and Gaming Corporation ("FAGCOR')
TheParentCompany, in behalf of WCCCHI and WMCHI, entered intolease agreements with
PAGCOR. The lease agreement ofWCCCHI with PAGCOR covered theMain Area (8,123.60 sq.m.).
Slot Machine Expansion Area (883.38 sq.m.). Mezzanine (2^35 sq.m.) and5thFloorJunket Area (2,336
sq.m.) for a total area of13,677.98 sq.m. which commenced onMarch 3,2011 andMarch 16,2011, for
theMain Area andSlot Machine Expansion Area, respectively. The lease agreement ofWMCHI with
PAGCOR covered theMain Area (4,07624 sq.m.) andChip Washing Area (1,076 sq.m.) fora total area
of5,152.24 sq.m. which was last renewed onMarch 21,2011. Both leases expired onAugust 2,2016.
Thereafter, PAGCOR paid the WCCCHI andWMCHI rental ona month-to-month basis. The lease
was renewed on February15,2018, for a period of 1 year.

APHC also hasa lease agreement with PAGCOR covering theMain Area (7,093.05 sq.m.). Expansion
Area A (2,130.36 sq.m.). Expansion Area B(3,069.92 sq.m.) and Air Handling Unit Area (402.84 sq.m.)
for a total lease area of 12,696.17 sq.m. The lease agreement was last renewed on December 1, 2010
andexpired onDecember 31,2017. Asat December 31,2017, PAGCOR continued tooperate a portion
of the lease area on a month-to-monthbasiswhile completingits pullout from APHC.

9. Other Lease Agreements

Group as Lessor
Lease Agreements with Concessionaires
WCCCHI, WMCHI, DIHQ and APHChave lease agreements with concessionaires for the
commercial spaces available in their respective hotels. These agreements typically run fora period of
less than one year, renewableupon the mutual agreementof the parties.
Rent revenue recognized as partof"Rentand related income" inprofitor loss and amounted to
P56.39million, P85.29million and P135.63 million in 2017,2016 and 2015,respectively.

Group as Lessee
Land imder Operating Lease
On September 15,1994, Waterfront Hotel and Resort Sdn. Bhd. (WHR), a former related party,
executed a leasecontract (the Agreement) with Mactan Cebu International Airport Authority
(MQAA) for the leaseofcertainparcelsof land where the hotelswereconstructed.On October14,
1994, WHRassigned its rightsand obligations under the MCIAA contracts to WCCCHI and WMCHI.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

The following are the significantcommitments and contingenciesinvolving the Group:

a. On November 10,2008,die Parent Company received a preliminary assessment notice from the BIR
for deficiencytaxesfor the taxableyear 2006. On February9,2009,the Parent Company sent a protest
letter to BIRcontesting the said assessment On February 18,2009, the Regional Office of the BIRsent
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a letter to theParent Company informing thelatterthat thedocket wasreturned to Revenue District
Officefor reinvestigation and further verification.

OnDecember 8,2009, theParent Company received BIR's Final Decision onDisputed Assessment for
deficiency taxes forthe2006 taxable year. The final decision oftheBIR seeks tocollect deficiency
assessments totaling toP3.30 million. However, onJanuary 15,2010, theParent Company appealed
the final decisionof the BIR with the Court ofTax Appeals(CTA) on the grounds of lackof legaland
factual bases in the issuance of the assessments.

In itsdecision promulgated onNovember 13,2012, theCTA upheld theexpanded withholding tax
(EWT) assessmentand cancelled the VAT and compromisepenaltyassessments. The Parent
Company decided not tocontest the EWT assessment. TheBIR filed its motion for reconsideration
(MR) onDecember 4,2012 andonApril 24,2013, theCourtissued itsamended decision reinstating
theVAT assessment. TheParent Company filed itsMR on theamended decision thatwasdenied by
the CTA in its resolution promulgated on September 13,2013.

The Parent Company appealed thecase to theCTA sitting EnBanc onOctober 21,2013. TheCTA En
Banc decision promulgated onDecember 4,2014 affirmed theVAT and EWT assessments. TheEWT
assessment was paid on March 3,2013.

TheCTA EnBanc decision wasappealed to theSConFebruary 5,2015 covering tiieVAT assessment
only.As at December 31,2017, the ParentCompanyis stillawaitingtiieSCs decision.
Management anditslegal counsels believe thattheposition ofthe Parent Company issustainable,
andaccordingly, believe thattheParent Company does nothave a present obligation (legal or
constructive) with respect to the assessment.

14



17Q-Istquaiter20l8

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF nNANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Below are the results of operations of theParentCompany and itssubsidiaries, for the periodending
March 31,2018 and 2017 together withits financial conditions asof thesameperiod.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

March 2018 March 2017

Revenues 516,796,072 556,285,639

Less: Costs and Expenses 350,036,628 326,454390

Net Income (Loss) Before Fixed Financial and Other
Charges

166,759,445 229331349

Less: Fixed Financial and Other Charges (Dep'n and
Amorfn, and Interest)

67,188,197 73372393

Income (Loss) before Income Tax
99,571,248 156,259,056

Income Tax Expense ( BeneBt) 0.00 0.00

Income (Loss) before Share in Minority Interest 99,571,248 156359,056

Share of Minority Interest -19,851,543 15395363

Net Income (Loss) 119,422,790 140,663,693

Earnings (loss) Per share 0.048 0.056

HNANCIAL CONDITION

March 2018 March 2017

Assets

Current assets 4,946,985,163 235^743305

Non-current Assets 5,896,628309 6,801,917,431

Total Assets 10,843313,472 9,154,660,936

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current Liabilities 2,110,788,267 1,701,097,894

Non-current Liabilities 2,619,291,777 1,465,461,122

Total Stockholders' Equity 5,269,556,059 5,081,010,625

Minority Interest 843,977369 907,091395

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 10343313,472 9,154,660,936
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Periodended March31,2018 comparedto Period EndedMarch 31,2017

Income Statement

Hotels and other subsidiaries gross revenues for the1st quarter of 2018 and 2017 are Php 516.80
million and Php 556.29 million respectively, decreased by 7% from last year. Consolidated costs and
expenses forallproperties increased by7% ascompared from lastyear.

Seasonality or CycUcalityofInterim Operations

1STquarter

The occupancy for the two (2) hotels, WCCCHl and WMCHI, are high during the months ofJanuary
and February because ofthe celebration ofthe Feast ofSto. Nino better, renowned as the "Sinulog" as
wellas the celebration of theChinese NewYear. Many visitors come to Cebuduring this timejust to
witness andparticipate in the festivities. Sinulog is one of the city*s main pull for tourists as well as
other locals.The celebration of the Chinese New Year also added to the Companj''s revenues. As we
all know, the country isfull ofChinese nationalities andbusinessmen and celebrating their New Year
would reallybe an advantageto the hotelsin termsof revenues.

On March 18,2018,,a firebroke out at theHotelofAcesite (Phils.) HotelInc. damagingseveralflcwrs,
casinos and restaurants. Operations have been suspended since then. It is expected that operations
will continue after damages are repaired.

March 2018 March 2017

Occupancy Percentage 78% 79%

Average Room Rates 2,634 2,457

Food Covers 306,506 298,854

Average Food Checks 412 381

Average Food Costs 38% 36%

Occupancy Percentage
The occupancy percentage is down by 1% as compared to 1st quarter of last year. Occupancy
percentage is computed by dividing the total numberof rooms sold over the total number of rooms
available for sale.

Average Room Rate
Average room rate is 7% higher compared as compared from last year. Average room rate is
computed by dividing the net rooms revenue over the total number of rooms sold.

Food Covers

Food covers this quarter increased by 3% compared to the 1st quarter of last year. Food covers
pertains to the number of guests that availed of the restaurants services.

Average Food Check
The average food checkor average consumption per guest this quarter increased by 8% compared to
the 1st quarter of last year. Average Food Check is derived by dividing the total food and leverage
revenue by total food covers.

Average Food Cost
Theaveragefood costs increased by 2%. Average Food Cost is computed by dividing the total food
and beveragerevenue by totalfood cost.
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Revenues and Earnings per Share
Revenues decreased by7%, Php 516.80 million for the 1st quarter of2018 andPhp556.29 million of
thesamequarter lastyearand operating expenses increased by7%.

GOPat Php 166.76 million in 2018 and Php 229.83 million in 2017.

Earnings persharethisquarter isat Php0.048 while samequarter lastyearwasat Php0.056.

Fixed Financial and Other Charges
Total fixed financial andother charges, Php67.19 million, reflecting a significant cost reduction of9%
from the previous year's PHP 73.57million.

Thisaccount includesthe depreciationand interest expensefromSSS Loan.

Interestexpense this quarter is lowered by 19% or Php 4.31 million.

HNANCIAL CONDITION

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents asofthe1stquarter of this yearisat Php539.84 million higher by
Php 150.36million firom last year or 39%.

Receivables

Receivables fortheperiod increased by20% from Php300.54 million 1stquarterlast
year to Php 361.93 million 1st quarter this year.

Notes Receivable

TheGroup extended loans toAcesite Leisure and Entertainment Corporation (ALEC) and bear
interest at 4% f)er annum. The loanisguaranteed byanother entity inbehalf ofALEC.

Insurance Receivable

On March18,2018,a fire brokeout at the Hotel of Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Inc.damaging several floors,
casinos and restauremts. Operations havebeensuspended since then. TheHotelhas insurance
coverage toanswer for the damages sustained. It isexpected thatoperations will continue after
damages are repaired.

Inventories

Inventory this year showed an increased of 3%..

Due hrom related parties-current portion
This account increased by87% from lastyear's1stquarter. This represents interest bearing advances
from TWGI and PRC. PHES and ALEC which are due and demandable.

Due from related parties-noncurrent portion
Crisanta Realtyat a rate of two percent (2%) per annum is classified as non-current due in 5 years.

Property, Plant and Equipment
The account reflects a decrease of 15% or Php 935.35million from last year.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
This account had increased to 8% or Php 101.37million from last year.

Loans Payable
The account remains static at Php 375 million. This refers to loan with Social Security System.
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KeyVariable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors:

a. Anyknown Trends, Events or Uncertainties-(material impact on liquidity)-NONE
b.There arenoevents thatwill trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to thecompany, including anydefault oracceleration ofanobligation.
c.There are no material off-balancesheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including, contingent obligations), andotherrelationships of thecompany with
unconsolidated entities orother persons created during thereporting period.
d. Thereare no material commitments forcapitalexpenditures, general purposeof
such commitments,expectedsources of funds for such expenditures.
e.From continuing operations, theCompany is notexposed toanysignificant elements of income or
loss except for those ^readyaffecting profit or loss.
f. There are no significant elements of income or loss thatdid notarise from the issuer's continuing
operationsother dian thosealreadyaffecting profitor loss.

Risk Management Structure
The BOD ismainly responsible for the overall risk management approach andfor theapproval ofrisk
strategies and principles of the Group. It also has the overall responsibility for the development of
risk strategies, principles, frameworks, policies and limits. It establishes a forum of discussion of the
Group's approach to risk issues in order to make relevant decisions.

Risk Management Committee
Risk management committee is responsible for the comprehensive monitoring, evaluation and
analysis of the Group's risksin linewith the policies jmdlimitsset by the BOD.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise ofcash and cash equivalents, receivables, due
from related parties, AFS investment, accounts payable and accrued expenses (except for local taxes
and outputVAT, wiUiholding taxes and deferred income), odier currentliabilities, loans payable, and
other noncurrent liabilities. These financial instruments arise directly from operations.

Themain risks arising from the financial instruments of theGroup are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk. There has been no change to the Group's exposure to risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks in prior frnancial year. The Group's management reviews and
approves policiesfor managing each of these risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's cash in
banks, receivables and advances to related parties. The Group has established a credit policy under
which each newcustomer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness before die Group's standard
paymentand delivery termsand conditions are offered. TheGroup's reviewincludesexternalratings,
if they are available, rinancial statements, credit agency information, industry information, and in
some cases bank references.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by establishing credit limits and maximum payment
periodfor eachcustomer, reviewing outstanding balances to minimize transactions with customersin
industries experiencing particular economic volatility.

With respect to credit risk from other financial assets of the Group, which mainly comprise of due
from related parties, the exposure of the Group to credit risk arises from (he default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.
There is no other significantconcentration of credit risk in the Group.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligationsas they fall
due.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Additional short-term
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funding isobtained through related party advances andfrom bank loans, when necessary.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the BOD, which has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for themanagement oftheGroup's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. For the Group'sshort-term funding,
the Group's policy is to ensure diat thereare sufficient working capitalinflows to match repayments
of short-term debt.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument of the Group will
fluctuate duetochange inmarket prices. Market risk reflects interest rate risk, currency risk andother
price risks.

Since die Group's loan in U.S. dollar had been fully paid in March 2016, the Group is not anymore
significantlyexposed to changesin foreigncurrencyexchangerates.

Interest Rate Risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flow of the hnancial mstruments will
fluctuate because of thechanges in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Group's financial instrument that isexposed to interest risk is the interest-bearing funds made
available by the Parent Company to WCCCHI to finance the construction of the Cebu City Hotel
Project. Such funds were substantially sourced h'om a P375 million loan from SSS, aswell as thestock
rights offering of the Parent Company. The Parent Company is charging WCCCHI on the related
interests and penalties on thecontention that thelatter benefited from theproceeds of theSSS loan

Equity Price Risk
Equity priceriskis the risk that fairvalue offuturecash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate
because ofchanges in market prices (other than those arising from interest rateriskor currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer,or factors affecting allsimilarfinancial instrumentstraded in the market
TheGroup isexposed toequity price risk because ofits investment inshares ofstock ofWII which are
listed in die PSE totaling to 86,710,000 shares as at December 31,2017and 2016.

TheGroup monitors the changes in the priceof the sharesof stock of Wn. In managingits pricerisk,
theGroup disposesofexisting or acquires additionalshares basedon the economic conditions.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, current portion of due from related
parties, accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximate their fair
values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of interest-bearing due from related parties and loans payable is based on the
discounted value of expected future cash flows using the applicable market rates for similar types of
instruments as of the reporting date, thus, the carrying amount approximates fair value.

The fair value of AFS investment was determined using the closing market price of the investment
listed on the PSE as of December 31,2017 and 2016.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure its ability to continue as a going
concern and that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholder value. Capital is defined as the invested money or invested
purchasing power, the net assets or equity of the entity. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged fi-om 2017 and 2016.

TheGroup manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in lightof changes in economic
conditions. Tomaintain or adjustthecapital structure, theGroupmayadjust the dividend paymentto

19



17Q«Ist quarter2018
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives/ policies or processes in 2017 and2016. For purposes of theGroup'scapital maiutgement,
capital includes allequity items thatarepresented in&econsolidated statement ofchanges in equity.

The Group is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.
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WATERFRONT PHIUPPINES, INCORPORATED ANDSUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF AGING OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FOR SEC REPORTING

Asof March 31,2018

Trade Receivables

)

0-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days Total

Waterfront CebuCityCasinoHotel Inc. 18.234.066.85 12.949,559.04 2,226.77732 3,242.433.94 12.103.719.33 48,756,556.98
Waterfront AirportHoteland Casino 20.574.460.90 439.532.27 230,469.04 25,825.40 34,320.94 21,304,608.55
Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao 6.082.328.75 1.240.676.87 1,662.359.27 795,341.92 3,671,300.25 13,452,007.06
Manila Pavilion Hotel 12.816.751.41 1.068.226.74 232,144.50 254,828.80 11.314,721.87 25,686,673.32

Total 57,707.607.91 15.697.994.92 4.351.7S0.63 4.318.430.0S 27.124.06239 109.19934531
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSIONSEC
FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

1. For the quarterly period ended

June 30,2018

2. SEC Identification Number

AS0948678

3. BIR Tax Identification No.

D80003978254NV

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INC.

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

PHILIPPINES

6. Industry Classification Code (SEC Use Only)

7. Address of principal office



NO. 1 WATERFRONT DRIVE. OFF SALINAS DRIVE, LAHUG, CEBU
CITY Postal Code 6000

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code

032-2326888

9. Former name or former address, and former fiscal year. Ifchanged since last
report

NOT APPLICABLE

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC or Sections 4
and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Oass

jCOMMON SHARES - PI .00
1PAR VALUE

Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Outstanding

12,498,991,763

11. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes

No

Ifyes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities
listed therein:

THE PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:



(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC
Rule 17 thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder,
and Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the
preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports)

Yes

No

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90)days

E

Yes

No

The Exchangedoes not warrantand hotds no responsibility forthe veracity of the facts and
representations contained in all corporate disclosures, including financiai reports. Alldata
contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosingparty to the Exchange, and
are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained
herein should be addressed directly to the Cotporate Information Officer of Ute disclosing
party.

Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated

PSE Disclosure Form 17-2 - Quarterly Report References: SRC Rule 17
and

Sections 17.2 and 17.8 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

1For the period
•ended i'June30,2018

Currency (indicate occn
units. If applicable)

Balance Sheet

jCurrent Assets

ITotal Assets

ICurrent Liabilities

Period Ended

June 30,2018

4,737,514,668

10,603,977,503

1,437,941,560

Calendar Year Ended (Audited)

Dec 31,2017

2,502,900,348

9,352,809,593

1,929,206,522



Total Uabilltles

IRetained
IEaming8/(Deficlt)

IStockholders* Equity
1

!Stockholders' Equity• Parent

iBook Value per Share

Income Statement

4,374,552,670

(164,041,324)

6,229,424,833

5,390,724,458

2.16

3,335,294,986

(404,632,514)

6,017,514,607

5,150,133,268

2.06

Current Year

(3 Months)
Previous Year

(3 Months)
Current Year-To-Date

Previous Year-To<

Date

jOperating Revenue 477,452,321 445,561,196 986,479,310 994,086,508
t

1

iOther Revenue 7,769,083 7,456,002 15,538,167 15,216,330

i

jGross Revenue 485,221,404 453,017,198 1,002,017,477 1,009,302,838

i

1Operating Expense 308,457,008 296,700,662 658,493,636 623,154,951

1Other Expense 68,642,075 56,032,302 135,830,273 129,604,595

i

1Gross Expense 377,099,083 352,732,964 7943,23,908 752,759,546

Net lncome/(Loss) Before
jTax

108,122,320 100,284,234 207,693,569 256,543,292

Income Tax Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net Income/(Loss) After
Tax

108,122,320 100,284,234 207,693,569 256,543,292

Net Income Attributable to
Parent Equity Holder

113,399,313 82,191,813 232,822,105
238,450,871

Eamings/(Loss) Per Share
(Basic) 0.045 0.033 0.093 0.095

1 ;

|Eamfngs/(Loss) Per Share i
(Diluted) 0.045 0.033 0.093 0.095



Eamings/(Loss) Per Share (Basic)

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share
(Diluted)

Current Year (Trailing 12 months)

0.054

0.054

Financial Ratios

Liquidity Analysis Ratios:

Current Ratio or Working
Capital Ratio

Quick Ratio

Solvency Ratio

Financial Leverage Ratios
Debt Ratio

Debt-to-Equify Ratio

Interest Coverage

Asset to Equity Ratio

Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Margin

Net Profit Margin
Return on Assets

Return on Equity

Price / Earnings Ratio

Book Value

Formula

Current Assets / Current
Liabilities

(Current Assets • Inventory •
Prepayments)/ Current

Liabilities

Total Assets / Total Liabilities

Total Debt / Total Assets

Total Debt / Total
Stockholders' Equity

Earnings Before Interest and
Taxes (EDIT) / Interest

Charges
Total Assets / Total

Stockholders' Equity

Sales - Cost of Goods Sold or

Cost of service/ Sales

Net Profit / Sales

Net Income / Total Assets

Net Income / Total

Stockholders' Equity

Price Per Share / Earnings Per
Common Share

Total Common Stockholder's
Equlty-Parent/No. of Common

Shares

Previous Year (Trailing 12 months)

0.129

0.129

Current Year

June 30,2018

3.29

3.22

2.42

0.41

0.70

2.50

1.70

0.34

0.21

0.02

0.03

0.093

2.16

Previous Year

June 30,2017

1.36

1.30

2.88

0.35

0.53

7.55

1.53

0.38

0.25

0.03

0.04

0.095

2.08



part I—financial information

Item 1. Financial Statements.

Please refer to Annex A.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

Please refer to Annex B.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

NONE

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Registrant; Waterfront Philippines, Inc.
Issuer Atty. Arthur R. Ponsaran

Signature and Title
C^porate Secretary

08/09/2018

Principal Financial/Accounting Officer/Controller Precilla O. Toriano

Signature and Title / ^
Coi^liance Officer/Corporate Director ofFinance

Date 08/09/2018



WATERFRONTPHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED ANDSUBSIDIARIES Annex A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION Page 1 of5

As ofJane 30,2018

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

June 30,2018 June 30,2017 Decefflber3l,20l7

ASSETS

Current Assets
345,929,975

Cesh and cash uiuivalcnis 585,065,914 449.126.088

Receivables •net 222,703,762 254,794,368 228.360.959

Notes receivable 129,106,906 -
195,007314

Insurance receivable 963,089,200 - -

26,996J28 27.764.819 33,918,796

Due from related panies - eurrent portion 2,728JI2A99 1.614.831381 1,602,120,064

82,239359 8S331.S33 97,563340

4,737314308 14iiU48,084 2302,900348

Noncnrrent Assets

Receivables from Acesite Limited (BVI) - •
•

Due from related parties • noncuirent portion 347327,681 373353.414 347,927,681

Propertyand eituipment- net 5,418329,892 6,483358393 6390.497,964

Available'for-sale (AFS) investments 15354.640 16,821,740 15.954,640

Deferred tax assets 62,768,808 27.533,720 64,994,497

21,181,814 21,257386 30334,463

Total Nottcorrent Assets 5,866,462335 6.922.225.0S3 6.849,909345

10,603,977303 9354373.142 9352,809393

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accountspayable and accruedexpenses 744,152.708 1393,729,020 1,468,215,052

Loans payable • currem portion 375,000,000 375,000,000 375,000,000

Income lax payable • -
70,613.726

Contract p^able - - -

Provisions • 4.468,009 -

Other current liabilities 318.788352 112.038,813 15377,744

Total Current Liabilities 1,437,941360 1,785335,842 1.929306322

Nonenrrent Liabilities

Loans payable • noncurrent portion • - -

Deferred tax liabilities 1364,167382 1321.126,904 1375,069330

Retirementbenefits liability 88304,829 90358.386 124,481,905

Other noncurrent liabilities 1383,538399 51,173.433 6.537329

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,936,611,110 1,462.858,723 1,406,088,464

ToUl Ltabiiltics 4374352,670 3335394,986

EquityAttributableto EquityHolilers oftheParentCompany
Capital stock 2398391,753 2,498.991,753 2,498,991,753

Additionalpaid*incapital 706364357 706364357 706364357

Revaluation surplusin property andequipment 2311,108,991 2349324.496 2,211,108.991

Fordsn currencytranslation adjustment 52342,000 41,686,179 52342,000

Fair value reserve 2,063,223 2,683345 2,063323

Retirement benefits rcsetve 83.695358 102.082.569 83,695,458

Deftett:

Appropriated - -

Unappropriated (164,041324) (504,442375) (404,633,514)

TotalEquity Attributable to Equity Holders oftheParentCompany 5390.724,458 5.196,890324 5,150,133,268

NotMontrolline Interest 838.700375 909388353 867381339

10,603377303 9354373.142 9352,809393

Ste MuAaIVAt OMsulidatatFmamialSuttrntna.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATEDANDSUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Quarter Ended June 30,2018

Annex A

Page 2 of 5

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

April-June 2018 April-June 2017 December 31,2017

REVENUES

Hotel 473,546,445 444348,828 2,057,910,622.00

Nonholcl 3,905,876 1312,368

Interest and other income 7.769,083 7,456.002 47,021,801

485,221,404 453,017,198 2,104,932,423

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Cost ofsales

Hotel 300,678,608 291.559,277 1,005,632,603

Nonhotel 7,778,400 5,141,385 415,150360

308,457,008 296,700,662 1,420,782,863

176,764,396 156316336 684,149360

OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME)

Depreciation and anwithation 27,129,270 48.141368 355307,819

Interestexpense 41312305 7,882,893 60322309

Penaltiesand othercharges - - -

Impaiiment losses,bad dd>tswrittenoff and provisions - -
632,751

Loss on sale on Acesite shares -

Interest income - - (42,276,067)

Foreignexchangelosses(gains) - net - 8,141 10,365,853

Others - net - - 714,766

68,642,075 56,032302 384,967,631

iNCOME(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 108,122320 100384,234 299,181,929

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEnT) - - 100,448,728

NET INCOME (LOSS) 108,122320 100384334 198.733301

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Appraisal on increase onproperty andequipment - -

Foreign currency translation difTerences forforeign operations - 10,855,821

Acntarial gainsondefined benefit plan - (36334,724)
Netchange in fair value ofAFS investment - (867,100)
Reduction ofdeferred taxliability relating torevaluation surplus
Defened tax effect - 10,960,417

- . (15,585,586)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 108,122320 100,284,234 183,147,615

EARNINGS PER SHARE • Basic and Diluted 0.045 0.033 0.087

Thtrt are no<tika'Kepountia!skans



WATERFRONTPHILIPPINES, INCORPORATEDANDSUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
As ofJune 30,2018

Annex A

Page 3 of5

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

June 30.2018 June 30.2017 Deccmbcr3l, 2017

REVENUES

Hotel 974306,960^ 987.175,989 2.057,910.622.00

Nonhotel 12,172350 6310319

Interest and other income 15338,167 15316330 47,021,801

1,002,017,477 1.009302,838 2,104,932.423

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Cost ofsales

Hotel 639,793305 608,484361 1.005,632.603

Nonhotel 18,700,430 14.670390 415,150.260

658,493,636 623.154.951 1,420.782,863

343323342 386.147.887 684,149.560

OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME)

Depreciation and amortization 76308,718 99.604.595 355307.819

Inietest expense 59321355 30,CDO.OCO 60,222,509

Penaltiesand other charges - - -

Impairment losses,baddebts writtenolTandprovisions
Loss on sale on Acesite shares

• •
632,751

Interest income - - (42,276,067)

Foreignexchange losses (gains) - net
- - 10,365,853

Others - net - - 714.766

135,830373 129.604395 384,967,631

INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 207,693369 256343392 299,181,929
INCOMETAX EXPENSE(BENEHT) - - 100,448,728

NET INCOME (LOSS) 207,693369 256343.292 198,733,201
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Appmisal on increase onproperty andequipment
Foreign currency translation differences forforeign operations
Actuarial gainsondefined benefit plan
Net ehange in fair value ofAFS investment

Reduction ofdefetied tax liability relating torevaluatton suiplus
Deferred tax effect

-

- 10,855,821

(36.534,724)

(867,100)

10,960,417
- . (15,585.586)

TOTALCOMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 207,693369 256343392 183,147,615

Earnings pershare - Basicand Diluted 0.093 0.095 0.087



waterfront phiuppines, incorporated and subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AsorJaoe30,2018

Alinn A

Paged ofS

Unaudited lAiandtied Audited

Jane 30.2018 June 30.2017 Dccetnba3l.20l7

F4)UITV ATntlBUTABLETO EQUITYHOLDERS OFTHE PARENT COMPANY
CiFltilftocli-Pl pvvaluepashtn: 2A9a^L1S3 2.498.991.753 2.498.991.753

700304J57

Rcvalitalloa Surptua in Propcnjr and Equlpmest

Babnoeai bcginninsof yor
Otbacomptcheniive ineeoie• netofEacoaieax effai
Dcftcognition ofltnd heldunda IbanceIcateduetoscquiaitioa ofa wbsidiuy

UII.I08.99I 2J49324.496 2349324.490

1138,415,505)

Ul1.108,991 2349324.490 2311,108.991

Unreillixd Valuation Cain (Lou) on AFS Invcttaitati

Balance at bcsinning ofyew . . •
Valititioalouialcea into equity dudng die year ...
ClunBeInoqutiyowaef*hIpofnon<onttoU!ngiateresi!naitihtidiaiy ...

Balance atendof yew ...

Fonlga Cnmncy Tramtadon A4|uttmtBt
Balanceat beginaingof yew
Otha compcehcmive Income • net oftneene tax efleei

52.S42.0OO 41.080.179 41380,179

10355321

Balaaee at cad ofyew 52342.000 41380.179

Dcndt

Appnpriatioafa leaavatioaand buiincu expansioa

Unapptopfiated
BalcaecU bcgfainiRg of yew

Tiamferof revatuatieaniplui abioibodthtoughdqnectalton ibr theyew- net of incoae laxctToct
Change in retiictncal benefiia icawvc

Net income fa (he yew

(40433UI4)

240391.190

(700.985.007)

250343392

(700.985307)

138.415305

217.937348

Balance at cadofyew IIM34I3Z4) (904.44U7S) (404332314)

Total delicti (104341324) (504.442J7S) (40433UI4)

SJ04.905.777 5392.134.410 5304J74387

Fairvalueicwfve,bcgbadngof the yew
Other eomprchcjsive ineome-ciel tax eflfeet

2303323 2383345 2383345

(020.022)

Total Citr value teaeive 2303323 2,083345 2,003323

RetlrenKtti beoefltt reaetve, beginningof(heyew
Oclia compfehenaive incomes tax elTcct

83395358 102382309 102,082309

(18387.111)

Total tetliement bcneliu teaeive 83395358 102382309 83.095.458

ToUljguijy Attrfbutible to Equity Holdewof UteRirent Comp«ny S.ISO.I33J6«i



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATEDANDSUBSIDIARIES Annex A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Page 5 of5

As ofJune 30,2018

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

June 30,2018 June 30,2017 December 31,2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITICS

Income before income ux 207,693,569 256443,293 299,181,929

Adjustmentsfor
355,307,819Depreciation and amoitizetiiHi 76,508,718 99,604,594

Interest expense 59,321,555 30,000,000 60,222,509

Loss on sale on aeesite shares - • "

Retirement benefit costs (35,577.076) (7,959,479) 21,196,913

Provisions -
(4,468,009) -

Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) - -
10,855,821

Penalties and other charges " "

"

Lossfgain)on disposalof propertyand equipment • • •

Impairment losses - -
632,751

Interest income -
(13,212,615) (42,276,067)

Operating incomebeforewoifdngcapitalchanges 307,946,766 360407,784 705,121,675

Decrease (increase) in:
6,453,437

Receivables (891,531,695) (19447421)

Inventories 6,922,468 422485 (5,731,692)

Prepaidexpenses and other cuncnt assets 15423,481 4,571,432 (7.160475)

Increase (decrease) in:

Accountspayable and accruedexpenses (724,062444) 64,636,871 49,626,652

Other current liabilities (173471,667) (86494,629) (10466,440)

Cash generated finm opeiations (1,458,672,991) 324496422 738,043457

Interest received - 13412,615 1,902,783

Income taxes paid (70413,726) (69455,622) (176485.272)

Retirement pten contributions paid - -
(21,450,000)

Benefits paid - -
(10417497)

Interest paid (59421455) (3o,ooaooo) -

Net cash provided by openting activities (1488408472) 531493,171

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

AequisitioDS ofproper^ and cquipmeat 895459454 2,065,662
•

Investmentin a subsidiary - - -

Due fhun relatedpatties (1.126,192435) (109,987,455) (31477421)

Proceeds fromsaleof an equityinterestinsubsidiary • • -

Proceeds fromsaleof propertyattdequipment - -
(160,776,933)

Notes Receivable 65,900408 - (195,007414)

Increase in othernoncuirent assets 11478439 88492,635 (2456451)

Net cash itsed in invesdng activities (153454434) (19,629,158) (3^,9i'/,Vl9)
Forward

Years Ended December 31

June 30,2018 June 30,2017 December 31,2017

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Ineiease)Decrease in loans payable - -

(Increase) Decrease induefrom related parties - - -

Increase (decrease) in other noneurrent liabilities 1,981,098446 26,406478 (40,630)

Paymentofobligation under finance lease

Net cashprovidedby (usedin) financingactivities 1,981,098446 26,406478 (40,630)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TRANSLATIONADJUSTMENTFOR THE YEAR

NET INCREASE(DECREASE)IN CASHand CASH EQUIVALENTS 239,135,939 244430435 141,634,822

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 345,929475 204495,153 204495,153

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 585,065,914 449,126,088 345429475
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization and Status of the Business

Corporate Injbnmtion
Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the

Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
September 23,1994. The Parent Company is46%-owned byThe Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI), an entity
registered and domiciled in the Philippines, which is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).
The Parent Company holds equity interests in hotels and resorts, a fitness gym, entities engaged in
the international marketing and promotion of casinos, manufacturing of pastries, and hotel
management and operations.

The Parent Company and the following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group) were
incorporated in the Philippines, except for Waterfront Promotion Ltd. (WPL) and Club Waterfront
International Limited(CWIL), which were registered in the CaymanIslands.

Percentage of Ownership
Direct Indirect

Hotels and Resorts

Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel, Incorporated
(WCCCHI) 100

Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Incorporated (WMCHI) 100
Davao Insular Hotel Company, Inc. (DIHCI) 98
Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation (APHC) 56
Grand Ilocandia Resort and Development, Inc. (GIRDI) 54

Real Estate

QMA Realty Phil., Inc. (OMAR) - 56*

Fitness Gym
WaterfrontWellness Group, Inc.(WWGI) 100

International Marketing and Promotion of Casinos
WPL 100

Mayo Bonanza, Inc. (MBI) 100
CWIL (through direct ownership in WPL) - 100
WaterfrontEntertainmentCorporation (WEC) 100
Pastries Manufacturing
WaterfrontFood ConceptsInc.(WFQ 100
Hotel Management and Operation
Waterfront Hotel ManagementCorp. (WHMQ 100 -

Hotels

Waterfront Cebu Qty Casino Hotel, Inc.

WCCCHI was incorporated on September 23, 1994 to manage and undertake operations of
Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Casino (WCCHC). WCCCHI achieved a milestone during the year
by opening the doors ofWCCHC onJanuary 5,1998, with 158 guest-rooms which has already grown
to 561 by the lastquarter of1999, six-storey convention centerknown as the Waterfront Convention
Center , previously known as Cebu International Convention Center and six-storey^ Entertainment
Block. Located in this Entertainment Block is a1,000-square meter 5-star restaurant, which completes
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the Company's restaurants row. On February 5,1998, PAGCOR comm^ced operations at the new
purposely-built casino at theEntertainment Block.

- Vfaterfront Convention CenUr-CWCC)
Waterfront Convention Center previously known as Cebu International Convention Center is a six-
storey building, especially-designed toadapt toany event size and purpose, witii a total gross area of
40,587 square meters, and has been inoperation since January 5,1998. Major amemties ofthe center
include ten(11) function rooms and two (2) Grand Ballrooms with a seating capacity of4,000. WCC is
theonly convention andexhibition center ofinternational standard inCebu City.

- Entertainment Block

TheEntertainment block is a six-storey building with a total gross areaof 34,938 squaremeters. It is
comprised ofeleven (9) Food and Beverage entertainment outlets, an11,000 square meters ofpublic
andinternational gaming area thatincludes the"Casino Filipino", and62hotel rooms andsuites

- Hotel Tower Block

The Hotel Tower block is a 22-storey building with a total gross area of 44,334 square meters. It
consists of a podium, containing the lobby, a food and beverage oudet, a reception, a shopping
arcade, three(3) pressfunction rooms, and a highriseblock of498 hotel rooms and suites.

The Hotel, with itsfairytale-inspired facade, is conveniently located in thecenter ofCebu City and is
withineasy reachfrom keybusiness, commercial and shoppingdistricts and is just 30minutesaway
hromthe Mactan International Airport

Waterhont Cebu City Hotel & Casino has elegantly designed and well-appointed guest rooms
and suites. The 18tti Floor is the Waterfront Ambassador Club with a two floor Qub Lounge exclusive
for Ambassador Floor guests. Waterfront Ambassador Club guests enjoy butler service,
complimentary business services and a business boardroom fit for a group of up to 8 people,
equipped with a built-in LCD projector, a roll-up screen, PA and recording system, a local area
network (LAN) and a poly communication system. The 2nd floor lounge isouthtt^ with 3computer
stations, where guests can avail of complimentary WIFI access, flat-screen television entertainment,
an array of lifestyle and business magazines as wellas newspapersand board games.The hotel offers
a 10,000-square meter convention center, which is the largest convention center in die Visayas and
Mindanao, and is designed to adapt to multiple types of events. The convention center is equipped
with 10 function rooms, 2 executiveboard rooms, and 2 Grand Ballrooms, eadi seating 4,000people. It
has played host to a myriad of national as well as regionalevents,conventionsand conferences.

WaterhrontCebu City Hotel and Casino operates 9 F&B outlets, including a hotel coffees shop, a
Japanese restaurant an Italian restaurant and a poolside snack bar. The hotel has a fuUy functional
business center paired with flat-screen computers, internet access and private boardrooms.
The newly renovated lobby was inspired bas^ on two main objectives; first, to transform the
existing single dimension grand lobby into a multi-dimensional lifestyle-concept space fiiat will
enhance the guests'experience whendiningand lounging in the lobby; and second, to improve traffic
patterns, through the construction of larger check-in areas emd through maximizing fiieLobby's three
entrances. Waterfi'ont Cebu City Hotel and Casino's massive, high-ceilinged lobby has always been
its principal attraction in fact it is touted as the largest hotel lobby in Visayas-Mindanao area.
Spanning 22 meters wide, 96 meters in long and 35 meters high and crisscrossed by htmdreds of
peopleeach day, the hotel'sgrand lobby sets the whizzing pulsefor the hoteland dictates its overall
ambiance. Apart from improvements to the general structure of the lobby, the Lobby Lounge itself
will offer an all-new dining and lounging experience, with newly-installed glass panels, semi-closing
eachside of the lounge.Fully-equipped bar areas have also beeninstalledin the middle of each of the
lounge's two sections, ensuring diners of more efficient and prompt service. To enhance the overall
guest experience, the hotel has put together additional features such as nighfiy entertainmentfrom
die city's top performers, and soulful afternoon music by soloists.
Among thehotel's newest pride comes in theform of delectable treats, introducing Lobby Lounge's
new service concepts.

Aftemoon.Tea
Guests can now relive the splendor andgrace ofthe old English days with the Lobby Lounge's
Afternoon Tea offering. It isa tea anddessert concept created togive guests a whole new tea
6
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experience by giving emphasis on unique ways to enjoy a cup of tea. Guests can expect an array ot
snack choices to complement their tea selection. The Afternoon Tea comes with achoice ofTraditional
Afternoon Tea with a Local Twist or Chocolate Temptations. For each selection, guests may opt for
tea, coffee orhot chocolate. Each selection also comes with a variety ofsnack options to goalong with
dieir choice of beverage.

Wine Dispenser
Guests can now take asipofLobby Lounge's extensive selection ofwine. The wine dispenser isan
innovative addition tothe wining and dining experience at the hotel. Itserves thepurpose of
allowing guests to select among an array of bottles, through tasting by the glass. This concept intends
to give guests an opportuniiy to sample different wines in small amounts before deciding to order a
full glass orbottle. Guests may test wines from the dispenser in three different amounts. This way,
guests can choose the perfect wine fit for their palate. To enjoy the wine dispenser service, guests
must avail of the WineCard which comesin prepaid or postpaid.

To complement the Hotel's main lobby, a group check-in counter is constructed, dedicated solely to
corporate and travel groups; a larger Duty Free shopping isalso provided; and anadditional Casino
Filipino gaming space of2350 square meters islaunched together with it This will not only enhance
the current lobby, butwill also increase operational efBciency and add more exciting features for the
hotel's customers.

Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Inc.

Waterfront Mactan was incorporated onSeptember 23,1994 to manage and undertake operations of
Waterfront Mactan IslandHotel and Casino (WMIHC). WMCHI hascompleted PhaseI of Waterfront
Mactan Island Hotel and Casino (WMIHC). It is located right across Mactan-Cebu International
Airportona land area ofapproximately 3.2 hectares. Thehotel features 164 rooms andsuites, 6 food-
and-beverage andentertainment outlets, with a total built-up area of38,000 square meters. Equipped
withone of the largest casinos in the Philippines, WMIHC hasmadeCebu the onlycity in Southeast
Asia that offerscasino tecilities to transients while waiting for their flights.For future development is
Phase n, consisting of 200-guest rooms, which willbebuiltdepending on thedemands of the market
It has recently improved its rooms by installing fax machines and Internetcoimections to cater to the
needs of its guests. Additionally, die company has acquired the newesthospitality software in the
industry, the OPERA Property Management System, which is designed to help run the hotel
operations at a greater levelof productivity and profitability. Thiswas installed last January 14,2003.

The hotel is conveniently located in hont of the Mactan International and Domestic Airport, just a
three-minute drive to the Industrial Zone, a fifteen-minute drive to the beaches of Mactan Island and
just thirty minutes away hom Cebu City's shopping and rinancial district

^ This year 2016, the property extended die Annex parking to provide more slots for die guests and this
year also marks the 20»* anniversary of Waterfront MactanCasinoHotel, Inc.

Davao Insular Hotel Company, Inc. or Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao, Inc.

Davao Insular Hotel Company Inc. was incorporated in die Philippines on July 3,1959 to engage in
the operation of hotel and related hotel businesses.The hotel is a %% owned subsidiary of Waterfront
Philippines, Incorporated and is operating under its trading name Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao.
Waterfront Insular Hotel, the prestigious business hotel in a sprawling garden resort setting, is only
five to ten minutes to the downtown area. Nestied along the picturesque Davao Gulf, its open air
corridors provide a refreshingview of the hotel's beautifullylandscaped tropicalgarden and the sea.

Witha greater area than any otiter hotel facility in the city, it is unmatched in servicing large business
meetings, conventions,and exhibit groups. The hotel consists of four low-risebuildings of 159 guest
rooms and suites,5 function roomsand 6 F&B outiets.Every roomopens toa lanaioverlooking a lush
garden the bluewatersof theDavaoGulfor a scenic coconutgrove. Features includedin the newly
re-openedhotel are die 5 Gazebos locatedalong the beacharea.Thehotel is every guesfs gateway to
thediverse, colorful and richculturalheritage of Davao City.
Discover the rich culturalheritage ofDavao whichstemsfrom thediHerent groups and tribes that
populated the area throughout its history and be astonished of artworks in the hotel lobby whereit

7
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showcases pieces of artifacts featuring the various ol^ect d'art from the diffierent tribes and historical.

On 2015/ the property re-opens itsgym with 48 square meters to continuously serve itsguests and to
ensure guests sa&htction.

Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation

The principal property ofthe Company is a 22-storey building known as the Manila Pavilion Hotel
located at the corner of United Nations Avenue and Maria Y. Orosa Street in Ernuta/ Manila. The
Hotel has 337 guestrooms and suites that have individually controlled central air conditioning,
private bathroom with bathtub and shower, multi-channel radio, color TV with cable channels and
telecommunications fecilities. It has 3 function rooms and one of diis is Alcuaz which can
accommodate 250-300 guests. The hotel has approximately 2,200 sq. meters of
meeting/banquet/conference facilities, and also houses several restaurants, such as Seasons Caf4
(coffee shop), the El Key (bar & lounge) and die Patisserie (bakeshop and deli items). Other guest
services and facilities include a chapel, swimming pool, gym, business center and a valet-service
basement car park. Concessionaires and tenants include beauty salon, foot spa,photography services,
transportation services, travel agency, flower shop and boutiques. In addition. Casino Filipino -
Pavilion, owned and operated byPAGCOR, occupies partof the first, second, third, fourth and fifth
floors (a total of 12,696.17 sq. m.) of the building.

The Company acquired 100% interest of QMAR, a former subsidiary of Acesite Liinited (BVI) or
ALB, in October 2011. In July 2011, The Company and OMAR executed a Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA), which effectively settle all pending cases and controversies between the two
parties. In fulfillment ofall the termsand conditions of the MOA, QMAR's stockholders including all
theirnominees, agreed to sign,sell, transferand convey all existing shares of stocksof OMAR to the
Company.

Year2015,Alcuaz function that can accommodate 250-300 guests was renovated and 111 rooms under
superior room category were opened.

WaterfirontHotel Management Corporation {previously WaterfrontManagement Corp.)

G-Hotel by Waterfront located in 2090 Roxas Boulevard, Malate Manila on November of 2006 is being
managed by Waterfront Management Corporation. It is a seven-story building with 10 deluxe suites,
20 deluxe king and 20 deluxe twin rooms which offers a personalized butler service. A boutique hotel
boasting with its trendy Cate Noir, pool bar Mirage and an elegant ballroom. Promenade, added to
the list of must-go places in the busy district of Manila. The blackand white concept of its lobby is
distinctly G-Hotel.

On October 01, 2014, the BOD approved the cessation of the Company's business operations.
Consequently, the Company's activities were confined mainly to the collection of receivables,
settiement of liabilities, and ofiter administrative matters, while maintairung its status as non-
operating entity seeking for other business opportunities.

Mayo Bonanza, Inc.

MayoBonanza, Incorporated (MBI), a 100% owned subsidiary of WPIwas incorporated on November
24,1995in the Philippines wifii principalactivities in the operationand management of amusement,
entertainment, and recreationbusinesses. MBI is to extend the gaming business of the Company. Its
primary purpose is to establish, operate, and manage the business of amusement entertainment, and
recreationfacilities for the use of die paying public. The Companyentered into an agreement with
thePhilippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR) whereby the lattershalloperate the
former's slotmachine outside ofcsisinos inline with PAGCOR's slotmachine arcade project

OnMay 30,2016. BOD approved tiiecessation of theCompan3^s business operations effective July01,
2016.
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Waterfront Horizon Corporation (previously Watetfront Entertainment Corporation)

WPI has successfully established the country's first ever integrated hotel reservations and booking
system featuring a full-service^ round-the-clock, 7 days a week Central Reservation Office. This
service ranges from systems and solutions specializing in theoperations hotel framework. It offers
specialize hotel consultancy services to hotel owners, operators, brands, developers, lenders and
investors with thesupport of hand-picked networks of experts covering allelements of tiie hotel or
hospitality business within a global perspective.

Waterfront Food Concepts, Inc

Waterfix>nt Food Concepts, Inc. is a pastry business, catering to pastry requirements of Waterfront
Cebu, Waterfront Mactan and other established coffeeshops and food service channels outside the
hotels. Theproperty is located in the lobby level ofWaterfront Cebu CityCasino Hotel. It hasstarted
its operation on May of 2006. Its pastry products include cakes, cookies and sandwiches. The
subsidiaryhas alreadycateredmostof the renowned cofiee shopsin the cityofCebu.

Waterfront Wellness Group, Inc

This subsidiary is located in the Ground Level of Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel occupying
617.53 square meters. Previously WCitigyms and Wellness, Inc. is a fully equipped gym with
specialized trainers and state of the art equipments. The gym offers variety of services from aerobic
instructions to belly dancing, boxing, yoga classes and a lot more. It also has its own

^ nutritionist/dietician. Its highly trained therapists perform massage and spa services toguests within
the hotel.

Citigymentices the public by opening -The Qtigym Hit Zone.This is Qtigym's "Do It Right" and
smart solution to Cebu's growing interest in high intensity workout routines.

Grand Uocandia Resort and Development, Inc

As of March 31, 2000, the Company carried its investments in GIRDI at cost since it intended to
dispose such investment in the near future. In November 2000, GIRDI sold all of its property and
equipment, inclusive of the hotel facilities and related operating assets and the investment in
marketable securities.

Waterfront Promotions LimitecVCIub Waterfront International Limited

Waterfront Promotion Ltd. was incorporated on March 6,1995, under and by virtue of the laws of
Cayman Islands to act as the marketing arm for the international marketing and promotion of hotels
and casinos under the trade name of Club Waterfront International Limited (CWIL). It is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Waterfront Philippines, Inc., a domestic company. Under the agreement with
PAGCOR, WPL has been granted the privilege to bring in foreign players under the program in
Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Grand Ilocandia Resort Development Corp. On the other hand,
CWIL is allowed to bring in foreign players in Waterfront Mactan Hotel. In connection to this, the
company markets and organizes groups of foreign players as participants to the Philippine
Amusement and Gaming Corporation's (PAGCOR) Foreign Highroller Marketing Program. The
company also entered into agreements with various junket operators to market the casinos for foreign
customers. Under these agreements, the company grants incentiveprograms to junket operators such
as freehotelexpenses, freeairfares and rolling commissions.

Thecompanyparticipated ina jointventurewithJinLinManagement Corporation, its solemarketing
agent and co-ventureron September24,2001. This jointventure was terminated on April 15,2002.

The operations for Waterfront Promotions Limited and likewise for Club Waterfront International
Limited had ceased for the year 2003 in March due to the bleak market
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Basis of ConsolidaHon

Theconsolidated foiancial statements include the accounts of theParentCompany, as wellas thoseof
its subsidiaries enumerated in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity if and only if, the
Group isexposed to, orhas rights to, variable returns from its involvement with flte entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether or
not it controlsan investee if facts and circumstances indicatethat thereare changes to one or moreof
the three elements of control.

Thefinancial statements of thesubsidiaries are prepared for thesamereporting periodas the Parent
Company and are included in the consolidated ^ancial statements from ttie date when control
commences until the date when control ceases.

The accounting policiesofsubsidiaries are being aligned with the policies adopted by the Group.
Losses applicable tothe NCI inasubsidiary are allocated tothe NCI even ifdoing socauses the NCI
to have a deficit balance.

Segment Reporting
An operating segment isa component oftheGroup fiiat engages inbusiness activities ft'om which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group's other components. All operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Group'sBOD, thechief operating decision maker of theGroup, to make decisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Segment results that are reportedto die Group's BOD includeitemsdirectly attributableto a segment
as well as fiiose that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly
corporateassets,head office expenses and income taxassetsand liabilities.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property and
equipment

The Group's businesses are operated and orgaitized according to the nature of business provided,
with each segment representing a strategic business unit, namely, the Hotel operations. Marketing
operations and Corporate and Other Operations segments.
The Group's only reportable geographical segment is the Philippines.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is r^ognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenuecanbe reliablymeasured.Income is measuredat the fair value of the
consideration received, net of trade discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duties. The following
specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Rooms

Room revenue is recognized based on actual occupancy.

Food and Beverage
Foodand beverage revenue is recognized when ordersare servedand billed.

Rent and Related income

Rentand related incomeon leased areas of the Group's properties is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease, except for cancellable leases which are recognized at amount collected
or collectiblebased on the contract provision.

Other Revenues

Other revenues are recognizedupon executionof serviceor when earned.

Interest Income

Interestincome is recognized as it accrues using theeffective interest method.

10
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1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cashin banksearn interestat the respective bankdeposit rates. Short-term placements earn interestat
annual average of0.13% to2.88% in2018 and2017 andhave average maturities ranging from 30to35
days for both years.

2. Receivables

This account consbts:

June 2018 June 2017

Trade 114,050,644 101,163,108

Others 130,237,032 173,655,600

244,287,676 274,818,708

Less allowance for doubtful accounb -21,583,914 -20,024,340

Total 222,703,762 254,794^68

3. Inventories

Thb account consbb of:

Jtme 2018 June 2017

Food and Beverage
Operating Supplies
Otiiers

14,172,929

10,006308

2,817,091

15,973336
10302,084
1,189,499

Total 26,996,328 27,764319

4. Related Party Transactions

Thb represente interest bearing advances from TWGI and PRC. Non-interest bearing advances from
PHES/ AFS investment and notes receivable wherein the Group extended loans to ALEC (Acesite
Leisure and Entertainment Corporation) at4% per annum.

5. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Thb account consbb of:

June 2018 June 2017

Trade

Accrued Expenses
Others

235364335
213,002372

295385301

242326,133
610354,923
440347,964

Total 744,152,708 1393,729,020

6. Loans Payable

Thb account consbb of:

SSS Loan

SSS vs WPI. Et al civil caseno. Q-04-52629 at regional trial court,QuezonCity.On October 28,1999,
theParentCompany obtained a five-year termloanfrom SSS amounting toP375.00 million originally
due on October 29, 2004. TheSSS loan bears interest at the prevailing marketrate plus 3% or 14.5%
per annum, whichever b higher. Interest b repriced annually and b payable semi-annually. Initial
interest paymenb are due 180 days from the date of the release of the proceeds of the loan. The
repa3rment of the principal shall be based on eight (8) semi-annual paymenb, aftera one-year grace
period.

The SSS loan was availed tohnance thecompletion of the facilities ofWCCCHI. It was secured by a
first mortgage over parceb of land owned by Wn and by die assignment of 200 million common

11
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shares of tfie Parent Company owned byTWGI. The common shares assigned wereplaced inescrow
in thepossession ofan independentcustodian mutuallyagreedupon by bothparties.

On August7/2003, whenthe totalloanobligation toS5S, including penalties and interest, amounted
to P605.00 million, the Parent Company was considered in default with the pa3anents of the loan
obligations, thus,on the same date,SSS executed a foreclosure proceeding on the mortgaged parcels
of land. The SSS's wiiming bid on the foreclosure sale amounting to P198.00 million was applied to
penalties and interest amounting to P74.00 million and P124.00 million, respectively. In addition, the
ParentCompany accrued penalties charged by SSS amounting to P30.50 million covering the month
ofAugustuntil December 2003, and unpaid interestexpenseofP3Z00 million.

The ParentCompzmy, Wn and TWGI were given the rightto redeem the foreclosed property within
one (1) year from October 17, 2003, the date of registration of the certificate of sale. The Parent
Company recognized the proceeds of theforeclosure saleas its liability to WII and TWGI. TheParent
Company, however, agreed withTWGI to offset this directly against its receivable from the latter. In
August2004, theredemption periodfor theParentCompany, WII and TWGI expired.

The remaining balance ofthe SSS loan issecured bytheshares ofstock oftheParent Company owned
byTWGI andshares ofstock ofWnnumbering 235 million and80 million shares, respectively.

The Parent Company, at various instances, initiated negotiations with theSSS for restructuring of the
loan but was notable to conclude a formal restructuring agreement

Oi* January 13,2015, the RTC ofQuezon City issued a decision declaring null andvoid the contract of
loan and the related mortgages entered into by the Parent Company with SSS onthe ground that the
officers and theSSS are notauthorized toenter the subject lo2m agreement. In the decision, the RTC of
Quezon City directed the Company to return to SSS the principal amount of loan amounting to
P375.00 million and directed the SSS to return to the Company and to its related parties titles and
documents held by SSS as collaterals.

OnJanuary 22,2016, SSS appealed with theCA assailing Are RTC ofQuezon City decision infavor of
theParentCompany, et al.SSS filed itsAppellant's Brief and theParent Company filed a Motion for
Extensionof Time to fileAppellee's Briefuntil May 16,2016.

OnMay 16,2016, theParent Company filed itsAppellee's Brief with theCA, furnishing theRTC of
Quezon City andtiie Office oftheSolicitor General with copies. SSS was given a period to reply butit
did not file any.

OnSeptember 6,2016, a resolution forpossible settlement wasreceived by theParentCompany from
theCA. However, on February 7,2017 a Notice to Appear datedDecember 7,2016 wasreceived by
theParentCompany from thePhilippine Mediation CenterUnit- CourtofAppeals (PMCU-CA)
directing the ParentCompany and SSS toappearin person and without counsel at ttiePMCU-CA on
January 23,2017 tochoose their mediator and thedateof initial mediation conference and toconsider
the possibility ofsettlement. Since the Noticeto Appearwas belatedly received, the parties were not
able to appear before the PMCU-CA.

On February 27,2017, a Second Notice to Appear issuedby thePMCU-CA directing all parties to
appear on February27,2017at a specitied time was received by the Parent Company only on
February 27,2017after the specifiedtime of the meeting.The Parent Company hiiled to appear.

On June 30,2017,a resolutionissued by the CA, resolved to submit the appeal for decision.

As at the report date, there had been no updates on the matter.
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7.The eamings (loss)per share is computed as follows:

June 2018 June 2017

Net Income (Loss) 232,822,105 238,450,871

Weighted Average Number of Shares
Outstanding 2,498,991,753 2,498,991,753

Eamings (Loss) per share 0.093 0.095

There are no dilative potential shares as of June 30,2018 and 2017.

8. Lease Agreement with Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (''PAGCOR')
The Parent Company, in behalfof WCCCHIand WMCHI, entered into leaseagreements with
PAGCOR. The leaseagreementof WCCCHI with PAGCOR covered the MainArea (8,123.60 sq.m.).
SlotMachineExpansionArea (883.38 sq.m.).Mezzanine(2,335 sq.m.)and 5th FloorJunket Area (2,336
sq.m.) fora totalareaof13,677.98 sq.m. whichcommenced on March 3,2011 and March16,2011, for
the MainAreaand SlotMachine Expansion Area,respectively. Theleaseagreementof WMCHI with
PAGCOR covered the MainArea (4,076.24 sq.m.)and Chip WashingArea (1,076 sq.m.) for a total area
of5,152.24 sq.m.whichwas lastrenewed on March 21,2011. Both leases expiredon August2,2016.
Thereafter, PAGCOR paid theWCCCHI and WMCHI rentalon a month-to-mondi basis.The lease
was renewed on February15,2018, for a period of 1 year.

APHC also hasa lease agreement withPAGCOR covering theMain Area (7,093.05 sq.m.), Expansion
AreaA (2,130.36 sq.m.). Expansion Area B(3,069.92 sq.m.) and AirHandling UnitArea(402.84 sq.m.)
for a to^ lease area of 12,696.17 sq.m. The lease agreement was last renewed on December 1, 2010
and expired onDecember 31,2017. Asat December 31,2017, PAGCOR continued to operate a portion
of die lease area on a month-to-monthbasiswhile completingits pullout from APHC.

9. Other Lease Agreements

Group as Lessor
Lease Agreements widi Concessionaires
WCCCHI, WMCHI and DIHQ havelease agreements withconcessionaires for the commercial
spaces available in theirrespective hotels. These agreements typically run fora periodof less than
one year, renewableupon the mutual agreement of the parties.

Group as Lessee
Land under Operating Lease
OnSeptember 15,1994, Waterfront Hoteland Resort Sdn. Bhd. (WHR), a former related party,
executed a lease contract (the Agreement) withMactan Cebu International AirportAuthority
(MCIAA) forthelease ofcertain parcels oflandwhere thehotels were constructed. OnOctober 14,
1994, WHR assigned itsrights andobligations undertiieMCIAA contracts toWCCCHI andWMCHI.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

The following are the significantcommitments and contingenciesinvolving the Group:

a. On November 10,2008, the Parent Company receiveda preliminary assessment notice from the BIR
for deficiencytaxesfor the taxableyear 2006. On February 9,2009, the Parent Company sent a protest
letter to BIR contesting the said assessment.On February 18,2009,the RegionalOfficeof the BBR sent
a letter to the Parent Company informing the latter that the docketwas returned to RevenueDistrict
Offtcefor reinvestigation and furdier verification.

On December8,2009,the Parent Company receivedBlR'sFinalDecision on Disputed Assessmentfor
deficiencytaxes for the 2006 taxableyear. The final decisionof the BIRseeks to collectdeficiency
assessments totaling to P3.30million. However, on January 15,2010, the Parent Company appealed
the ftnal decision of the BIR with the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA) on the grounds of lack of legal and
factual bases in the issuance of the assessments.
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In its decision promulgated on November 13/2012/ theCTA upheldthe expandedwithholdingtax
(EWT)assessment and cancelled the VAT and compromise penalty assessments. The Parent
Company decided not to contest the EWTassessment The BIR filed its motion for reconsideration
(MR) on December4,2012and on April 24,2013/ the Court issued its amended decision reinstating
^e VAT assessment. The Parent Company filed its MR on the amended decision ttiat was denied by
die CTA in its resolution promulgated on September 13/2013.

TheParentCompanyappealeddie caseto the CTAsittingEn Banc on October21/2013. TheCTAEn
Banc decision promulgated onDecember 4,2014 affirmed theVAT and EWT assessments. TheEWT
assessment was paid on March 3/ 2013.

TheCTA EnBanc decision wasappealed to theSConFebruary 5/2015 covering theVAT assessment
only.

Asat December 31/2017/ theParentCompanyis stillawaiting theSCs decision.

OnMay 02/ 2018/ thelegal counsel served copies ofthe reply inthe case pending before theCourt of
Tax Appeals.

Management and itslegal counsels believe thatthe position ofthe Parent Company issustainable/
andaccordingly, believe diat dieParent Company does nothave a present obligation (legal or
constructive) with respect to the assessment
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF nNANQAL CONDrnONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Below are tite resultsof operations of the ParentCompany and its subsidiaries, for the period ending
June30,2018and 2017 togedierwith its financial conditionsas of die same period.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

June 2018 June 2017

Revenues 1,002,017,477 1,009302,838

Less: Costs and Expenses 658,493,636 623,154,951

Net Income (Loss) Before Fixed Financial and Other
Charges

343,523,842 386,147387

Less: Fixed Financial and Other Charges (Dep'n and
Amorfn, and Interest)

135330,273 129304,595

Income (Loss) before Income Tax
207,693369 256343392

IncomeTax Expense (Benefit) 0.00 0.00

Income (Loss) before Share in Minority Interest 207,693369 256343392

Share of Minority Interest -25,128337 18,092321

Net Income (Loss) 232322,105 238350371

Earnings (loss) Per share 0.093 0.095

nNANCIAL CONDITION

June 2018 June 2017

Assets

Current assets 4,737,514,668 2,432348,089

Non-current Assets 5,866,462335 6,922325,053

Total Assets 10,603,977303 9354373,142

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current Liabilities 1,437,941360 1,785,235,842

Non-current Liabilities 2,936,611,110 1,462358,723

Total Stockholders' Equity 5390,724,458 5,196390,224

Minority Interest 838,700375 909388353

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 10,603,977303 9,354373,142
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Period ended June 30,2018compared to Period Ended June 30,2017

Income Statement

Hotels and odiersubsidiaries gross revenues for the2ndquarterof2018 and 2017 are Php1.00 billion
and Php 1.01 billion respectively, slight decreased of 1% from last year. Consolidated costs and
expensesfor all properties increasedby 6% as compared from last year.

Seasonality or Cyclicality ofInterim Operations ^

iCTquarter

The occupancy for toe two (2) hotels, WCCCHI and WMCHI, arehigh during the months ofJanuary
andFebruary because ofthecelebration oftheFeastofSto. Nifto better, renowned as the"Sinulog" as
well as toe celebrationof the Chinese New Year. Many visitors come to Cebu during this time just to
witness and participate in the festivities. Sinulog isone of toe city's main pull for tourists as well as
other locals. The celebration of toe Chinese New Year also added to the Compan)^s revenues. As we
allknow, toecountry isfull ofChinese nationalities and businessmen and celebrating their New Year
would reallybe an advantage to toe hotels in terms ofrevenues.

On March18,2018,, a fire brokeout at the Hotel of Acesite(Phils.) Hotel Inc.damaging several floors,
casinos and restaurants. Operations have been suspended since then. It is expected that operations
will continue after dzunages are repaired.

2'"» QUARTER

For most aspects of operations, 2018 continued the upward trajectory seen in toe past year.
Concurrently, however, challenges have presented toemselves, slowing thegrowth potential in some
areas ofouroperations. We areconfident toatthese challenges can beresolved byemploying toeright
strategies towardssettingtheentiregroup backin syncand on track.

Inaddition, ournewtagline, "We're at toecenter ofitall." andournew revitalized brand signify our
leadership intoeindustry, ourstrength andability todraw toemarket It demonstrates analignment
ofol^ectives, a powerful, unified message anda confident voice. Waterfront continues to leverage its
strengths, bothofitsinfrastructure and its network, tomaintain a competitive edgein toehospitably
industry.

June 2018 June 2017

Occupancy Percentage 75% 74%

Average Room Rates 2,651 2,478

Food Covers 613,904 611,810

Average Food Checks 405 386

Average Food Costs 37% 35%

Occupancy Percentage
The occupancy percentage is up by 1% as compared to 2nd quarter of last year. Occupancy
percentage is computedby dividing toe total number of roomssold over toe total number of rooms
available for sale.

Average Room Rate
Average room rate is 7% higher as compared brom last year. Average room rate is computed by
dividing toe net rooms revenue over the total number of rooms sold.
16
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Food Covers

Food covers this quarter increased by 0.3% compared to the 2nd quarter of last year. Food covers
pertains to the number of guests that availed of the restaurants services.

Average Food Check
The average food check or average consumption per guest this quarter increased by 5% compared to
the 2nd quarter of last year. Average Food Check is derived by dividing the total food and beverage
revenue by total food covers.

Average Food Cost
The average food costs increased by 2%. Average Food Cost is computed by dividing the total food
and beverage revenue by total food cost.

Revenues and Earnings per Share
Revenues decreased by 1%, Php 1.00billionfor the 2nd quarter of 2018 and Fhp 1.01 billion of the
same quarter last year and operating expenses increased by 6%.

GOP at Php 343.52million in 2018and Php 386.15million in 2017.

Earningsper share this quarter is at Php 0.093 whilesame quarter last year was at Php 0.095.

Fixed Financial and Other Charges
Total fixed financial and other charges, Php 135.83 million, reflecting an increase of 5% from the
previous year's PHP 129.60million.

This account includes the depreciation and interest expense from SSSLoan.

HNANOAL CONDITION

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cashand cash equivalents as of the 2nd quarter of thisyear is at Php 585.07 millionhigher by
Php 135.94 millionfrom last year or 30%.

Receivables

Receivables for the period decreasedby 13% fiom Php 254.79 million2nd quarter last
year to Php 222.70 million 2nd quarter this year.

Notes Receivable

The Group extended loans to Acesite Leisure and Entertainment Corporation (ALEQ and bear
interest at 4% per annum. The loan is guaranteed by another entity in behalf of ALEC.

Insurance Receivable

On March 18,2018, a fire broke out at the hotel of Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Inc. damaging several floors,
casinos and restaurants. Operations have been suspended since then. The Hotel has insurance
coverage to answer for the damages sustained. It is expected that operations will continue after
damages are repaired.

Inventories

Inventory tliis year showed a decreased of 3%.

Due from related parties-current portion
Thisaccount increased by 69% from lastyear's 2nd quarter. This representsinterest bearingadvances
from TWGl and PRC. Non-interest bearing advances from PHES and APS investment Notes
receivable wherein die Group extended loans to ALEC (Acesite Leisure and Entertainment
Corporation) at 4% per annum.

Due from related parties-noncurrent portion
Crisanta Realty at a rateof two percent (2%) peraimum isclassified as non-current due in5years.
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Property, Plant and Equipment
Theaccountdecreased by16% or Php 1.06 billion from lastyear. Significant decrease wasbroughtby
the fire incident

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
This account had decreased to 42%or Php 549.58million from last year.

Loans Payable
The account remainsstaticat Php 375million. This refers to loan with SocialSecuritySystem.

Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors:
a. Any knownTrends,Events or Uncertainties-(material impacton liquidity)-NONE
b.Thereare no eventsthat will triggerdirector contingent financial obligation that is
materialto the company, including any defaultor acceleration ofan obligation.
c. There are no material off-balancesheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including, contingent obligations), and otherrelationships of thecompany with
unconsolidatedentitiesor other personscreated during the reportingperiod.
d. Thereare no materialcommitments forcapitalexpenditures, generalpurpose of
such commitments, expectedsources of funds for such expenditures.
e.From continuing operations, theCompany is notexposed to anysignificant elements of income or
loss except for those already afiiecting profit or loss.
f. There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arisefi'om the issuer'scontinuing
operations ofiter than those already affectingprofit or loss.

Risk Management Structure
The BOD ismainly responsible for theoverall risk management approach andfor ti*e approval ofrisk
strategies and principles of the Group. It also has theoverall responsibility for the development of
risk strategies, principles, firameworks, policies and limits. It establishes a forum ofdiscussion of the
Group's approach to risk issues in order to make relevant decisions.

Risk Management Committee
Risk management committee is responsible for the comprehensive monitoring, evaluation and
analysisof the Group's risksin line with the policies and limitsset by the BOD.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
TheGroup's principal financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, due
from related parties, AFS investment, accounts payable and accrued expenses (except for local taxes
andoutputVAT, withholding taxes anddeferred income), ofiier current liabilities, loans payable, and
other noncurrent liabilities. These financial instruments arise directly from operations.

^ The main risks arising from the financial instruments of the Group are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk. There has been no change to the Group's exposure to risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks in prior financial year. The Group's management reviews and
approves policies for managingeach of these risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally fi'om the Group's cash in
banks, receivables and advances to related parties. The Group has established a credit policy under
whicheach new customeris analyzed individually for creditworthiness beforethe Group'sstandard
pa)nnent and delivery terms and conditions are offered.The Group's review includes external ratings,
if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry information, and in
some cases bank references.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by establishing credit limits and maximum payment
period for each customer, reviewing outstanding balances to minimize transactions with customers in
industries experiencing particular economic volatility.

With respect to credit risk from other financial assets of the Group, which mainly comprise of due
from related parties, the exposure of the Group to credit risk arises from fte default of the
18
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counterparty, with a maximumexposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.
There is no other significant concentration of credit risk in the Group.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its ^ancial obligations as diey fall
due.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the managementto finance
the Group's operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Additional short-term
funding is obtained through related party advancesand from bankloans,when necessary.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the BOD, which has established an
appropriate Liquidity risk management framework for the management ofthe Group's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. TheGroup manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of fmwcial assetsand liabilities. For the Group's short-term funding,
theGroup's policy is to ensure that fliere are sufficient working capital inflows to match repa3rments
of short-term debt

Market Risk

Market risk is flie risk that flie fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument of the Group will
fluctuate duetochange inmarket prices. Market risk reflects interest rate risk, currency risk andother
price risks.

Since the Group's loan in U.S. dollar had been fully paid in March 2016, theGroup is not anymore
significantly exposedto changes in foreign currencyexchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that flie future cash flow of the fmancial mstruments will
fluctuate because of the changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the fair value of a financial instrument wUlfluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Group's financial instrument that is exposed to interest risk is the interest-beanng funds made
available by the Parent Company to WCCCHI to finance the construction of the Cebu City Hotel
Project Such funds were substantially sourced from a P375 million loan from SSS, aswell asthe stock
rights offering of the Parent Company. The Parent Company is charging WCCCHI on the related
interests andpenalties on thecontention that thelatter beneflted from theproceeds oftheSSS loan

Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is therisk thatfair value offuture cash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate
bemuse of chantsinmarket prices (oflier than those arising from interest rate risk orcurrency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to flie individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors aff^i^g all similar Randal instruments traded in the market

The Group isexposed toequity price risk because ofitsinvestment inshares ofstock ofWII which are
listedin the PSE totaling to 86,710,000 sharesas at December 31,2017 and 2016.

The Group monitors thechanges in theprice of theshares ofstock ofWII. In managing itsprice risk,
theGroupdisposes ofexisting or acquires additional sharesbased on dieeconomic conditions.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Thecarrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, current portion of due from related
parties, accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximate their fair
values due to die short-term maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of interest-bearing due ffom related parties and loans payable is based on the
discounted value of expected future cash flows using the applicable market rates for similar types of
instruments as of the reporting date; thus, the carrying amount approximates fair value.

The fair value of AFS investment was determined using the closing market price of die investment
listed on the PSE.
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Capital Management
The primaiy ol^ectiveof the Group's capital management is to ensure its ability to continue as a going
concernand that it maintainsa strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholder value. Capital is deHned as die invested money or invested
purchasing power, the net assets or equity of the entity. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from 2018and 2017.

The Group manages its capitalstructure and makesadjustmentsto it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintainor adjust the capitalstructure, die Group may adjust die dividend pa)nnentto
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
ofajecdves, policies or processes in 2018 and 2017. Forpurposesof theGroup's capitalmanagement,
capital includesall equity itemsthat are presentedin the consolidated statementof changesin equity.

The Group is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES,INCORPORATEDAND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF AGING OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FOR SEC REPORTING

)

Trade Receivables 0-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 121 days over Total

Waterfront Cebu CityCasino Hotel Inc.
Waterfront Airport Hotel and Casino
Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao

Manila Pavilion Hotel

24,852,908.17
10,423,209.14

5,486,721.53

4,935,811.28
1,431,924.17

789,231.21

2,119,386.06
1,467,634.41

443,186.38

4,606,868.01

354,686.38
347,547.04

16,015,520.68

14,881,822.06
3,167,148.46

16,693,389.19

52,530,494.20
28,559,276.16
10,233,834.62
16,693,389.19

Total 40,762,838.84 7,156,956.66 4,030,206.85 5,309,101.43 50,757,880.39 108,016,994.17


